
 

 Orange County Transportation Authority 
 

 
 

 Finance and Administration Committee Meeting Agenda 
 Wednesday, January 11, 2017 at 10:30 a.m. 
 

 550 South Main Street, Board Room - Conf. Room 07, Orange, California 

 
 Committee Members 
 
 Todd Spitzer, Chairman 
 Andrew Do 
 Michael Hennessey 
 Steve Jones 
 Miguel Pulido 
 Michelle Steel 
 
 
 Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to 
 participate in this meeting should contact the OCTA Clerk of the Board, telephone          
(714) 560-5676, no less than two (2) business days prior to this meeting to enable OCTA to 
make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting. 
 
 Agenda descriptions are intended to give members of the public a general summary of items 
 of business to be transacted or discussed.  The posting of the recommended actions does 
 not indicate what action will be taken.  The Committee may take any action which it deems to 
 be appropriate on the agenda item and is not limited in any way by the notice of the 
 recommended action.  
 
 All documents relative to the items referenced in this agenda are available for public 
 inspection at www.octa.net or through the Clerk of the Board’s office at the                  
OCTA Headquarters, 600 South Main Street, Orange, California. 
 

Call to Order 
 

Pledge of Allegiance - Director Do 
 

 1. Public Comments 

 

Special Calendar 
 
 There are no Special Calendar matters. 
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Consent Calendar (Items 2 through 15) 
 

All items on the Consent Calendar are to be approved in one motion unless a Committee 
Member or a member of the public requests separate action or discussion on a specific item. 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 
 Overview 
 

Approval of the minutes of the Finance and Administration Committee meeting of       
November 9, 2016. 
 

3. Fiscal Year 2015-16 Annual Financial and Agreed-Upon Procedures Reports 
 

 Executive Director 
 Janet Sutter 
 

 Overview 
 

The Orange County Transportation Authority is required to obtain an independent 
auditor’s opinion on various financial statements. Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, LLP, 
an independent accounting firm, has completed its annual audits of the Orange County 
Transportation Authority and related entities for the fiscal year 2015-16. Additionally, 
reports have been issued on the results of agreed-upon procedures applied to determine 
compliance with certain state, federal, and local requirements. All reports are included 
herewith. 
 

 Recommendation 
 

Receive and file the fiscal year 2015-16 annual financial and agreed-upon procedures 
reports as an information item. 
 

 4. Fiscal Year 2015-16 Management Letter 
 

 Executive Director 
 Janet Sutter 
 

 Overview 
 

In connection with the annual audit of the Orange County Transportation Authority’s 
financial statements, schedules, and agreements for fiscal year 2015-16, Vavrinek, Trine, 
Day & Company, LLP, has issued a management letter with four recommendations for 
improvement to internal controls.   
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4. (Continued) 

 
 Recommendations 
 

A. Receive and file the Orange County Transportation Authority Management Letter 
June 30, 2016. 

 
B. Direct staff to implement auditor recommendations related to the information 

technology environment.  
 

5. Fiscal Year 2015-16 Auditor’s Communication to Those Charged with Governance 

  
 Executive Director 

 Janet Sutter 
 

 Overview 
 

The Orange County Transportation Authority is required to obtain an independent 
auditor’s opinion on its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, various fund financial 
statements, schedules, and agreements. Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, LLP, an 
independent accounting firm, conducted the annual audit of the Orange County 
Transportation Authority’s financial statements, schedules, and agreements for      
fiscal year 2015-16, and has issued reports thereon. Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, 
LLP, as required by United States Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, has herewith issued its Auditor’s 
Communication to Those Charged with Governance. 

 
 Recommendation 
 

 Receive and file as an information item. 
 
6. Laguna Beach Municipal Transit Lines, Annual Transportation Development Act 

Program Audit for Fiscal Year 2015-16 
 
 Executive Director 
 Janet Sutter 
 
 Overview 
 

Pursuant to Part 21, Section 6667 of the California Code of Regulations, an audit of 
Transportation Development Act Article 4 Funds disbursed to the City of Laguna Beach 
has been conducted for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, by Vavrinek, Trine,      
Day & Company, LLP.  
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6. (Continued) 
 
 Recommendation 
 

Receive and file the Laguna Beach Municipal Transit Lines, Transportation Development 
Act Program audit for fiscal year 2015-16, as an information item. 

 
7. Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard Compliance, Internal Audit Report 

No. 17-502 
  
 Executive Director 

Janet Sutter 
  
 Overview 
 

The Internal Audit Department has completed an audit of Payment Card Industry Data 
Security Standard compliance.  Based on the audit, the Orange County Transportation 
Authority is not in compliance with standards and reporting requirements of the Payment 
Card Industry Data Security Standard or related payment card issuer standards. 
 

 Recommendation 
 

Direct staff to implement two recommendations provided in Payment Card Industry Data 
Security Standard Compliance, Internal Audit Report No. 17-502. 

 
 8. Fiscal Year 2016-17 First Quarter Grant Reimbursement Status Report 
 
 Author/Executive Director 
 Rene I. Vega/Andrew Oftelie 
 
 Overview 
 

 The Quarterly Grant Reimbursement Status Report summarizes grant activities for 
information purposes for the Orange County Transportation Authority Board of Directors.  
This report focuses on activity for the period of July through September 2016.   
 
 Recommendation 

 
 Receive and file as an information item. 
  



Orange County Transportation Authority Page  5 

 

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA  

 

 

 

9. Orange County Treasurer’s Management Report - October 2016 
 
 Author/Executive Director 
 Rodney Johnson/Andrew Oftelie 
 
 Overview 
 

The Orange County Transportation Authority invests a portion of its liquid portfolio in the 
Orange County Investment Pool.  Each month the Orange County Treasurer publishes a 
comprehensive report detailing the composition of the pool and the prevailing economic 
and market conditions.  The attached Treasurer’s Management Report for the     
Orange County Investment Pool is for the month ending October 31, 2016.  The report 
has been reviewed and is consistent with the investment practices of the Orange County 
Treasurer. 
 

 Recommendation 
 
 Receive and file as an information item. 

 
10. Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt Programs -  

October 2016 
  
 Author/Executive Director 
 Rodney Johnson/Andrew Oftelie 
 
 Overview 
 

The Orange County Transportation Authority has a comprehensive investment and debt 
program to fund its immediate and long-term cash flow demands.  Each month, the 
Treasurer submits a report detailing investment allocation, performance, compliance, 
outstanding debt balances, and credit ratings for the Orange County Transportation 
Authority’s Debt Program.  This report is for the month ending October 31, 2016.  The 
report has been reviewed and is consistent with the investment practices contained in the 
investment policy.   
 

 Recommendation 
 
 Receive and file as an information item. 
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11. Local Agency Investment Fund - October 2016 
  
 Author/Executive Director 
 Rodney Johnson/Andrew Oftelie 
 
 Overview 
 

The Orange County Transportation Authority invests a portion of its liquid portfolio in the 
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund.  Each month, the State Treasurer’s 
office publishes a report detailing the composition of the pool.  The attached summary 
statements from the report are for the month ending October 31, 2016.  The report has 
been reviewed and is consistent with the investment practices of the State Treasurer’s 
Office. 
 

 Recommendation 
 
 Receive and file as an information item. 
 
12. Local Agency Investment Fund - November 2016 

 
 Author/Executive Director 
 Rodney Johnson/Andrew Oftelie 
 
 Overview 
 

The Orange County Transportation Authority invests a portion of its liquid portfolio in the 
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund.  Each month, the State Treasurer’s 
office publishes a report detailing the composition of the pool.  The attached summary 
statements from the report are for the month ending November 30, 2016.  The report has 
been reviewed and is consistent with the investment practices of the State Treasurer’s 
Office. 
 

 Recommendation 
 
 Receive and file as an information item. 
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13. Orange County Treasurer's Management Report - November 2016 
  
 Author/Executive Director 
 Rodney Johnson/Andrew Oftelie 
 
 Overview 
 

The Orange County Transportation Authority invests a portion of its liquid portfolio in the 
Orange County Investment Pool.  Each month the Orange County Treasurer publishes a 
comprehensive report detailing the composition of the pool and the prevailing economic 
and market conditions.  The attached Treasurer’s Management Report for the Orange 
County Investment Pool is for the month ending November 30, 2016.  The report has 
been reviewed and is consistent with the investment practices of the Orange County 
Treasurer. 

 
 Recommendation 
 
 Receive and file as an information item. 
 
14. Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt Programs 

Report - November 2016 
 

 Author/Executive Director 
 Rodney Johnson/Andrew Oftelie 
 
 Overview 
 

The Orange County Transportation Authority has a comprehensive investment and debt 
program to fund its immediate and long-term cash flow demands.  Each month, the 
Treasurer submits a report detailing investment allocation, performance, compliance, 
outstanding debt balances, and credit ratings for the Orange County Transportation 
Authority’s debt program.  This report is for the month ending November 30, 2016.  The 
report has been reviewed and is consistent with the investment practices contained in the 
Investment Policy.   
 

 Recommendation 
 
 Receive and file as an information item. 
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 Regular Calendar 
 
15. Fiscal Year 2016-17 First Quarter Budget Status Report 
 
 Author/Executive Director 
 Scott Arbuckle/Andrew Oftelie 
 
 Overview 
 

The Orange County Transportation Authority’s staff has implemented the fiscal year 
2016-17 budget.  This report summarizes the material variances between the budget 
and actual revenues and expenses through the first quarter of fiscal year 2016-17. 

 
 Recommendation 
 
 Receive and file as an information item 
 

 Discussion Items 
 

 16. Bristol Street Widening Project Audit Update 
 

 Executive Director 
 Jim Beil 
 
 Overview 
 

Staff will provide an update on the audit results resolution with the City of Santa Ana for 
the Bristol Street Widening Project. 
 

 17. Chief Executive Officer's Report 
 

 18. Committee Members' Reports 
 

 19. Closed Session 
 

 There are no Closed Session items scheduled. 
 

 20. Adjournment 
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of this Committee will be held at              
10:30 a.m. on Wednesday, February 8, 2017, at the Orange County Transportation 
Authority Headquarters, 550 South Main Street, Board Room - Conference Room 07,      
Orange, California. 
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 Committee Members Present 
Todd Spitzer, Chairman 
Jim Katapodis, Vice Chairman 
Michael Hennessey  
Steve Jones  
Gary A. Miller  
Miguel Pulido  
Michelle Steel  
 

Staff Present 
Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
Ken Phipps, Deputy Chief Executive Officer 
Laurena Weinert, Clerk of the Board 
Gina Claridge, Deputy Clerk of the Board 
James Donich, General Counsel 

 

Committee Members Absent 
Andrew Do  
 

 

 

Call to Order 

The November 9, 2016 regular meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee 
was called to order by Committee Chairman Spitzer at 10:33 a.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Director Miller led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

1. Public Comments 

No public comments were received. 
 

Special Calendar 
 
There are no Special Calendar matters. 

Consent Calendar (Items 2 through 11) 

2. Approval of Minutes 

This item was pulled by Director Miller who requested a correction to the  
minutes of the October 12, 2016 Finance and Administration Committee meeting  
(Item 11, Page 4, Third Paragraph), to read: 

“Director Miller inquired if the two outstanding lawsuits with the cities of  
Seal Beach and Long Beach were fully disclosed in the 139 page written 
presentation given to the Build America ...” 
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2. (Continued) 

A motion was made by Director Miller, seconded by Director Pulido, and 
declared passed by those present, to approve minutes of the October 12, 2016 
meeting. 

3. Fiscal Year 2016-17 Internal Audit Plan, First Quarter Update 
 
This item was pulled by Director Spitzer, who inquired on the audit findings 
regarding charging and rates related to the City of Santa Ana’s (City) audit of the 
Bristol Street Widening Project, led by the City. 

 
Janet Sutter, Executive Director of Internal Audit, reported that there were 
several audit recommendations given to the City, including a request to credit 
back some amounts to the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) 
due to overbilling of labor rates, as well as a request to amend the cooperative 
agreement to address credits for right-of-way (ROW) properties that have not 
been sold.   Ms. Sutter stated that upon the six-month audit follow-up, the City 
disagreed with some of the proposed corrective actions. 
 
A lengthy discussion ensued regarding: 
 

 The City and OCTA have difference in opinion related to the labor rate. 

 How the overhead portion of the labor rate is being allocated. 

 The City has recently provided written communication to OCTA indicating 
the appropriate adjustments will be made and the cooperative agreement 
will be amended. 

 Excess property/ROW, in the amount of $443,078.  

 Estimated time to resolve the issue. 

 Good faith efforts the City can implement in the interim. 

 
Committee Chairman Spitzer requested that staff work with the City to resolve 
outstanding credits, in the amount of $261,764 for labor overbillings, and 
$443,078 in excess ROW property charged to the cooperative agreement. 

 
Committee Chairman Spitzer also proposed a recommendation to direct staff to 
return to the December 14, 2016 Finance and Administration Committee with an 
update on the status of outstanding items related to the audit of the Bristol Street 
Widening Project, led by the City.   
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3. (Continued) 

A motion was made by Director Pulido, seconded by Committee  
Vice Chairman Katapodis, and declared passed by those present, to:  

 
A. Receive and file the first quarter update to the Orange County 

Transportation Authority Internal Audit Department Fiscal Year 2016-17 
Internal Audit Plan. 

 
B. Direct staff to return to the December 14, 2016 Finance and 

Administration Committee with an update on the status of outstanding 
items related to the Audit of the Bristol Street Widening Project, led by the  
City of Santa Ana.   

 
4. Property Insurance Policy Renewal 

 
A motion was made by Director Steel, seconded by Director Miller, and  
declared passed by those present, to authorize the Chief Executive Officer to 
negotiate and execute Purchase Order No. A36214, in the amount of $550,000, 
to Marsh Risk and Insurance Services, Inc., to purchase property insurance on 
behalf of the Orange County Transportation Authority for the policy period of 
December 1, 2016 to December 1, 2017. 

 
5. Local Agency Investment Fund – September 2016 

 
A motion was made by Director Steel, seconded by Director Miller, and declared 
passed by those present, to receive and file as an information item. 
 

6. Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt Programs 
Report - September 2016 
 
A motion was made by Director Steel, seconded by Director Miller, and declared 
passed by those present, to receive and file as an information item. 
 

7. Orange County Treasurer’s Management Report – September 2016 
 
A motion was made Director Steel, seconded by Director Miller, and declared 
passed by those present to, receive and file as an information item. 
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8. Orange County Employees Retirement System Early Payment for  

Fiscal Year 2017-18 
 

A motion was made Director Steel, seconded by Director Miller, and declared 
passed by those present, to authorize the early payment of approximately  
$25.1 million by January 17, 2017, to the Orange County Employees  
Retirement System for member contributions for fiscal year 2017-18. 

 
9. First Quarter Fiscal Year 2016-17 Procurement Status Report 

 
A motion was made by Director Steel, seconded by Director Miller, and declared 
passed by those present, to receive and file as an information item. 

 

10. Amendment to Agreement for Consultant Services to Implement the 
Federal Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program 
 
This item was pulled by Director Spitzer who inquired on the Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (DBE) process for design-build (DB) projects when selecting 
and using consultants. 
 

A lengthy discussion ensued regarding: 
 

 How the consultant ensures that OCTA is DBE-compliant. 

 Process to verify if consultants/sub consultants are DBE certified. 

 Required monthly reports by the DBE consultant and the Contracts 
Administration & Materials Management Department (CAMM). 

 CAMM oversight of consultants. 

 DBE compliance accountability and who is liable for non-compliance, 
penalties, etcetera. 

 Required indemnification provisions, bonding, and insurance 
coverage provided by the consultant for errors and omissions.  
 

A motion was made by Vice Chairman Katapodis, seconded by  
Director Miller, and declared passed by those present, to authorize the  
Chief Executive Officer to negotiate and execute Amendment No. 2 to 
Agreement No. C-4-1514 between the Orange County Transportation Authority 
and Padilla & Associates, Inc., in the amount of $300,000, to provide  
assistance in administering the Federal Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
Program on the Interstate 405 Design-Build Improvement Project.  
This amendment will increase the maximum obligation of the agreement to a 
total contract value of $900,000. 
 

Board Vice Chairman Hennessey was not present to vote on this item. 
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11. Measure M2 Sales Tax Forecast 

 
A motion was made by Director Steel, seconded by Director Miller, and  
declared passed by those present, to receive and file as an information item. 

 
Regular Calendar 

12. Fiscal Year 2015-16 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and  
91 Express Lanes Fund Financial Statements 

 
Andrew Oftelie, Executive Director of Finance and Administration,  
provided opening comments and a brief update on the item, and introduced 
Roger Alfaro, Partner, Vavrinek, Trine, Day and Company, LLP. 
 
Mr. Alfaro reported on the following: 
 

 Process focuses heavily on OCTA’s internal controls. 

 Risk assessment and planning process to identify key controls that OCTA 
has in place, including: 
o Revenue recognition 
o Treasury and investment management 
o Payroll 
o Accounts payable management 
o Financial reporting and process used to produce financial 

statements 

 OCTA newly-adopted accounting policies with respect to: 
o Fair value measurement 
o Application and disclosure related to OCTA’s investments 

 No deficiencies were identified in the internal controls that would be 
considered material weaknesses. 

 No difficulties were encountered during the audit. 
 
A short discussion ensued, and Mr. Oftelie thanked several OCTA staff members 
for their efforts and countless hours spent to ensure the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report was delivered on time.   

 
A motion was made by Board Vice Chairman Hennessey, seconded by  
Committee Vice Chairman Katapodis, and declared passed by those present,  
to receive and file the fiscal year 2015-16 Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report and 91 Express Lanes Fund Financial Statements. 
 
Director Pulido was not present to vote on this item. 
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13. Fare Policy Recommendations 

 

Andrew Oftelie, Executive Director of Finance and Administration, provided opening 
comments and introduced Sean Murdock, Director of Finance and Administration.    
 

Committee Chairman Spitzer asked what the difference was in today’s 
presentation than what has been previously presented to the full Board of 
Directors (Board). 
   
Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), reported that the Board 
previously expressed concerns regarding staff’s proposed recommendations 
related to ACCESS. He also stated that the Board requested that  
staff extract all activities related to ACCESS, return with a comprehensive review 
of the ACCESS Program, and directed staff to host a community meeting in the 
First District prior to the final fare recommendations return to the Board. 
 
Mr. Murdock provided a PowerPoint presentation as follows: 
 

 Background; 

 CH2M Hill assessment of goals and current structure; 

 Fare study recommendations; 

 Public involvement; and  

 Next steps. 
 

A discussion ensued regarding: 
 

 Intracounty and intercounty Express route fares increase. 

 If staff took into account the overall economics for the fare change. 

 There is less of a subsidy with the proposed changes. 

 The Board approved a reduction to the Day Pass cost and boardings are 
expected to increase. 

 Fare policy constraints. 

 Staff fully analyzed the economics with the constraints of the farebox 
recovery requirement, the ACCESS fare constraint, as well as the goal of 
to increase ridership. 

 

Committee Chairman Spitzer stated that before fares are increased, the public 
should also be informed on what OCTA is doing internally to reduce its costs.   
 
Darrell Johnson, CEO, stated that at the November 10, 2016 Transit Committee 
meeting, a quarterly report will be provided which addresses Committee Chairman 
Spitzer’s concerns, and discusses significant changes being made, such as cost per 
revenue vehicle hour, ACCESS cost per hour, shifts to contracted cost per hour, 
subsidy per route, and riders per route.  
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13. (Continued) 

Committee Vice Chairman Katapodis stated that he did not feel that going  
from $5.00 to $4.00 for the Day Pass will make a big difference in ridership, but 
felt that everything else staff has done to date is great. 
 
After a short discussion ensued, a motion was made by Committee  
Vice Chairman Katapodis, seconded by Board Vice Chairman Hennessey,  
and declared passed by those present, to:  
 
A. Direct staff to return to the Board of Directors in 2017 with a 

recommendation for the price of the Day Pass following the promotional 
period, which ends on April 9, 2017. 

 
B. Eliminate the 5-Ride and 7-Day Passes. 
 
C. Categorize routes 206, 211, 212, 213, 216 as intracounty Express routes. 
 
D. Set fares for intracounty Express routes to $4.00 and intercounty Express 

routes to $7.00. 
 
E. Require proof of eligibility at the point of sale for the purchase of reduced 

fare media. 
 
Committee Chairman Spitzer voted in opposition to Recommendation D. 
 
Director Pulido was not present to vote on this item. 

Discussion Items 

14. Chief Executive Officer's Report   

 Darrell Johnson, CEO, reported that: 

 OCTA will host a customer roundtable at 6:00 p.m. this evening  
at the OCTA offices to solicit feedback from riders regarding the  
October bus service change. 
 

 OCTA will host a wilderness preserve hike and equestrian  
ride at the Ferber Ranch Preserve in Trabuco Canyon on Saturday,  
November 19, 2016. 

 

 There were 14 ballot initiatives on the local option sales tax (six renewals 
and seven new ones, with seven fails and six passes). 
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14. (Continued) 

 The Next 10 Plan will be presented to the Board on Monday,  
November 14, 2016.  Staff will propose, as part of the recommendations, 
to perform a market analysis of the construction industry and the 
professional services industry, similar to what was done after the passage 
of Measure M2 in 2006.  

15. Committee Members’ Reports 

Committee Chairman Spitzer inquired on how the recent passage of the ballot 
measure legalizing the recreational use of marijuana will affect OCTA and if 
OCTA will be adopting a policy to be in compliance with the Federal Transit 
Administration.  Mr. Johnson stated that an item to address this will be 
agendized for the next Finance and Administration Committee meeting. 
 
Committee Chairman Spitzer reported that the next Finance and Administration 
Committee meeting is scheduled for November 23, 2016, and inquired if the 
Committee would like to meet the day before the Thanksgiving Holiday.    
 
Mr. Johnson, CEO, reported that as of now, there is no business need to meet, 
other than to address the above item that was proposed to be agendized. If 
needed, staff can provide a memorandum to the Committee with that 
information. 
 
The consensus of the Committee is to cancel the November 23, 2016,  
Finance and Administration Committee meeting. 

16. Closed Session 

A Closed Session was not conducted at this meeting. 
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19. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 11:49 a.m.  
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of this Committee will be held at  
10:30 a.m. on Wednesday, December 14, 2016, at the Orange County 
Transportation Authority Headquarters, 550 South Main Street, Board Room – 
Conference Room 07, Orange, California. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST 
 

Gina Claridge 
Deputy Clerk of the Board 

 

Todd Spitzer 
Committee Chairman 

 
 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 Janet Sutter, Executive Director 
 Internal Audit Department 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015-16 Annual Financial and Agreed-Upon 

Procedures Reports 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority is required to obtain an 
independent auditor’s opinion on various financial statements. Vavrinek, Trine, 
Day & Company, LLP, an independent accounting firm, has completed its 
annual audits of the Orange County Transportation Authority and related 
entities for the fiscal year 2015-16. Additionally, reports have been issued on 
the results of agreed-upon procedures applied to determine compliance with 
certain state, federal, and local requirements. All reports are included herewith. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file the fiscal year 2015-16 annual financial and agreed-upon 
procedures reports as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
Pursuant to Section 28770 of the Public Utilities Code, the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA) prepares an annual set of financial statements 
presenting OCTA’s results of operations and financial position at fiscal year-end. 
The financial statements are included in OCTA’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR), which was presented to the Board of Directors on 
November 23, 2016.  In connection with the preparation of the CAFR, Vavrinek, 
Trine, Day & Company, LLP (VTD) also provides opinions on other financial 
reports of OCTA. 
 
The audits were performed under current accounting and auditing standards, 
including generally accepted auditing standards, the standards set forth for 
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financial audits in the Government Accountability Office's Government Auditing 
Standards, the provisions of the federal Single Audit Act of 1984 (as amended) 
and the United States Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, as well as 
the following additional requirements, where applicable: 
 
 State of California Transportation Development Act, including the 

requirements of the Southern California Association of Governments’ 
Transportation Development Act Conformance Auditing Guide; 

 Renewed Measure M Transportation Investment Plan; 
 Special District and Transit District Reporting Requirements, as specified by 

the California State Controller; and 
 Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution, with procedures 

specified by the League of California Cities in Article XIIIB Appropriations 
Limitation Uniform Guidelines 

 
Discussion 
 
VTD has completed its annual financial audits and has issued independent 
auditor opinions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. In addition, results of 
certain agreed-upon procedures reviews are presented. Reports are included as 
Attachments A through J. 
 
There were no recommendations resulting from the procedures performed. 
 
Summary 
 
VTD has audited OCTA’s CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and 
has issued an unmodified opinion thereon. VTD has also issued unmodified 
opinions on various other financial statements, which are attached hereto. No 
findings or recommendations were included in these reports. 
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Attachments 
 
A. Orange County Transportation Authority Single Audit Report on Federal 

Awards Year Ended June 30, 2016 
B. Orange County Local Transportation Authority (A Component Unit of the 

Orange County Transportation Authority) Annual Financial and 
Compliance Report Year Ended June 30, 2016 

C. Orange County Transportation Authority Local Transportation 
Fund  Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2016 

D. Orange County Transportation Authority State Transit Assistance 
Fund Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2016 

E. Orange County Transportation Authority Independent Auditors’ Report on 
Proposition 1B and Transportation Development Act Year Ended 
June 30, 2016 

F. Orange County Local Transportation Authority Report on Agreed-Upon 
Procedures Applied to Measure M2 Status Report Year Ended 
June 30, 2016 

G. Orange County Transportation Authority Independent Accountants’ 
Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures Performed with Respect to the 
Treasury Department Year Ended June 30, 2016 

H. Orange County Transportation Authority Independent Accountants’ 
Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures Related to the Article XIII-B 
Appropriations Limit Calculation For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

I. Orange County Local Transportation Authority Independent Accountants’ 
Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures Related to the Article XIII-B 
Appropriations Limit Calculation For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

J. Orange County Transportation Authority Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Performed With Respect to the National Transit Database Report For 
the Period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 
 
 
 

Janet Sutter Janet Sutter 
Executive Director, Internal Audit 
714-560-5591 

Executive Director, Internal Audit 
714-560-5591 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS, THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT, CALIFORNIA 

GOVERNMENT CODE §8879.50, AND STATE SENATE BILL 88 (2007)  

Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise OCTA’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated October 31, 2016.  Our report included an emphasis-of-matter regarding OCTA’s adoption of 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72 – Fair Value Measurement and Application, 
and GASB Statement No. 82 – Pension Issues, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73, 
effective July 1, 2015. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered OCTA’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether OCTA’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, including the applicable provisions of Section 6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of 
Regulations, California Government Code §8879.50 and California State Senate Bill 88 (2007), et seq., 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, Section 
6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, California Government Code §8879.50 and California 
State Senate Bill 88 (2007), et seq. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Laguna Hills, California  
October 31, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM; 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF 

EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited the Orange County Transportation Authority’s (OCTA) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements  described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of OCTA’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.  OCTA’s major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of OCTA’s major federal programs based on 
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States;  and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those 
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about OCTA’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of OCTA’s compliance.  
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, OCTA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2016. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 
Management of OCTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered OCTA’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of OCTA, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise OCTA’s basic financial statements.  We 
issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2016, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial 
statements.  Our report included an emphasis-of-matter regarding OCTA’s adoption of Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72 – Fair Value Measurement and Application, and GASB Statement 
No. 82 – Pension Issues, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73, effective July 1, 2015.  
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the basic financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California  
December 19, 2016
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Federal Grant/ Pass-Through Passed

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Identification Federal Through to

Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct grants:

Federal Transit Cluster:
Federal Transit - Capital Investments Grants 20.500 CA-03-0754 16,099$             -$                     
Federal Transit - Capital Investments Grants 20.500 CA-04-0078 1,069                 1,069               
Federal Transit - Capital Investments Grants 20.500 CA-04-0181 8,655                 -                       
Federal Transit - Capital Investments Grants 20.500 CA-04-0122 34,623               25,778             
Federal Transit - Capital Investments Grants 20.500 CA-04-0251 123,484             -                       
Federal Transit - Capital Investments Grants 20.500 CA-05-0269 537,793             -                       
Federal Transit - Capital Investments Grants 20.500 CA-55-0003 624,899             663,018           

Total Federal Transit Capital Investments Grants 1,346,622          689,865           

Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-90-Y860 3,506,628          689,022           
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-90-Y942 2,093,815          246,822           
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-90-Z027 2,000,486          16,069             
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-90-Z174 1,163,929          -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-95-X131 256,613             -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-95-X180 352,356             330,154           
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-95-X188 15,736,588        -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-95-X195 310,919             -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-95-X210 2,341,833          -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-95-X213 1,397,521          -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-95-X254 510,074             -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-95-X262 1,750,497          -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-95-X286 1,816,063          1,475,063        
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-2016-032-00 43,548,590        1,849,431        
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 CA-2016-116-00 11,591,859        -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 N/A 4,427                 -                       

Total Federal Transit Capital Formula Grants 88,382,198        4,606,561        

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20.526 CA-34-0019 (1,602,821)        -                       
Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20.526 CA-2016-031-00 5,965,487          -                       

Total Bus and Facilities Formula Program 4,362,666          -                       
Total Federal Transit Cluster 94,091,486        5,296,426        

Transit Services Programs Cluster:
Job Access Reverse Commute Program 20.516 CA-37-X113 1,188,730          525,674           
New Freedom Program 20.521 CA-57-X038 335,229             312,325           

Total Transit Services Programs Cluster 1,523,959          837,999           

 
Continued on the next page
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Federal Grant/ Pass-Through Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Identification Federal Through to
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Transportation (continued)
Passed Through California Department of Transportation:

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:
Highway Planning and Construction:

Tustin Rose RSTP 20.205 STPL-6071-(061) 4,078,795$        -$                     
Sand Canyon Grade Separation RSTP 20.205 STPL-6071-(059) 134,623             -                       
I-5 from North I-405 to SR55 20.205 STPLN-6071-(093) 634,529             -                       
SR-91, SR-57 to SR-55 20.205 STPLN-6071-(096) 641,233             -                       
I-5 Widening from Oso Creek to Alicia Pkwy, Seg. 2 20.205 STPLN-6071-(102) RSTP 4,911,599          -                       
I-5 Widening from SR-76 to Oso Pkwy, Seg. 1 20.205 STPLN-6071-(103) RSTP 3,583,482          -                       
I-5 Widening from Alicia Pkwy to El Toro Rd., Seg. 3 20.205 STPLN-6071-(104) RSTP 2,896,336          -                       
I-405, I-5 to SR-55 20.205 STPLN-6071-(105) RSTP 2,127,886          -                       
SR 22 from I-405 to SR 55 20.205 CMLN-6071(035) 2,245                 -                       
Beach Blvd @ I-405 Interchange 20.205 CMLN-6071(041) 74,921               -                       
I-405 only 20.205 CMLN-6071(043) 2,663,573          -                       
Kraemer Grade Sep 20.205 CMLN-6071(051) (1,220,876)        -                       
Orangethorpe Grade Sep 20.205 CMLN-6071(060) 6,291,527          -                       
Lakeview Grade Sep 20.205 CMLN-6071(066) 3,253,656          -                       
I-5 from Ave Pico to South of Vista Hermosa 20.205 CMLN-6071(071) 1,808,372          -                       
I-5 from Vista Hermosa to PCH 20.205 CMLN-6071(072) 264,641             -                       
I-5 from PCH to San Juan Creek Road 20.205 CMLN-6071(073) 189,501             -                       
I-5 from SR 55 to SR 57 20.205 CMLN-6071(108) 1,171,505          -                       
I-5 from Orange/San Diego County line to Avenida Pico 20.205 CMLN-6071(112) 17,690               -                       

Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 33,525,238        -                       
PCH Corridor Study 20.Unknown SLPP-6071(079) (38,049)             -                       

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 129,102,634      6,134,425        

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Direct grants:
 Office of Security Operations:

National Explosives Detection Canine Team Program 97.072 N/A 166,274             -                       

Rail and Transit Security Grant Program (TSGP):
Security & Emergency Mgmt Training (2014 TSGP) 97.075 N/A 461,411             -                       

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 627,685             -                       

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 129,730,319$    6,134,425$      
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLICABLE TO THE SCHEDULE 
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
 
A. Scope of Presentation 

 
The accompanying schedule presents only the expenditures incurred by OCTA that are reimbursable under 
federal programs of federal financial assistance.  For the purposes of this schedule, federal financial assistance 
includes both federal financial assistance received directly from a federal agency, as well as federal funds 
received indirectly by OCTA from a non-federal agency or other organization.  Only the portion of program 
expenditures reimbursable with such federal funds is reported in the accompanying schedule.  The 
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Program expenditures in excess of the maximum federal 
reimbursement authorized or the portion of the program expenditures that were funded with state, local or 
other non-federal funds are excluded from the accompanying schedule.  Negative amounts shown on the 
schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as 
expenditures in prior years.  
 

B. Basis of Accounting 
 
Funds received under the various grant programs have been recorded within the general fund, special revenue, 
capital projects and enterprise funds of OCTA.  OCTA utilizes the modified accrual method of accounting for 
governmental funds.  The accrual basis of accounting is used for the enterprise funds.  The accompanying 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared accordingly. 
 

C. Relationship to Federal Reports 
 
Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures to Federal Awards agree with the amounts 
reported in the related federal financial reports. However, certain timing differences may exist in the 
recognition of revenues and expenses/expenditures between the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and the federal financial reports. 

 
D. Indirect Cost Rate 

 
OCTA has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

No
None reported

No

FEDERAL AWARDS

No
None reported

Unmodified

No

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.500, 20.507 and 20.526 Federal Transit Cluster

3,000,000$            
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

Identification of major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with   

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

2 CFR Section 200.516(a)?

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Type of auditors' report issued on whether the financial statements audited 

Internal control over financial reporting:

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major federal programs:

 



ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  
 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 
II.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
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None reported. 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 
III.  FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
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None reported.  
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None reported. 
 



 

Orange County Local Transportation Authority 

(A Component Unit of the Orange 
County Transportation Authority) 

 

A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  A N D   
C O M P L I A N C E  R E P O R T  

 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

tlepe
Text Box
ATTACHMENT B



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority) 

 
Audited Financial Statements 

 
 Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 
 
 

Contents 
 

 
Independent Auditors’ Report ........................................................................................................... 1 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  ......................................................................................... 3 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 Government-wide Financial Statements: 
 Statement of Net Position .................................................................................................... 10 
 Statement of Activities ......................................................................................................... 11 
 Governmental Funds Financial Statements: 
 Balance Sheet ......................................................................................................................... 12 
 Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds 
 to the Statement of Net Position .................................................................................. 13 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ........................ 14 
 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
 in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities ............. 15 
 Notes to the Financial Statements ............................................................................................. 16 
 
Required Supplementary Information (Other than Management’s Discussion and Analysis): 
 Local Transportation Authority Special Revenue Fund 
 Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Budgetary Basis) ....................................................... 32 
 Notes to Required Supplementary Information ..................................................................... 33 
 
Other Supplementary Information: 
Local Transportation Authority Debt Service Fund 
 Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Budgetary Basis) ....................................................... 34 
 
Other Reports: 
 Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
  Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ............... 35 



 

1 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT  
 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA), a component unit of the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise OCLTA's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors' Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of OCLTA, as of June 30, 2016, and the 
respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
As described in Note 10 to the financial statements, OCLTA adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, effective July 1, 2015.  Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 3-9 and the budgetary comparison information on pages 32-33, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise OCLTA's basic financial statements.  The debt service budgetary comparison schedule on page 34 is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our 
opinion, the debt service budgetary comparison schedule is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2016, on 
our consideration of OCLTA's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering OCLTA's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California 
October 31, 2016 
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As management of the Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA), we offer 
readers of the OCLTA’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the 
OCLTA’s Measure M financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  We 
encourage readers to consider the information on financial performance presented in 
conjunction with the financial statements that begin on page 10.  All amounts, unless 
otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.    

Financial Highlights 

 Total net position of the OCLTA was $542,433 and consisted of restricted net position 
of $11,994 and unrestricted net position of $530,439. 

 
 Net position increased $124,853 during fiscal year 2015-16.  This increase was 

primarily due to an increase in sales tax revenue in excess of program costs. 
  

 OCLTA’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $834,005 
an increase of $105,501 from the prior year.  The increase is primarily due to an 
increase in sales tax revenue in excess of expenditures.  

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the OCLTA’s basic 
financial statements, which are comprised of three components including government-wide 
financial statements, fund financial statements and notes to the financial statements.  This 
report also contains required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 
statements. Because the OCLTA is a governmental activity of the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA), governmental funds are used to account for its Measure 
M program activities. The basic financial statements include only the activities of the 
OCLTA.   
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the OCLTA’s finances using the accrual basis of accounting, in a manner similar 
to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the OCLTA’s assets and 
liabilities, with the difference reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in 
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the OCLTA 
is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the OCLTA’s net position 
changed during the fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
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underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows.   
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 10-11 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  Fund accounting is used to ensure 
and demonstrate compliance with Measure M finance-related legal requirements.  The 
OCLTA uses governmental funds. 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements; however, 
governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources and on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating the OCLTA’s near-term financing 
requirements. 
 
Since the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental 
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements.  As a result, readers may better understand the long-term impact 
of the OCLTA’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental funds balance sheet 
and related statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. 
 
The OCLTA maintains two individual governmental funds which are considered to be major 
funds.  Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in 
the related statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the 
OCLTA’s major governmental funds. 
 
The governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 12-15 of this report. 
 
Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 16-31 of this report. 
 
The OCLTA adopts an annual budget for its two funds.  A budgetary comparison schedule 
has been provided for the LTA special revenue fund as required supplementary information 
on page 32 and the LTA debt service fund as other supplementary information on page 34 to 
demonstrate compliance with the annual appropriated budget.  
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Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted previously, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the OCLTA’s 
financial position.  At June 30, 2016, the OCLTA’s assets exceeded liabilities and deferred 
inflows by $542,433, a $124,853 increase from June 30, 2015.  Our analysis below focuses on 
the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the OCLTA’s governmental 
activities. 
 
Current and other assets increased by $104,866 or 12% from June 30, 2015.  The substantial 
increase in cash is primarily due to the increase in sales tax revenue and a reduction in the 
grade separation program expenditures during the year. 
 
Total liabilities decreased $20,632 from June 30, 2015 primarily due to the decrease of 
unearned revenue for the grade separation projects.   
 
Unrestricted net position represents the portion of net position that is available for general 
use as specified in the M2 program.  Unrestricted net position from governmental activities 
changed from $404,929 at June 30, 2015 to $530,439 at June 30, 2016.  This increase was 
primarily due to sales tax revenue over expenses. 
 

Table 1 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority 

Net Position 
 

 Governmental Activities 
 2016 2015 
Current and other assets $  969,387 $  864,521 
Capital assets, net - 645 
 Total assets 969,387 865,166 
 
Current liabilities 

 
99,060 

 
111,879 

Long-term liabilities 327,894 335,707 
 Total liabilities 426,954 447,586 
   
Net position:   
 Net investment in capital assets - 645 
 Restricted 11,994 12,006 
 Unrestricted 530,439 404,929 
 Total net position $  542,433 $  417,580 

Governmental activities increased the OCLTA’s net position by $124,853.  Sales taxes, which 
ultimately financed a significant portion of the OCLTA’s net costs, increased by $9,381, or 
3%, from the prior year as a result of continued improvement in the economy.   
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OCLTA expenses shown on the statement of activities consist of: 
 

 Governmental Activities 
 2016 2015 
Supplies and services  $ 56,604  $ 47,618 
Contributions to other local agencies   105,824   122,625 
Infrastructure   89,240   109,824 
Depreciation expense   32   39 
Interest expense   20,927   21,223 
Transfer to other OCTA funds 16,664 28,054 
 Total expenses  $289,291  $329,383 

$ 
Total expenses decreased $40,092, or 12% from the prior year primarily due to the 
completion of many of the grade separation projects. 
 

Table 2 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority 

Changes in Net Position 
 

 Governmental Activities 
 2016 2015 
Revenues:   
Program revenues:   
 Charges for services $  204 $  911

 Operating grants and contributions  110,846 111,145 
General revenues:   
 Sales taxes 300,937 291,556 
 Unrestricted investment earnings 17,528 11,535 
 Other miscellaneous revenue 299 - 
Total revenues 429,814 415,147 
   
Expenses:   
 Measure M program 289,291 329,383 
 Indirect expense allocation 15,670 16,991 
Total expenses 304,961 346,374 

Increase in net position 124,853 68,773 

Net position – beginning 417,580 348,807 

Net position – end of year $  542,433 $  417,580 
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Financial Analysis of the OCLTA’s Funds 

As of June 30, 2016, the OCLTA’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $834,005, an increase of $105,501 compared to fiscal year 2014-15.  The majority of 
fund balances, 98%, are assigned for transportation programs related to Measure M projects.  
Fund balance of $11,994 is restricted for debt service on M2 sales tax revenue bonds issued to 
accelerate funding for M2 projects.  The remaining fund balance of $9,214 is considered 
nonspendable as the funds have been deposited with the State for condemnation deposits 
and an advance payment to the City of Fullerton for the Raymond Grade Separation project. 
 
OCLTA’s major governmental funds include the following significant changes: 
 
The LTA fund increased by $105,513, primarily due to a decrease of expenditures related to 
the completion of some of the grade separation projects in the previous fiscal year, along 
with a slight increase in sales tax revenue in excess of expenditures. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 
 
As of June 30, 2016, the OCLTA had $0 net of accumulated depreciation invested in capital 
assets including improvements and machinery.   

A summary of the OCLTA’s capital assets, net of depreciation, follows:   

 Governmental Activities 
 2016 2015 
Improvements $  - $  1,086 
Machinery 32 32 
Total capital assets 32 1,118 
Less accumulated depreciation   (32)   (473) 
 Total capital assets, net  $ -  $ 645 

More detailed information about the OCLTA’s capital assets is presented in note 6 to the 
financial statements. 

OCTA has outstanding capital expenditure commitments, the most significant of which are:  
$47,388 for the I-5 freeway widening project, $14,144 for the I-5 HOV freeway project, and 
$13,632 for the Lakeview grade separation project. 
 
Debt Administration 
 
As of June 30, 2016, the OCLTA had $325,485 in sales tax revenue bonds compared to 
$332,695 as of the prior fiscal year.  
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The OCLTA maintains an “AA+” rating from Standard & Poor’s Corporation (S&P), an 
“AA+” rating from Fitch Ratings (Fitch) and an “Aa2” rating from Moody’s Investors 
Services (Moody’s) for its M2 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds.  
 
Additional information on the OCLTA’s long-term debt can be found in note 7 to the 
financial statements, respectively. 

Economic and Other Factors 

The OCLTA includes the Measure M program half cent sales tax which has delivered on 
promises made to the residents of Orange County in 1990, with over $4 billion invested in 
improvements to freeways, streets and roads and transit services.  M1 ended March 2011, 
and collection of sales tax under M2 began in April 2011.  M2 was overwhelmingly approved 
by the voters of Orange County in 2006 because of the tangible results that were realized 
through M1.  The passage of M2 has allowed for the continuation of transportation 
improvements for 30 more years.  In an effort to expedite transportation projects, the OCTA 
Board (Board) approved the M2 Early Action Plan (EAP) in 2007, paving the way for 
financing projects in 2007 through 2012.  In July 2010 the Board approved the comprehensive 
Capital Action Plan (CAP). The CAP expanded the scope of the EAP to include other priority 
OCTA capital projects.  
 
All major elements of the Board directed EAP and CAP are nearing completion.  In 
September 2012, the Board adopted a new plan, M2020, outlining the projects and programs 
for all modes that can be accomplished between now and the year 2020. 
 
M2020 commits to meeting a total of 14 objectives in the eight-year period. In all, more than 
$5 billion in transportation improvements promised to the voters in M2 will be completed or 
under construction by 2020.  In addition, the groundwork will be laid for another $1.4 billion 
in freeway improvements by environmentally clearing all remaining projects to be shelf 
ready in the event additional federal, state, or local funding becomes available. 
 
M2020 includes freeway improvements projects, streets and roads improvement projects, 
transit capital projects, freeway environmental mitigation efforts, and environmental 
cleanup.  These and other critical capital projects will be captured in a more comprehensive 
capital program document that will continue to ensure coordinated project delivery and 
decision making with respect to resource management, funding, and procedures.   
 
The OCLTA adopted its fiscal year 2016-17 annual budget on June 13, 2016.  Approximately 
$544 million in Measure M2 funds are budgeted to improve transportation within Orange 
County.  These funds will provide improvements to freeways and streets and roads 
throughout Orange County, as well as fund rail and bus transit programs.  These funds 
include $230 million to make improvements primarily along Interstate 405, Interstate 5, State 
Route 91, State Route 55, and State Route 57.  Approximately $183 million is budgeted to 
improve streets and roads, including $53 million to fund the Local Fair Share Program, $53 
million for the Regional Capacity Program, and $50 million for the OC Bridges Project. In 
addition, the M2 transit budget includes $61 million to continue the OC Streetcar project. 
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Contacting the OCLTA’s Management 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the OCLTA’s finances for 
all those with an interest in the OCLTA’s finances and to demonstrate OCLTA accountability 
for the money it receives.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Finance and 
Administration Division of the Orange County Transportation Authority, 550 South Main 
Street, P.O. Box 14184, Orange, California  92863-1584. 
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(amounts expressed in thousands)
Governmental 

Activities

Assets
Cash and investments 832,066$                   
Receivables:

Interest 1,526                         
Operating grants 14,823                       
Other 2,060                         

Due from other governments 109,698                     
Condemnation deposits 714                            
Other assets 8,500                         

Total Assets 969,387                     

Liabilities
Accounts payable 32,578                       
Accrued interest payable 7,965                         
Due to other OCTA funds 4,866                         
Due to other governments 21,432                       
Unearned revenue 29,011                       
Other liabilities 20                              
Advance from other OCTA funds 3,188                         
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 7,475                         
Due in more than one year 320,419                     

Total Liabilities 426,954                     

Net Position
Restricted for:

Debt service 11,994                       
Unrestricted 530,439                     

Total Net Position 542,433$                   
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Program Revenues

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 

Changes in Net 
Position

(amounts expressed in thousands) Expenses

Indirect 
Expense 

Allocation
Charges for 

Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions
Governmental 

Activities

Program governmental activities:
Measure M program 289,291$      15,670$          204$              110,846$             (193,911)$            
Total governmental activities 289,291        15,670            204                110,846               (193,911)              

General revenues:
   Sales taxes 300,937               
   Unrestricted investment earnings 17,528                 
Other miscellaneous revenue 299                      
Total general revenues 318,764               

Change in net position 124,853               

Net position - beginning 417,580               

Net position - ending 542,433$             
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(amounts expressed in thousands) LTA
LTA Debt 

Service
Total

 OCLTA

Assets
Cash and investments 820,074$          11,992$            832,066$          
Receivables:

Interest 1,524                2                       1,526                
Operating grants 14,823              -                    14,823              
Other 2,060                -                    2,060                

Due from other governments 107,098            -                    107,098            
Condemnation deposits 714                   -                    714                   
Other assets 8,500                -                    8,500                

Total Assets 954,793$          11,994$            966,787$          

Liabilities
Accounts payable 32,578$            -$                  32,578$            
Due to other OCTA funds 4,866                -                    4,866                
Due to other governments 21,432              -                    21,432              
Unearned revenue 29,011              -                    29,011              
Other liabilities 20                     -                    20                     
Advance from OCTA 3,188                -                    3,188                

Total Liabilities 91,095              -                    91,095              

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - grant reimbursements 41,687              -                    41,687              

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 41,687              -                    41,687              

Fund Balances
Nonspendable:

Condemnation deposits 714                   -                    714                   
Other assets 8,500                -                    8,500                

Restricted for:
Debt service -                    11,994              11,994              

Assigned to:
Transportation programs 812,797            -                    812,797            

Total Fund Balances 822,011            11,994              834,005            

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
 and Fund Balances 954,793$          11,994$            966,787$          
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(amounts expressed in thousands)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (page 10) are different because:

Total fund balances (page 12) 834,005$              

Interest receivable on the Build America Bonds is not reported in the funds. 2,600                    

Earned but unavailable revenue is not available to liquidate current liabilities 
and, therefore, is reported as a deferred inflow of resources in the funds. 41,687                  

Interest payable on bonds outstanding is not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, is not reported in the funds. (7,965)                   

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (327,894)               

Net position of governmental activities (page 10) 542,433$              
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(amounts expressed in thousands) LTA
LTA Debt 

Service Total OCLTA

Revenues
Sales taxes 300,937$             -$                     300,937$             
Contributions from other agencies 93,316                 -                       93,316                 
Interest 11,023                 6,501                   17,524                 
Miscellaneous 504                      -                       504                      

Total Revenues 405,780               6,501                   412,281               

Expenditures
Current:

General government:
Supplies and services 72,274                 -                       72,274                 

Transportation:
Contributions to other local agencies 105,824               -                       105,824               

Capital outlay 89,240                 -                       89,240                 
Debt service:

Principal payments on long-term debt -                       7,210                   7,210                   
Interest 30                        21,584                 21,614                 

Total Expenditures 267,368               28,794                 296,162               
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 138,412               (22,293)                116,119               

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 6,513                   28,794                 35,307                 
Transfers out (28,794)                (6,513)                  (35,307)                
Transfers to OCTA (10,618)                -                       (10,618)                

Total other financing sources (uses) (32,899)                22,281                 (10,618)                

Net change in fund balances 105,513               (12)                       105,501               

Fund balances - beginning 716,498               12,006                 728,504               

Fund balances - ending 822,011$             11,994$               834,005$             
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(amounts expressed in thousands)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (page 11) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 14) 105,501$              

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation and amortization expense.  This is the amount by which 
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. (32)                       

Transfer assets held for resale to the OCTA General Fund (6,046)                   

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenue in the funds. 17,534                  

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes
current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net position.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, 
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred 
and amortized in the statement of activities.  This amount is the net effect of these 
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 7,896                    

Change in net position of governmental activities (page 11) 124,853$              
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Reporting Entity 

In November 1990, Orange County voters approved the Revised Traffic Improvement and 
Growth Management Ordinance, known as Measure M.  This implemented a one-half of one 
percent retail transaction and use tax to fund a specific program of transportation 
improvements in Orange County.  The Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
(OCLTA) is responsible for administering the proceeds of the Measure M sales tax program.  
The original Measure M Program (M1) commenced on April 1, 1991 for a period of 20 years.   

On November 7, 2006, Orange County voters approved the renewal of Measure M for a 
period of 30 more years from April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2041.  Renewed Measure M (M2) 
allocates funds to freeway, street and road, transit, and environmental improvements. 

On June 20, 1991, under the authority of Senate Bill 838, the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) was formed as a special district by merging several agencies and funds, 
including the OCLTA, a component unit of the OCTA.  Accordingly, the OCLTA’s financial 
activities are included with the financial activities of the OCTA for financial reporting 
purposes. 

The OCTA governing board (Board) consists of 17 voting members and one non-voting 
member and also serves as the OCLTA governing board.  Measure M requires that an 11 
member Taxpayer’s Oversight Committee (TOC) monitor the use of Measure M funds and 
ensures that all revenues collected from Measure M is spent on voter-approved 
transportation projects. 

These financial statements include only the activities of the OCLTA, a component unit of the 
OCTA.  These financial statements are not intended to present the activities of the OCTA. 

Basis of Presentation 

The OCLTA’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a 
statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements that 
provide a more detailed level of financial information. 

Government-wide Statements:  The statement of net position and the statement of activities 
report information on all of the OCLTA.  The effect of significant interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements.  The OCLTA provides only governmental activities which 
are supported principally by sales taxes. 
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The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the OCLTA Measure M 
program expenses are offset by program revenues.  Program expenses include direct 
expenses, which are clearly identifiable with Measure M, and allocated indirect expenses.  
Interest expense related to the sales tax revenue bonds and commercial paper is reported as 
a direct expense of the Measure M program.  The borrowings are considered essential to the 
creation or continuing existence of the Measure M program.  For the year ended June 30, 
2016, interest expense of $20,927 was included in Measure M program costs.  Program 
revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from services or privileges provided by Measure M; and 2) grants and contributions 
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of the Measure M 
program.  Taxes and other items are not reported as program revenues and instead are 
reported as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the 
OCLTA’s governmental funds.  The OCLTA considers all of its Measure M funds as major 
governmental funds.  They are comprised of the following: 

 Local Transportation Authority (LTA) Fund - This fund is the general operating fund for the 
OCLTA and accounts for revenues received and expenditures made for the 
implementation of the Orange County Traffic Improvement and Growth Management 
Plan.  Financing is provided by a one-half percent sales and use tax assessed for 20 years 
pursuant to Measure M, which became effective April 1, 1991, and was renewed for an 
additional 30 years from April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2041.  The Measure M ordinance 
requires that sales tax revenues only be expended on projects included in the ordinance.  
A decision to use the revenues for any other purpose must be put to the voters in 
another election. 

 LTA Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments 
made for principal and interest on long-term debt of the OCLTA. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting  

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when 
earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.   

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the OCLTA considers revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of the fiscal period.  Expenditures 
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred; however, principal and interest 
expenditures on long-term debt of governmental funds are recorded only when payment is 
due. 
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Those revenues susceptible to accrual are sales taxes collected and held by the state at  
year-end on behalf of the OCLTA, intergovernmental revenues and interest revenue.  In 
applying the susceptible-to-accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, there are 
essentially two types of revenues.  In one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose 
or project before any amounts will be paid to the OCLTA; therefore, revenues are recognized 
based upon the expenditures incurred.  In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted and 
are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed requirements.  These 
resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt, or earlier if the susceptible-to-
accrual criteria are met. 

Cash and Investments 

The OCLTA maintains cash and investments in a pool with other OCTA cash and 
investments and in accordance with the Investment Policy (Policy) originally adopted by the 
Board on May 8, 1995, and most recently amended June 13, 2016.  The Policy complies with, 
or is more restrictive than, the California Government Code (Code).  Separate investment 
manager accounts are maintained for the proceeds of bond issues, with the earnings for each 
bond issue accounted for separately.  Pooled cash and investment earnings are allocated 
based on average daily dollar account balances. 

OCTA holds investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. OCTA 
categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The fair value hierarchy, which has 
three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value:  Level 1 
inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are inputs-other 
than quoted prices included in Level 1 - that are observable including quoted prices for 
similar assets in active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets 
that are not active; Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs.  OCTA’s leveled investments are 
measured using Level 2 inputs. 

Investments in U.S. government and U.S. agency securities, medium term notes, repurchase 
agreements, variable and floating rate securities, mortgage and asset-backed securities, and 
corporate notes are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices, except for money 
market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts with a 
remaining maturity of one year or less at purchase date, which are carried at amortized cost 
which approximates fair value.  The Orange County Investment Pool (OCIP) is carried at fair 
value based on the value of each participating dollar as provided by the OCIP.  The state-
managed Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is carried at fair value based on the value of 
each participating dollar as provided by LAIF.   

The Policy requires that assets in the portfolio consist of the following investments, with 
maximum permissible concentrations based on book value, and may be more restrictive than 
applicable state statutes for the following investment types: OCTA notes and bonds, U.S. 
treasuries, federal instrumentality securities, federal agencies, State of California and local 
agency obligations, banker’s acceptance, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, 
repurchase agreements, medium-term maturity corporate securities, money market funds, 
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other mutual funds, mortgage or asset-backed securities, LAIF, OCIP, variable and floating 
rate securities and bank deposits.  Investment agreements are also allowed for bond issues. 

Interfund Transactions 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds 
involving goods provided or services rendered and transfers of revenues from funds 
authorized to receive the revenue to funds authorized to expend it.  Outstanding interfund 
balances are reported as due to/from other funds.  Any residual balances outstanding 
between the Measure M program governmental activities and other OCTA funds are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as due to/from other OCTA funds. 

OCTA allocates indirect costs related to administrative services from certain funds to 
benefiting funds.  For fiscal year 2015-16, $15,670 of administrative services were charged to 
the OCLTA and are reported as general government expenditures in the governmental 
funds. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets including land, right-of-way improvements, and machinery and equipment, 
are reported in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the 
OCLTA as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5 and a useful life exceeding 
one year.  Assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 
constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the acquisition date.  
Prior to fiscal year 2015-16, donated capital assets were recorded at estimated fair value at 
the date of donation.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of an asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized. 

Freeway construction and certain purchases of right-of-way property, for which title vests 
with the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), are included in capital outlay.  
Infrastructure consisting primarily of freeway construction and right-of-way acquisition is 
not recorded as a capital asset in those instances where the OCLTA does not intend to 
maintain or operate the property when complete. 

Right-of-way improvements and machinery and equipment are depreciated using the 
straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Type Useful Life 
Right-of-way improvements 10-30 years 

Machinery and equipment 3-10 years 
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Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element; 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a 
future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then.   

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period 
and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. OCLTA has 
one type of deferred inflow, unavailable revenue which occurs only under a modified 
accrual basis of accounting.  Accordingly, the item is reported only in the governmental 
funds balance sheet.  The governmental funds report unavailable revenues for grant 
reimbursements.  The amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the 
period that the amounts become available. 

Long-Term Debt 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt is reported as a liability in the 
statement of net position.  Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over 
the life of the bonds using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest 
method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.   

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and 
discounts in the current period.  The face amount of debt is reported as other financing 
sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or 
not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 

Contributions to Other Agencies 

Contributions to other agencies primarily represent sales tax revenues received by the 
OCLTA and disbursed to cities for competitive projects, the local fair share program, and the 
senior mobility program, and to other agencies for projects which are in accordance with the 
Measure M ordinance. 

Net Position 

In the government-wide financial statements, net position represents the difference between 
assets, liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows and is classified into three categories: 

 Net investment in capital assets - This balance reflects the net position of the OCLTA that is 
invested in capital assets.  This net position is generally not accessible for other purposes. 
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 Restricted net position - This balance represents net position that is not accessible for 
general use because use is subject to restrictions enforceable by third parties.  The 
government-wide statement of net position reports net position restricted by external 
parties for debt service. 

 Unrestricted net position – This balance represents the net position that is available for 
general use as specified in the Measure M program. 

Fund Balances 

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications 
that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the OCLTA is bound 
to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts can be spent. 

The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 

 Nonspendable – amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable 
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

 Restricted – amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of 
other governments. 

 Assigned – amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes.  This classification also 
includes residual amounts assigned for specific projects.  The Board establishes and 
modifies assignments of fund balance through the adoption of the budget and 
subsequent budget amendments.  The Board retains the authority to assign fund balance. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the OCLTA’s 
policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  
When using unrestricted fund balance amounts, the OCLTA applies the default established 
by GASB 54, whereby the committed amounts would be reduced first followed by the 
assigned amounts. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period.  As such, actual 
results could differ from those estimates.   
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2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and 
the Government-wide Statement of Net Position 

The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balances - 
total governmental funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the 
government-wide statement of net position. 

One element of that reconciliation explains that “Long-term liabilities, including bonds 
payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the 
funds.”  The details of this $(327,894) difference are as follows: 

Bonds payable $ (325,485) 
Plus unamortized bond issuance premium (to be amortized to interest 

expense) 
 

(2,409)  
Net adjustment to decrease fund balances - total governmental funds to 
arrive at net position - governmental activities 

 
$ (327,894) 

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Funds Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide 
Statement of Activities 

The governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 
and change in net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of activities.   

One element of that reconciliation states that “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) 
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the 
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.  
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position.  Also, governmental funds 
report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas 
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.”  The details of this 
$7,896 difference are as follows: 

Bonds payable $ 7,210 
Change in accrued interest 83 
Amortization of premium 603 
Net adjustment to increase net change in fund balances - total 
governmental funds to arrive at change in net position - governmental 
activities 

 
 

$ 7,896 
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3. Cash and Investments 

Cash and investments are comprised of the following at June 30, 2016:  

Investments:  
 With OCTA Commingled Investment Pool $  774,989 
 With Trustee 57,077 
  
Total cash and investments $  832,066 

Total deposits and investments are reported in the financial statements as: 

Cash and Investments $  832,066 
  
Total Cash and Investments $  832,066 

As of June 30, 2016, OCLTA had the following investments: 

 
 

Investment 

 
 

Fair 
Value 

 
 
 

Principal 

 
 

Interest Rate 
Range 

 
 
 

Yield 

 
 

Maturity 
Range 

Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 
(Years) 

OCTA Commingled 
Investment Pool 

 
$774,989 

 
$771,748 

Discount  
.001%-8.75% 

.010% - 
2.674% 

7/1/16-
6/30/21 

 
1.99 

Money Market Funds * 
 

57,077 
 

57,077 
 

Variable 
.220%-
.250% 

 
7/1/16 

 
1 Day 

       
Total Investments $832,066 $828,825     

Portfolio Weighted Average 
Maturity 

   
 

 
 

1.90 

 * Money Market Funds are measured at amortized cost which approximates fair value. 

The Interest Rate Range for the OCTA Commingled Investment Pool represents the interest 
rate ranges of the investments within the pool. 

As of June 30, 2016, OCLTA had $774,989 invested in the OCTA’s commingled investment 
Pool (CIP). Refer to the OCTA Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for details 
on valuation techniques and fair value hierarchy, interest rate risk, variable rate notes and 
custodial credit risk.  Deposits and withdrawals in OCTA’s CIP are made on the basis of 
$1.00 (absolute dollars) and not fair value.  Accordingly, the OCLTA’s investment in OCTA’s 
CIP at June 30, 2016 is uncategorized, not defined as Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3 input. 
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Credit Risk 

The Policy sets minimum acceptable credit ratings for investments from any of the three 
NRSROs: S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch.  For an issuer of short-term debt, the rating must be no 
less than A-1 (S&P), P-1 (Moody’s), or F-1 (Fitch), while an issuer of long-term debt shall be 
rated no less than an “A” by two of the three rating services.  The OCTA Commingled 
Investment Pool is not rated. 

The following is a summary of the credit quality distribution and concentration of credit risk 
by investment type as a percentage of each pool’s fair value at June 30, 2016.  (NR means Not 
Rated, US means obligation of the United States (U.S.) government or obligations explicitly 
guaranteed by the U. S. government): 

 
Investments 

 
S&P 

 
Moody’s 

 
Fitch 

% of 
Portfolio 

OCTA Commingled 
 Investment Pool 

 
NR 

 
NR 

 
NR 

 
93.14% 

Held by Trustee:     
Money Market Funds AAAm Aaa AAA 6.86% 
 
Total 

    
100.00% 

4. Due From/To Other Governments 

Amounts due from other governments as of June 30, 2016 in the fund statements are 
$107,098 and are comprised of $54,368 of sales taxes and $52,730 of project reimbursements.  
An additional $2,600 is included in the government-wide statements representing the 
interest receivable on Build America Bonds (see note 7).  

Amounts due to other governments as of June 30, 2016 are $21,432 and are comprised of 
$20,551 for transportation projects and $881 for other miscellaneous transactions. 

5. Related Party Transactions and Interfund Transfers 

Related party transactions: 

As of June 30, 2016, OCLTA owes $4,866 to other OCTA funds as follows: 

 Amount Explanation 
   

General Fund $  514 Placentia Rail Station, ARTIC 
OCUTT 49 Local Fair Share funds withheld 

from City of Placentia 
Capital Project Fund 4,303 OC Streetcar project 
Total $ 4,866  
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During fiscal year 2015-16, transfers of $10,618 from OCLTA to OCTA were made to fund 
the OC Streetcar project, and for the M2 fare stabilization and senior mobility programs.   

OCTA advanced monies to OCLTA to cover expenditures such as election costs, 
administrative costs, and accrued interest.  Interest accrues monthly at an interest rate 
representing OCTA’s rate of return on short-term investments, adjusted each July (0.77% for 
fiscal year 2015-16).  As of June 30, 2016, OCLTA owes OCTA $3,188.  

OCLTA transferred Assets Held for Resale, related to the freeway program, to the General 
Fund in conjunction with the closing of the M1 program. 

Interfund Transfers: 

During fiscal year 2015-16, the LTA Fund transferred $28,794 to the LTA Debt Service Fund 
for debt service payments.  Additionally, the LTA Debt Service Fund transferred $6,513 in 
excess interest earnings to the LTA Fund. 

6. Capital Assets      

Capital assets activity for the OCLTA governmental activities for the year ended  
June 30, 2016 was as follows:  

 Beginning 
Balance 

 
Increases 

 
Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

     
Capital assets, being depreciated:     

Right-of-way improvements $ 1,086 $  - $  1,086 $  - 
Machinery and equipment 32 - - 32 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated 

 
1,118 

 
- 

 
1,086 

 
32 

     Less accumulated depreciation for:     
 Right-of-way improvements (443) (30) (473) - 
Machinery and equipment (30) (2) - (32) 

Total accumulated depreciation (473) (32) (473) (32) 
Total Measure M capital assets, 

being depreciated, net 
 

645 
 

(32) 
 

613 
 

- 

Total Measure M capital assets, net $  645 $ (32) $  613 $  - 

Depreciation expense charged to the Measure M program was $32.   
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7. Long-Term Debt 

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

On December 9, 2010, OCLTA issued $293,540 in Measure M2 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, 
2010 Series A (Taxable Build America Bonds) and $59,030 in 2010 Series B (Tax-Exempt 
Bonds), to finance and refinance the costs of certain transportation projects located in Orange 
County, to restructure the Tax Exempt Commercial Paper (TECP) Program, and to fund 
capitalized interest and costs of issuance related to the 2010 Series Bonds.  A reserve fund is 
not required in connection with the 2010 Series Bonds per the bond indenture.  The 
transaction closed on December 23, 2010.  A total of $75,000 was used to refund outstanding 
TECP.  The Measure M sales tax is the source of revenue for repaying this debt. 

A summary of the bonds outstanding is as follows: 
 2010 Series A 

(Taxable Build 
America Bonds) 

2010 Series B 
(Tax-Exempt 

Bonds) 
   Issuance date  12/9/10 12/9/10 

   
Original issue amount $ 293,540 $ 59,030 
Original issue premium - 6,023 
Net bond proceeds $  293,540 $ 65,053 

   
Issuance costs $   1,905 $   274 
Interest rates 5.56% - 6.91% 3.00% - 5.00% 
Maturity range 2021-2041 2014-2020 
Final maturity 2041 2020 
   
Bonds outstanding $ 293,540 $ 31,945 
Plus unamortized premium -  2,409 
Total $  293,540 $ 34,354 

Annual debt service requirements on the sales tax revenue bonds as of June 30, 2016, are as 
follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest 
   
2017 $ 7,475 $ 21,317 
2018 7,775 21,018 
2019 8,165 20,629 
2020 8,530 20,263 
2021 8,915 19,879 
2022-2026 49,960 91,104 
2027-2031 61,800 72,890 
2032-2036 76,975 49,539 
2037-2041 95,890 20,454 
   Total $ 325,485 $ 337,093  
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows: 

 Beginning 
Balance 

 
Additions 

 
Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Due within 
one year 

Measure M program activities:      
      Sales tax revenue bonds $ 332,695 $  - $  7,210 $ 325,485 $ 7,475 
Unamortized premium 3,012 - 603 2,409 - 
Total Measure M program 

activities long-term liabilities 
 

$ 335,707 

 
$  - 

 
$  7,813 

 
$ 327,894 

 
$ 7,475 

Pledged Revenue 

OCLTA has debt issuances outstanding that are repaid and secured by the pledging of 
certain revenues.  The amount and terms of the debt commitments are indicated in the bonds 
outstanding table found on pages 26.  The purposes for which the proceeds of the debt 
issuances were utilized are disclosed in the debt description located on pages 26.   

For the year ended June 30, 2016, debt service payments as a percentage of the pledged gross 
revenue net of the local fair share program and other expenses as required by the debt 
agreement, are indicated in the following table: 

 
Description of 
Pledged Revenue 

Annual Amount 
of Net Pledged 

Revenue 

Annual Debt 
Service 

Payments 

Pledged 
Revenue 

Coverage 

Measure M2 Net Sales Tax Revenue $ 237,151 $ 22,324* 10.62 

 
*OCLTA received $6,469 in Build America Bonds subsidy to offset annual debt service 
payments for Measure M2 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds.   

8. Commitments and Contingencies 

Purchase Commitments 

The OCLTA has various long-term outstanding contracts that extend over several years and 
rely on future years’ revenues.  Total commitments at June 30, 2016, were $537,043, the 
majority of which relate to the expansion of Orange County’s freeway and road systems, 
grade separation projects, and the engineering of a rapid connection fixed guideway transit 
system. 
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Federal Grants 

The OCLTA receives federal grants for transportation projects and other reimbursable 
activities which are subject to audit by the grantor agency.  Although the outcome of any 
such audits cannot be predicted, it is management’s opinion that these audits would not 
have a material effect on the OCLTA’s financial position or changes in financial position. 

9. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 

In the LTA Debt Service Fund, expenditures exceeded appropriations for transfers out for 
$6,513.  During the year, an analysis was done on amounts required to be maintained in the 
custodian account.  It was determined that there was an excess of funds in the account.  That 
amount was transferred to the LTA Fund.  An analysis will be scheduled annually during 
the budget development process and a corresponding budget transfer will be included as 
part of the budget, if necessary. 

10. Effect of New Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 72 

In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.   
This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value 
measurements. The definition of fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. It is considered to be the exit price. This Statement provides guidance for 
determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes. This Statement also 
provides guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to 
all fair value measurements. This Statement is effective for OCLTA’s fiscal year ending June 
30, 2016. See notes 1 and 3. 

GASB Statement No. 73 

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and 
Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. The objective of this 
Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about pensions included in the general 
purpose external financial reports of state and local governments for making decisions and 
assessing accountability. This Statement establishes requirements for defined benefit 
pensions that are not within the scope of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions, as well as for the assets accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions. 
In addition, it establishes requirements for defined contribution pensions that are not within 
the scope of Statement 68. It also amends certain provisions of Statement No. 67, Financial 
Reporting for Pension Plans, and Statement 68 for pension plans and pensions that are within 
their respective scopes. This Statement is effective in two phases for periods beginning after 
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June 15, 2015 and June 15, 2016.  However, OCTA decided to early implement the provisions 
effective next fiscal year.  This statement does not apply to OCLTA. 

GASB Statement No. 74 

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. The objective of this Statement is to improve the 
usefulness of information about postemployment benefits other than pensions (other 
postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose external financial 
reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing 
accountability. This Statement replaces Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB 
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. It also includes 
requirements for defined contribution OPEB plans that replace the requirements for those 
OPEB plans in Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note 
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, as amended, Statement 43, and Statement No. 50, 
Pension Disclosures. This statement is effective for OCLTA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2017.  
Management has not determined the effect of this statement.  

GASB Statement No. 75 

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The primary objective of this Statement is to 
improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for 
postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It 
also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about 
financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement replaces the 
requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by 
Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new 
accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans. This statement is effective 
for OCLTA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.  Management has not determined the effect of 
this statement. 

GASB Statement No. 76 

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments. The objective of this Statement is to 
identify—in the context of the current governmental financial reporting environment—the 
hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The “GAAP hierarchy” 
consists of the sources of accounting principles used to prepare financial statements of state 
and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and the framework for selecting 
those principles. This Statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of 
authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in 
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the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not specified 
within a source of authoritative GAAP. This Statement supersedes Statement No. 55, The 
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments. This 
statement is effective for OCLTA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.  OCLTA has determined 
that this Statement does not have a material impact on the financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 77 

In August 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. The objective of 
this Statement is to provide financial statement users with essential information about the 
nature and magnitude of the reduction in tax revenues through tax abatement programs in 
order to better assess (a) whether current-year revenues were sufficient to pay for current-
year services, (b) compliance with finance-related legal or contractual requirements, (c) 
where a government’s financial resources come from and how it uses them, and (d) financial 
position and economic condition and how they have changed over time. This statement is 
effective for OCLTA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2017.  Management has not determined the 
effect of this statement. 

GASB Statement No. 78 

In December 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain 
Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans. The objective of this Statement is to 
address a practice issue regarding the scope and applicability of Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The Statement amends the scope and 
applicability of GASB Statement No. 68 to exclude certain types of cost-sharing multiple-
employer plans.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2015. This statement is effective for OCLTA’s fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2017.  However, OCTA decided to early implement the provisions effective 
next fiscal year.  This statement does not apply to OCLTA. 

GASB Statement No. 79 

In December 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and 
Pool Participants. This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain 
external investment pools and pool participants. It establishes criteria for an external 
investment pool to qualify for making the election to measure all of its investments at 
amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. If an external investment pool meets the 
criteria in this Statement and measures all of its investments at amortized cost, the pool’s 
participants also should measure their investments in that external investment pool at 
amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. This statement is effective for OCLTA’s 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.  OCLTA has determined that this Statement does not have a 
material impact on the financial statements. 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Notes to The Financial Statements  
 
Year Ended June 30, 2016 
(in thousands) 
 
 

31 

GASB Statement No. 80 

In January 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain 
Component Units – An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14.  This Statement improves 
financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements for certain 
component units. This Statement amends the blending requirements for the financial 
statement presentation of component units of all state and local governments. The additional 
criterion requires blending of a component unit incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation 
in which the primary government is the sole corporate member. This Statement is effective 
for OCLTA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2017.  Management has not determined the effect of 
this statement. 

GASB Statement No. 81 

In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements.  
The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for 
irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance 
for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement. This Statement is 
effective for OCLTA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.  Management has not determined the 
effect of this statement. 

GASB Statement No. 82 

In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues—an amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73. The objective of this Statement is to address certain 
issues related to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions 
and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to 
Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. The issues addressed by this Statement are 
related to the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary 
information. In addition, this Statement addresses the selection of assumptions and the 
treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial 
reporting purposes, and the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy 
employee (plan member) contribution requirements. The Statement is effective for the 
reporting period beginning after June 15, 2016.  However, OCTA decided to early implement 
this Statement.  This statement does not apply to OCLTA. 
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Budgeted Amounts

(amounts expressed in thousands) Original Final
Actual 

Amounts
Variance with 
Final Budget

Revenues:
Sales taxes 310,127$             310,127$             300,937$            (9,190)$                
Contributions from other agencies 70,173                 75,773                 130,614              54,841                 
Interest 3,430                   3,430                   11,023                7,593                   
Miscellaneous 102                      102                      504                     402                      

Total revenues 383,832               389,432               443,078              53,646                 

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 171,669               173,174               118,722              54,452                 
Transportation:

Contributions to other local agencies 154,279               159,475               105,829              53,646                 
Capital outlay 170,749               170,749               106,494              64,255                 
Debt service:

Interest on long-term debt and 
commercial paper -                       -                       30                       (30)                       

Total expenditures 496,697               503,398               331,075              172,323               
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (112,865)              (113,966)              112,003              225,969               

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                       -                       6,513                  6,513                   
Transfers from OCTA 13,153                 13,153                 -                      (13,153)                
Transfers out (22,300)                (22,302)                (28,794)               (6,492)                  
Transfers to OCTA (46,597)                (46,595)                (10,618)               35,977                 

Total other financing uses (55,744)                (55,744)                (32,899)               22,845                 

Net change in fund balance (168,609)$            (169,710)$            79,104$              248,814$             

Reconciliation to GAAP:
    Net change in fund balance (budgetary basis) 79,104$              

Less:  Estimated revenues for encumbrances outstanding at June 30 37,298                
Add:  Current year encumbrances outstanding at June 30 63,707                

    Net change in fund balance (GAAP basis) 105,513$            
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1. Budgetary Data 
 
The OCLTA establishes accounting control through formal adoption of an annual operating 
budget for the LTA and the debt service governmental funds. The budget is prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) except 
for multi-year contracts, for which the entire amount of the contract is budgeted and 
encumbered in the year of execution.  The adopted budget can be amended by the Board to 
increase both appropriations and estimated revenues as unforeseen circumstances come to 
management’s attention.  Budgeted expenditure amounts represent original appropriations 
adjusted for supplemental appropriations during the year.  Division heads are authorized to 
approve appropriation transfers within major objects subject to approval by the Finance and 
Administration Division.  Major objects are defined as Salaries and Benefits, Supplies and 
Services and Capital Outlay.  Appropriation transfers between major objects require approval 
of the Board.  Accordingly, the legal level of budgetary control, that is the level that 
expenditures cannot exceed appropriations, for budgeted funds, is at the major object level 
for the budgeted governmental funds.  A Fourth Quarter Budget Status Report, June 2016 is 
available from the OCTA Finance and Administration Division.  With the exception of 
accounts which have been encumbered, appropriations lapse at year end. 

There were no excess of expenditures over appropriations for fiscal year 2015-16. 



Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
(A Component Unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority) 

 
Other Supplementary Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – LTA Debt Service Fund (Budgetary Basis) 
Year Ended June 30, 2016 
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Budgeted Amounts

(amounts expressed in thousands) Original Final
Actual 

Amounts
Variance with 
Final Budget

Revenues:
Interest 6,494$                 6,494$                 6,501$                7$                        

Total revenues 6,494                   6,494                   6,501                  7                          

Expenditures:
Debt service:

Principal payments on long-term debt 7,210                   7,210                   7,210                  -                       
Interest on long-term debt 21,584                 21,584                 21,584                -                       

Total expenditures 28,794                 28,794                 28,794                -                       
Deficiency of revenues

under expenditures (22,300)                (22,300)                (22,293)               7                          

Other financing sources:
Transfers in 22,300                 22,300                 28,794                6,494                   
Transfers out -                       -                       (6,513)                 (6,513)                  

Total other financing sources 22,300                 22,300                 22,281                (19)                       

Net change in fund balance -$                     -$                     (12)$                    (12)$                     
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards  issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Orange County Local 
Transportation Authority (OCLTA), a component unit of the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise OCLTA's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2016.  Our report included an emphasis of matter 
regarding OCLTA's adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value 
Measurement and Application, effective July 1, 2015. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered OCLTA's internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
OCLTA's internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of OCLTA’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in 
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on 
a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies.  Given 
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether OCLTA's financial statements are free from material misstatement, 
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance.  This report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal 
control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California 
October 31, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Local Transportation Fund (LTF), a special 
revenue fund of the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, 
and the related notes to the financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the LTF, as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
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Emphasis of Matter  
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the LTF and do not purport to, and do not, present 
fairly the financial position of OCTA as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in its financial position thereof for the 
year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, the LTF adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, effective July 1, 2015.  Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that budgetary comparison 
information on pages 9-10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the basic 
financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise LTF’s financial statements.  The Schedule of Disbursements (Schedule) is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a 
whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2016, on 
our consideration of OCTA’s internal control over financial reporting, as it relates to the LTF, and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering OCTA’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance, as it relates 
to the LTF.  
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California  
October 31, 2016 
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ASSETS
Cash and Investments 14,398,863$        
Interest Receivable 3,560

   Due from Other Governments (Note 3) 28,240,932
Total Assets 42,643,355$        

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governments (Note 4) 650,261$             
Due to Other Funds (Note 5) 14,162,835

Total Liabilities 14,813,096          

FUND BALANCE
Restricted:

Transportation Programs 27,830,259          
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 42,643,355$        

 



ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND 

 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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REVENUE
Local Transportation Sales Tax Allocations 156,974,445$      
Investment Income 48,656
Miscellaneous 8,979

Total Revenues 157,032,080        

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Supplies and Services 2,128,022
Contributions to Other Agencies 2,285,055

Total Expenditures 4,413,077            

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 152,619,003        

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers to Other OCTA Funds (Note 6) (152,834,891)

Net Change in Fund Balance (215,888)              

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 28,046,147
Fund Balance, End of Year 27,830,259$        
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The Local Transportation Fund (LTF) is a special revenue fund of the Orange County Transportation Authority 
(OCTA).  The LTF financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly, the financial position of 
OCTA, as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  This fund is used to account for 
revenues received and expenditures made for certain transit projects within Orange County. 
 
The LTF was created by the Transportation Development Act (TDA) for specific transportation purposes.  
Revenues to the LTF are derived from a ¼ cent state sales and use tax.  The ¼ cent is returned by the State Board 
of Equalization (SBOE) to each county according to the amount of tax collected in that county. 
 
The Orange County Transit District (OCTD) of OCTA is a transit operator and OCTA is the regional 
Transportation Planning Agency (TPA) for the County of Orange, California (County).  Annually, the TPA 
determines each area's apportionment of LTF revenues.  Generally, County LTF revenues are apportioned by 
population.  Where there is a transit operator, separate apportionments are made to areas within and outside the 
district.  Once funds are apportioned, they are only available for allocation to claimants in that area.  Payments 
from the LTF are made by the County Auditor-Controller in accordance with allocation instructions issued by 
OCTA. 
 
Article 3 of the TDA stipulates that, based on the County's population of more than 500,000, OCTA is eligible to 
receive LTF revenues solely for claims for the following, which are allocated in specific priority order: 
administration, planning and programming; Section 99234 of Article 3, which are claims for pedestrian and 
bicycle facilities; Article 4, which are for general transit operations and services; and Article 4.5, which are claims 
for community transit services. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of the LTF are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to 
governmental units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting 
body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles for governmental units. 
 
Fund Accounting 
 
The LTF activities and transactions are recorded and accounted for in a special revenue fund of OCTA.  Special 
revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are usually required by law or 
administrative regulation to be accounted for in separate funds.  The LTF accounts for revenues received and 
expenditures made for certain transit projects within Orange County.  Financing is generated from a ¼ cent state 
sales and use tax pursuant to the TDA.  Expenditures of these monies must be made in accordance with TDA 
provisions.  A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting entity wherein operations of each fund are 
accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing accounts that record resources, related liabilities, and equity 
segregated for the purpose of carrying out specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with 
special regulations, restrictions, or limitations.   
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED) 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The LTF financial statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are accrued when they become both measurable and available.  
Measurable means that amounts can be estimated or otherwise determined.  Available means collectible within 
the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.  Revenues are 
considered available if they are collected within 90 days of year end.  Expenditures are recorded when the 
liability is incurred.  Liabilities are considered current when they are expected to be liquidated with available 
financial resources. 
 
Cash and Investments 
 
The LTF maintains its deposits in the Orange County Investment Pool (OCIP), as required by State statute.  
Oversight of the OCIP is performed by the Orange County Treasury Oversight Committee.  The LTF categorizes 
the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by generally accepted 
accounting principles.  The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  As of 
June 30, 2016, the LTF held no individual investments.  All funds are invested in OCIP.  
 
In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value hierarchy, fair 
value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
valuation.  The LTF’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements require 
judgment and considers factors specific to each asset or liability.   
 
Deposits and withdrawals are made on the basis of $1 and not fair value.  Accordingly, the LTF’s investment in 
the OCIP at June 30, 2016 of $14,398,863 is uncategorized, not defined as a Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3 input.   
 
Investment income earned by the pooled cash and investments in the OCIP is allocated based on average cash and 
investment balance. 
 
For information on cash and investment disclosures relating to LTF's deposits in the OCIP, please see OCTA's 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  
Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED) 
 
Fund Balance 
 
The LTF classifies fund balance based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe 
constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.  
 
Fund balance for the year ended June 30, 2016 consists of the following: 

 
Restricted – Resources that are constrained to specific purposes by an external provider (e.g. grantors, 
contributors, governmental laws and regulations) or by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
For the LTF, amounts are restricted pursuant to the Transportation Development Act. 

 
When funds of different classifications are available for the same purpose, the spending priority is to spend 
restricted resources before unrestricted resources, and within the unrestricted category, committed followed by 
assigned fund balance. 

 
 

NOTE 3 – DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 
 
Due from other governments of $28,240,932 represents a TDA receivable due from the State of California. 
 
 
NOTE 4 – DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS 
 
Due to other governments of $650,261 represents amounts due to other agencies for use in transit projects. 
 
 
NOTE 5 - DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 
 
Due to other funds for the year ended June 30, 2016 consisted of the following: 
 
OCTD for transit operations 13,249,196$    
OCTA for planning and administration 913,639

Total 14,162,835$    

 
 
NOTE 6 – TRANSFERS 
 
Transfers to other OCTA funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 consisted of the following: 
 
OCTD for transit operations 149,044,454$  
OCTA for planning and administration 3,790,437

Total 152,834,891$  

 



ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
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Original Final Actual Amounts

Revenues
Local Transportation Sales Tax Allocations 165,253,448$     156,538,943$     156,974,445$     435,502$            
Investment Income 24,866               24,866               48,656                23,790                
Miscellaneous -                         -                         8,979                  8,979                  

Total Revenues 165,278,314      156,563,809      157,032,080      468,271              

Expenditures
Current:

Supplies and Services 1,798,010          1,798,010          2,128,022           (330,012)             
Contributions to Other Local Agencies 2,354,743          2,354,743          2,285,055           69,688                

Total Expenditures 4,152,753          4,152,753          4,413,077           (260,324)             

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 161,125,561      152,411,056      152,619,003      207,947              

Other Financing Uses
Transfers to Other OCTA Funds (Note 6) (161,125,561)     (161,125,561)     (152,834,891)     8,290,670           

Total Other Financing Uses (161,125,561)     (161,125,561)     (152,834,891)     8,290,670           

Net Change in Fund Balance -                         (8,714,505)         (215,888)             8,498,617           

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 28,046,147        28,046,147        28,046,147         -                          
Fund Balance, End of Year 28,046,147$        19,331,642$        27,830,259$        8,498,617$          

Variance with 
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts
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NOTE 1 – BUDGETARY DATA 
 
The LTF maintains accounting control through formal adoption of an annual operating budget.  The operating 
budget is prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, except for 
multi-year contracts, for which the entire amount of the contract is budgeted and encumbered in the year of 
execution.  The adopted budget may be amended by the OCTA Board of Directors (Board) to increase 
appropriations and estimated revenues as unforeseen circumstances come to management's attention.  Budgeted 
expenditure amounts represent original appropriations, adjusted for supplemental appropriations, during the year.  
OCTA division heads are authorized to approve appropriation transfers within major objects subject to approval 
by the Finance and Administration Division.  Major objects are defined as: Salaries and Benefits, Supplies and 
Services, and Capital Outlay.  Supplies and Services include Contributions to Other Local Agencies, Debt Service 
and Transfers.  Appropriation transfers between major objects require approval of the Board.  Accordingly, the 
legal level of budgetary control, that is the level that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations, is at the major 
object level.  With the exception of amounts that have been encumbered, appropriations lapse at year end. 
 
There were no excess of expenditures over appropriations for fiscal year 2015-16.  
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Claimant
Article 3

Administration
Article 3
Planning

Article 4
Operating and

Capital

Article 4.5
Paratransit

Operating and
Capital Total

City of Laguna Beach -$                         -$                         1,115,304$          -$                         1,115,304$          
County of Orange 6,439                   -                           -                           -                           6,439                   
Orange County Transit District -                           -                           141,173,975        7,870,479            149,044,454        
Orange County Transportation Authority 135,882               3,654,555            -                           -                           3,790,437            
Southern California Association of Governments -                           1,163,312            -                           -                           1,163,312            

Total disbursements 142,321$            4,817,867$         142,289,279$     7,870,479$          155,119,946$     
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Local Transportation Fund (LTF), a 
special revenue fund of the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 31, 2016.  Our report included an emphasis-of-matter that the LTF financial statements do not purport to, 
and do not, present fairly the financial position of OCTA, and the LTF adopted Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, effective July 1, 2015.  
Also, our report notes that the financial statements do not include management’s discussion and analysis.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered OCTA’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control), as it relates to the LTF, to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit consider attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the LTF's financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, including §6661 and §6662 of Part 21 of the California Code of Regulations, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, including §6661 and §6662 of Part 21 of 
the California Code of Regulations. 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering OCTA’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California 
October 31, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF), a special 
revenue fund of the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, 
and the related notes to the financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors' Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the STAF, as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
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Emphasis of Matter  
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the STAF and do not purport to, and do not, present 
fairly the financial position of OCTA as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in its financial position thereof for the 
year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, the STAF adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, effective July 1, 2015.  Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that budgetary comparison 
information on pages 8-9 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the basic 
financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2016, on 
our consideration of OCTA’s internal control over financial reporting, as it relates to the STAF, and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering OCTA’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance, as it relates 
to the STAF.  
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California  
October 31, 2016 
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ASSETS
Cash and Investments 18,811$               
Interest Receivable 13
Due from Other Governments (Note 3) 10,538,121

Total Assets 10,556,945$        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Sales Tax 10,538,121$        

Total Liabilities 10,538,121          

FUND BALANCE
Restricted:

Total Fund Balance 18,824                 
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance 10,556,945$        
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REVENUE
State Transit Assistance Sales Tax Allocations 7,918,730$          
Interest and Investment Income 5,206
Miscellaneous 5,306

Total Revenues 7,929,242            

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Supplies and Services 517
Total Expenditures 517                      

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 7,928,725            

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers to Other OCTA Funds (Note 4) (7,925,629)

Net Change in Fund Balance 3,096                   

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 15,728
Fund Balance, End of Year 18,824$               
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) is a special revenue fund of the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA).  The STAF financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly, the financial 
position of OCTA, as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  This fund is used to 
account for funds transferred to the Orange County Transit District (OCTD) for operations and fare assistance for 
seniors and disabled persons. 
 
The STAF provides a second source of Transportation Development Act (TDA) funding for transportation 
planning and mass transportation purposes as specified by the State of California Legislature.  Funds for the 
program are derived from sales taxes on gasoline and use taxes on diesel fuel. 
 
The STAF funds are allocated through an appropriation to the State Controller by the Legislature for allocation by 
formula to each Transportation Planning Agency (TPA).  The OCTA serves as the regional TPA for the County of 
Orange, California (County).  The formula allocates 50 percent of the funds according to population and the 
remaining 50 percent according to operator revenues from the prior fiscal year.  The allocations are based on the 
operator's share of revenues compared to all of the other operators in the State.  The STAF allocations are 
deposited in the OCTA's STAF, which is maintained by the Auditor-Controller of the County.  The allocation to 
OCTA's STAF must be made in a resolution adopted by OCTA's governing board.  Payments from the STAF are 
made by the County Auditor-Controller in accordance with the allocation instructions in the allocation resolution. 
 
The STAF funds may not be allocated to fund administration or streets and roads projects.  Operators receiving 
the STAF funds must meet qualifying criteria based on the subsidy per revenue vehicle hour received in the 
previous year, taking into consideration the change in the Consumer Price Index within the operator's region. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of the STAF are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles applicable 
to governmental units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting 
body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles for governmental units. 
 
Fund Accounting 
 
The STAF activities and transactions are recorded and accounted for in a special revenue fund of the OCTA.  This 
fund is used to account for funds transferred to OCTD transit for operations and fare assistance for senior and 
disabled persons.  Funding is provided by sales taxes on gasoline and use taxes on diesel fuel.  Expenditure of 
these funds is governed by the provisions of the TDA.  A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting 
entity wherein operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing accounts that record 
resources, related liabilities, and equity segregated for the purpose of carrying out specific activities or attaining 
certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations.   
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The STAF financial statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are accrued when they become both measurable and available.  
Measurable means that amounts can be estimated or otherwise determined.  Available means collectible within 
the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.  Revenues are 
considered available if they are collected within 90 days of year end.  Expenditures are recorded when the liability 
is incurred.  Liabilities are considered current when they are expected to be liquidated with available financial 
resources. 
 
Cash and Investments 
 
The STAF maintains its deposits in the Orange County Investment Pool (OCIP), as required by State statute.  
Oversight of the OCIP is performed by the Orange County Treasury Oversight Committee.  The STAF 
categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles.  The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the valuation inputs 
used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 
2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  As of 
June 30, 2016, the STAF held no individual investments.  All funds are invested in OCIP. 
 
In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value hierarchy, fair 
value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
valuation.  The STAF’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements 
require judgment and considers factors specific to each asset or liability.   
 
Deposits and withdrawals are made on the basis of $1 and not fair value.  Accordingly, the STAF’s investment in 
the OCIP at June 30, 2016 of $18,811 is uncategorized, not defined as a Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3 input.   
 
Investment income earned by the pooled cash and investments in the OCIP is allocated based on average cash and 
investment balance. 
 
For information on cash and investment disclosures relating to STAF's deposits in the OCIP, please see OCTA's 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  
Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Fund Balance 
 
The STAF classifies fund balance based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe 
constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.  
 
Fund balance for the year ended June 30, 2016 consists of the following: 

 
Restricted – Resources that are constrained to specific purposes by an external provider (e.g. grantors, 
contributors, governmental laws and regulations) or by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
For the STAF, amounts are restricted pursuant to the Transportation Development Act. 
 

When funds of different classifications are available for the same purpose, the spending priority is to spend 
restricted resources before unrestricted resources, and within the unrestricted category, committed followed by 
assigned fund balance. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 
 
Due from other governments of $10,538,121 represents a TDA receivable due from the State of California.  
 
 
NOTE 4 – TRANSFERS TO OTHER OCTA FUNDS 
 
Transfers to OCTD of $7,925,629 for the year ended June 30, 2016 were for the purpose of funding transit 
operations. 
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Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts
Variance with 
Final Budget

Revenues
State Transit Assistance Sales Tax Allocations 20,887,347$           15,837,460$           7,918,730$             (7,918,730)$            
Interest and Investment Income -                              -                              5,206                      5,206                      
Miscellaneous -                              -                              5,306                      5,306                      

Total Revenues 20,887,347             15,837,460             7,929,242               (7,908,218)              

Expenditures
Supplies and Services -                              -                              517                         (517)                        

Total Expenditures -                              -                              517                         (517)                        

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 20,887,347             15,837,460             7,928,725               (7,908,735)              

Other Financing Uses
Transfers to Other OCTA Funds (Note 4) (20,887,347)            (20,887,347)            (7,925,629)              12,961,718             

Total Other Financing Uses (20,887,347)            (20,887,347)            (7,925,629)              12,961,718             

Net Change in Fund Balance -                              (5,049,887)              3,096                      5,052,983               

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 15,728                    15,728                    15,728                    -                              
Fund Balance, End of Year 15,728$                 (5,034,159)$           18,824$                  5,052,983$            
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NOTE 1 – BUDGETARY DATA 
 
The STAF maintains accounting control through formal adoption of an annual operating budget.  The operating 
budget is prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, except for 
multi-year contracts, for which the entire amount of the contract is budgeted and encumbered in the year of 
execution.  The adopted budget may be amended by the OCTA Board of Directors (Board) to increase 
appropriations and estimated revenues as unforeseen circumstances come to management's attention.  Budgeted 
expenditure amounts represent original appropriations, adjusted for supplemental appropriations, during the year.  
OCTA division heads are authorized to approve appropriation transfers within major objects subject to approval 
by the Finance and Administration Division.  Major objects are defined as: Salaries and Benefits, Supplies and 
Services, and Capital Outlay.  Supplies and Services include Contributions to Other Local Agencies, Debt Service 
and Transfers.  Appropriation transfers between major objects require approval of the Board.  Accordingly, the 
legal level of budgetary control, that is the level that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations, is at the major 
object level.  With the exception of amounts that have been encumbered, appropriations lapse at year end. 
 
There were no excess of expenditures over appropriations for fiscal year 2015-16.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF), a 
special revenue fund of the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 31, 2016.  Our report included an emphasis-of-matter that the STAF financial statements do not purport 
to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of OCTA, and the STAF adopted Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, effective July 1, 2015.  
Also, our report notes that the financial statements do not include management’s discussion and analysis.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered OCTA’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control), as it relates to the STAF, to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the STAF's financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, including §6750 and §6751 of Part 21 of the California Code of Regulations, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, including §6750 and §6751 of Part 21 of 
the California Code of Regulations. 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering OCTA’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California 
October 31, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON PROPOSITION 1B SCHEDULE OF 
UNSPENT FUNDS AND CASH DISBURSEMENTS 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
 
We have audited the financial statement of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining information of the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2016, which contained 
unmodified opinions on those financial statements.  Our report included an emphasis-of-matter regarding OCTA's 
adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72 – Fair Value Measurement 
and Application, and GASB Statement No. 82 – Pension Issues, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67,  
No. 68, and No. 73, effective July 1, 2015. 
 
Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise OCTA's basic financial statements.  The Proposition 1B Schedule of Unspent Funds and Cash 
Disbursements (Schedule) is presented for purposes of additional analysis, to satisfy the requirements of Section 
6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, the California Government Code §8879.50 and the 
California State Senate Bill 88 (2007), et seq. and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our 
opinion, the Schedule is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California 
October 31, 2016 
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PTMISEA (1) TSSSDRA (2) Total

Unspent Prop 1B funds as of June 30, 2015 41,195,977$       3,919,616$         45,115,593$    

Prop 1B funds received during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 -                         -                         -                       

Interest revenue earned on unspent Prop 1B funds during fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2016 241,437              23,498                264,935           

Prop 1B disbursements spent during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 (16,230,171)     (352,307)           (16,582,478)   

Unspent Prop 1B funds as of June 30, 2016 25,207,243$       3,590,807$         28,798,050$       

(1) Public Transportation, Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement Account

(2) Transit System Safety, Security & Disaster Recovery Account
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS, THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT, CALIFORNIA 

GOVERNMENT CODE §8879.50, AND STATE SENATE BILL 88 (2007)  
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise OCTA’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated October 31, 2016.  Our report included an emphasis-of-matter regarding OCTA's adoption of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72 – Fair Value Measurement and 
Application, and GASB Statement No. 82 – Pension Issues, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, 
and No. 73, effective July 1, 2015. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered OCTA’s  internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether OCTA’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, including the applicable provisions of Section 6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of 
Regulations, California Government Code §8879.50 and California State Senate Bill 88 (2007), et seq., 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, the 
Transportation Development Act Section 6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, California 
Government Code §8879.50 and the California State Senate Bill 88 (2007), et seq. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California  
October 31, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES TO THE 

MEASURE M2 STATUS REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
And the Taxpayers Oversight Committee of the 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Taxpayers Oversight 
Committee (Committee) of the Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA), solely to assist you 
with your review of the Measure M2 Status Report, and to ascertain that the amounts have been derived from 
the audited financial statements or other published documents, Board of Director approved documents or 
internal documents, for the year ended June 30, 2016.  The Measure M2 Status Report consists of the 
following three schedules (Schedules): Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
(Schedule 1); Schedule of Calculations of Net Revenues and Net Bond Revenues (Debt Service) 
(Schedule 2); and Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary (Schedule 3).  Management of OCLTA 
is responsible for Measure M2 Status Report.  This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in 
accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  The 
sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in the report.  Consequently, 
we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below, either for the purpose for 
which this report has been requested, or for any other purpose. 

The following summary of procedures related to the Measure M2 Status Report is separated into three sections: 
Section A describes our procedures applied to Schedule 1; Section B describes our procedures applied to 
Schedule 2; and Section C describes our procedures applied to Schedule 3.  All amounts are reported in 
thousands. 

A. We obtained Schedule 1 and performed the following procedures:

1. Compared year to date June 30, 2016 amounts (Column A) to the audited trial balances of the OCLTA
special revenue fund 17 and the OCLTA debt service fund 72 and additional detailed information from
the underlying accounting records.

2. Compared period from inception through June 30, 2016 amounts (Column B) by adding the prior year’s
period from inception through June 30, 2015 amounts with year to date June 30, 2016 amounts (Column
A).

3. Re-computed totals and subtotals.
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B. We obtained Schedule 2 and performed the following procedures:

1. Compared year ended June 30, 2016 (Columns C.1 and C.2) to Schedule 1, Column A.  For professional
services, non-project related amounts, we compared the sum of this caption allocated to revenues and to
bond revenues at June 30, 2016 (C.1 and C.2) to Schedule 1, Column A.  For environmental cleanup, we
agreed this amount to the project job ledger.

2. Compared period from inception through June 30, 2016 amounts (Columns D.1 and D.2) to Schedule 1,
Column B.  For professional services, non-project related amounts, we compared the total of the amounts
allocated to revenues and to bond revenues at June 30, 2016 (D.1 and D.2) to Schedule 1, Column B.  For
environmental cleanup, we agreed this amount to the project job ledger.

3. Compared forecast amounts (Column E.1 and E.2) to Measure M2 Forecast Model Schedule.

4. Re-computed totals and subtotals.

C. We obtained Schedule 3 and performed the following procedures:

1. Compared net revenues through June 30, 2016 (Column H) and total net revenues (Column I) amounts to
Schedule 2, Column D.1 and Column F.1, net revenues (Totals), respectively.

2. Recalculated net revenues through June 30, 2016 (Column H) and total net revenues (Column I) amounts,
by mode and project description, based on the Measure M2 Transportation Investment Plan (Investment
Plan).

3. Reconciled expenditures through June 30, 2016 (Column J) to Schedule 1, Column B. Agreed
environmental cleanup to Schedule 2, Column D.1.  Agreed oversight and annual audits to the summary
of Measure M2 administrative costs through June 30, 2016.  Agreed Column J, by project description to
the project job ledger by fiscal year.

4. Selected a sample of expenditures from Column J and compared them to invoices and supporting
documentation to determine whether the sampled expenditures were properly accrued and classified.

5. Agreed reimbursements through June 30, 2016 (Column K) to Schedule 1, Column B. Agreed oversight
and annual audits line item to summary of Measure M2 administrative costs through June 30, 2016.

6. Agreed Column K to the supporting revenue summary by project and fiscal year.  Selected a sample of
reimbursements from Column K and agreed them to supporting invoices and remittance advices to
determine whether the sampled reimbursements were properly calculated.

7. Recalculated the net M2 cost (Column L) by subtracting Column K from Column J.

8. Recalculated revenues through June 30, 2016 (Column H.1) and the total revenues (Column I.1) for
environmental cleanup (2% of revenues) and oversight and annual audits (1% of revenues) by multiplying
sales taxes and operating interest per Schedule 2, Column D.1 and Column F.1 by 2% and 1%,
respectively.

9. Recalculated revenues through June 30, 2016 (Column H.1) and total revenues (Column I.1) for collect
sales taxes (1.5% of sales taxes) by multiplying sales taxes per Schedule 2, Column D.1 and Column F.1
by 1.5%.

10. Re-computed total and subtotals.

Results:  All of the above procedures were performed without exception. 
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We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an 
opinion on the Measure M2 Status Report.  Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  Had we performed 
additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.  The 
Notes to the Measure M2 Status Report (Notes) have been provided by the OCLTA to describe the purpose, 
format, and content of the schedules.  We were not engaged to and did not perform any procedures on the Notes. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of OCTLA’s management, the Board of Directors, and 
the Taxpayers Oversight Committee and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Laguna Hills, California 
December 19, 2016 



Schedule 1

Period from
Year to Date Inception to

($ in thousands) June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
(A) (B)

Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 300,937            $ 1,450,309          
Other agencies' share of Measure M2 costs:

Project related 93,242              476,195             
Non-project related 74                      439                    

Interest:
Operating:

Project related -                    2                        
Non-project related 9,039                17,082               

Bond proceeds 6,443                35,997               
Debt service 32                      76                      
Commercial paper -                    393                    

Right-of-way leases 110                    814                    
Miscellaneous:

Project related 72                      270                    
Non-project related 93                      100                    

Total revenues 410,042            1,981,677          

Expenditures:
Supplies and services:

State Board of Equalization (SBOE) fees 3,571                15,888               
Professional services:

Project related 50,216              272,849             
Non-project related 2,115                15,043               

Administration costs:
Project related 8,527                44,540               
Non-project related:

Salaries and Benefits 2,365                17,440               
Other 4,679                26,638               

Other:
Project related 275                     1,678                  
Non-project related 118                    3,800                 

Payments to local agencies:
Project related 105,378            607,896             

Capital outlay:
Project related 89,240              546,493             
Non-project related -                    31                      

Debt service:
Principal payments on long-term debt 7,210                27,085               
Interest on long-term debt and commercial paper 21,613              115,537             

Total expenditures 295,307              1,694,918           

Excess of revenues over expenditures 114,735              286,759              

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out:

Project related (10,618)             (22,659)              
Transfers in:

Project related 23,740              75,544               
Non-project related (23,740)             5,937                 

Bond proceeds -                    358,593             

Total other financing sources (uses) (10,618)               417,415              

Excess of revenues over expenditures 
and other financing sources (uses) $ 104,117              $ 704,174              

Measure M2
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

as of June 30, 2016
(Unaudited)
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Schedule 2

Period from Period from
Inception July 1, 2016

Year to Date through through
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016 March 31, 2041

($ in thousands) (actual) (actual) (forecast) Total
(C.1) (D.1) (E.1) (F.1)

Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 300,937   $ 1,450,309 $ 13,359,584     $ 14,809,893
Operating interest 9,039       17,082     224,117          241,199    
   Subtotal 309,976   1,467,391 13,583,701     15,051,092

Other agencies share of M2 costs 74            439          -                  439           
Miscellaneous 93            100          -                  100           

Total revenues 310,143   1,467,930 13,583,701     15,051,631

Administrative expenditures:
SBOE fees 3,571       15,888     200,474          216,362    
Professional services 2,115       11,267     91,546            102,813    
Administration costs: -           -           -            

Salaries and Benefits 2,365       17,440     133,574          151,014    
Other 4,679       26,638     234,882          261,520    

Other 118          3,800       23,036            26,836      
Capital outlay -           31            -                  31             
Environmental cleanup 9,588       18,150     267,192          285,342    

Total expenditures 22,436     93,214     950,704          1,043,918 

Net revenues $ 287,707   $ 1,374,716 $ 12,632,997     $ 14,007,713

(C.2) (D.2) (E.2) (F.2)

Bond revenues:
Proceeds from issuance of bonds $ -           $ 358,593   $ 2,000,000       $ 2,358,593 
Interest revenue from bond proceeds 6,443       35,997     25,760            61,757      
Interest revenue from debt service funds 32            76            54                   130           
Interest revenue from commercial paper -           393          -                  393           

Total bond revenues 6,475       395,059   2,025,814       2,420,873 

Financing expenditures and uses:
Professional services -           3,776       17,020            20,796      
Bond debt principal 7,210       27,085     2,242,636       2,269,721 
Bond debt and other interest expense 21,613     115,537   1,507,609       1,623,146 

Total financing expenditures and uses 28,823     146,398   3,767,265       3,913,663 

Net bond revenues (debt service) $ (22,348)    $ 248,661   $ (1,741,451)      $ (1,492,790)

Measure M2
Schedule of Calculations of Net Revenues and Net Bond Revenues (Debt Service)

as of June 30, 2016
(Unaudited)

- 5 -

See Notes to Measure M2 Status Report (Unaudited)



Schedule 3
Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary
as of June 30, 2016

(Unaudited)

Net Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements
through Total through through Net

Project Description June 30, 2016 Net Revenues June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016 M2 Cost
(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)
($ in thousands)

A I-5 Santa Ana Freeway Interchange Improvements $ 54,183          $ 552,116        $ 4,434        $ 937           $ 3,497        
B I-5 Santa Ana/SR-55 to El Toro 34,609          352,649        4,537        2,191        2,346        
C I-5 San Diego/South of El Toro 72,285          736,546        84,771      30,751      54,020      
D I-5 Santa Ana/San Diego Interchange Upgrades 29,744          303,076        1,759        527           1,232        
E SR-22 Garden Grove Freeway Access Improvements 13,834          140,966        4               -            4               
F SR-55 Costa Mesa Freeway Improvements 42,195          429,945        7,591        23             7,568        
G SR-57 Orange Freeway Improvements 29,825          303,899        44,983      10,281      34,702      
H SR-91 Improvements from I-5 to SR-57 16,140          164,460        32,146      608           31,538      
I SR-91 Improvements from SR-57 to SR-55 48,017          489,269        16,629      1,620        15,009      
J SR-91 Improvements from SR-55 to County Line 40,604          413,734        6,928        5,294        1,634        
K I-405 Improvements between I-605 to SR-55 123,679        1,260,233     54,110      3,267        50,843      
L I-405 Improvements between SR-55 to I-5 36,857          375,556        5,508        3,234        2,274        
M I-605 Freeway Access Improvements 2,306            23,494          682           16             666           
N All Freeway Service Patrol 17,293          176,207        196           -            196           

Freeway Mitigation 29,556          301,166        45,968      1,688        44,280      

Subtotal Projects 591,127        6,023,316     310,246    60,437      249,809    
Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -               30,326      -            30,326      

Total Freeways $ 591,127        $ 6,023,316     $ 340,572    $ 60,437      $ 280,135    
     % 27.8%

O Regional Capacity Program $ 137,473        $ 1,400,789     $ 593,652    $ 332,426    $ 261,226    
P Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 54,987          560,291        23,651      3,580        20,071      
Q Local Fair Share Program 247,449        2,521,388     237,070    77             236,993    

Subtotal Projects 439,909        4,482,468     854,373    336,083    518,290    
Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -               33,683      -            33,683      

Total Street and Roads Projects $ 439,909        $ 4,482,468     $ 888,056    $ 336,083    $ 551,973    
     % 54.7%

R High Frequency Metrolink Service $ 124,519        $ 1,397,062     $ 161,432    $ 92,749      $ 68,683      
S Transit Extensions to Metrolink 121,356        1,236,557     11,559      2,074        9,485        
T Metrolink Gateways 25,382          71,597          98,211      60,956      37,255      
U Expand Mobility Choices for Seniors and Persons

   with Disabilities 41,902          485,719        40,010      88             39,922      
V Community Based Transit/Circulators 27,487          280,080        2,072        120           1,952        
W Safe Transit Stops 3,034            30,914          62             26             36             

Subtotal Projects 343,680        3,501,929     313,346    156,013    157,333    
Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -               18,838      -            18,838      

Total Transit Projects $ 343,680        $ 3,501,929     $ 332,184    $ 156,013    $ 176,171    
     % 17.5%

$ 1,374,716     $ 14,007,713   $ 1,560,812 $ 552,533    $ 1,008,279 

Freeways (43% of Net Revenues)

Street and Roads Projects (32% of Net Revenues)

Transit Projects (25% of Net Revenues)

Measure M2 Program
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Schedule 3
Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary
as of June 30, 2016

(Unaudited)

Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements
through Total through through Net

Project Description June 30, 2016 Revenues June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016 M2 Cost
(G) (H.1) (I.1) (J) (K) (L)
($ in thousands)

X Clean Up Highway and Street Runoff 
  that Pollutes Beaches $ 29,348          $ 301,022        $ 18,150      $ 292           $ 17,858      

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -               -            -            -            

Total Environmental Cleanup $ 29,348          $ 301,022        $ 18,150      $ 292           $ 17,858      
     % 1.2%

Collect Sales Taxes (1.5% of Sales Taxes) $ 21,755          $ 222,148        $ 15,888      $ -            $ 15,888      
     % 1.1%

Oversight and Annual Audits (1% of Revenues) $ 14,674          $ 150,511        $ 17,440      $ 2,766        $ 14,674      
     % 1.0%

Taxpayer Safeguards and Audits

Environmental Cleanup (2% of Revenues)

- 7 -
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ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
Notes to Measure M2 Status Report (Unaudited) 

 
Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 

 

Measure M2 Summary 
 
In November 1990, Orange County voters approved the Revised Traffic Improvement and 
Growth Management Ordinance, known as Measure M (M1). This implemented a one-half of 
one percent retail transaction and use tax to fund a specific program of transportation 
improvements in Orange County. On November 7, 2006 (inception), Orange County voters 
approved the renewal of Measure M, known as Renewed Measure M (M2) for a period of  
30 more years from April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2041. In August 2007, the Orange County Local 
Transportation Authority Board of Directors approved the M2 Early Action Plan to advance the 
completion of projects prior to the start of sales tax collection in April 2011. A Plan of Finance 
was adopted in November 2007 identifying a tax-exempt commercial paper program as the 
preferred method of funding Early Action Plan projects.   
 
The Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA) is responsible for administering the 
proceeds of the M1 sales tax program, which commenced on April 1, 1991 for a period of  
20 years, and the M2 sales tax program, which commenced on April 1, 2011 for a period of  
30 years. This report includes only the activities of M2 and is not intended to present the 
activities of M1. Under M2, funds are required to be distributed to freeways, streets and roads 
projects, transit projects and environmental cleanup. 
 
Demonstrating accountability for the receipt and expenditure of M2 funds is accomplished 
through the issuance of annual reports on M2 activities.  The reports for M2 activities through 
June 30, 2016 are included as Schedules 1-3. The following is a summary of the purpose, 
format and content of each schedule. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in 
thousands of dollars. 
 
Schedule 1—Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
 
This schedule presents a summary of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance of 
the combined M2 special revenue and debt service funds.  Such financial information is derived 
from the trial balance with additional detailed information from the underlying accounting 
records. The schedule is presented for the latest fiscal year and for the period from inception 
through the latest fiscal year. 
 
Year to Date June 30, 2016 (Column A) 
 
This column presents the revenues, expenditures, and other financing sources (uses) of the 
combined M2 special revenue and debt service funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  
Amounts for individual revenue sources, expenditures by major object, and other financing 
sources (uses) are derived from the trial balance, while detailed amounts for certain revenue 
sources and expenditures by major object are obtained from the general ledger.  
 
The net change in fund balance of $104,117 agrees with the combined change in fund balances 
of $104,129 in the M2 special revenue fund and $(12) in the M2 debt service fund in the trial 
balance for the year ended June 30, 2016.  
 
Non-project related revenues, expenditures, and other financing sources (uses) are included in 
the net revenues and net bond revenues (debt service) calculations in Schedule 2.  
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ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 

Notes to Measure M2 Status Report (Unaudited) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 

Period from Inception through June 30, 2016 (Column B) 
 
This column presents the revenues, expenditures, and other financing sources (uses) of the 
combined M2 special revenue and debt service funds for the period from inception through  
June 30, 2016.  Amounts for individual revenue sources, expenditures by major object, and 
other financing sources (uses) are summarized from the trial balance, while detailed amounts 
for certain revenue sources and expenditures by major object are obtained and summarized 
from the general ledger.  
 
The net fund balance of $704,174 agrees with the combined ending fund balances of $692,180 
in the M2 special revenue fund and $11,994 in the M2 debt service fund, as presented in the 
trial balance for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
Non-project related revenues, expenditures, and other financing sources (uses) are included in 
the net revenues and net bond revenues (debt service) calculations in Schedule 2. Project 
related revenues and other financing sources are presented as “Reimbursements” (Column K) 
in Schedule 3. Project related expenditures and other financing uses are included as 
“Expenditures” (Column J) in Schedule 3. 

 
Schedule 2—Schedule of Calculations of Net Revenues and Net Bond Revenues (Debt 
Service) 
 
This schedule presents calculations of net revenues and of net bond revenues (debt service), 
which are allocated in Schedule 3 to transportation projects specified in the Orange County 
Transportation Investment Plan (Investment Plan).  Actual revenues, expenditures, and other 
financing sources (uses) in this schedule were obtained from non-project related amounts on 
Schedule 1.  Environmental cleanup expenditures were obtained from the project job ledger.  
Forecast amounts were obtained from the Orange County Transportation Authority Forecast 
Model.  The schedule is presented for the latest fiscal year, for the period from inception through 
the latest fiscal year, for subsequent years going forward, and for the combined total of actual 
and forecast amounts for the period from inception going forward. 
 
Calculation of Net Revenues 
 
Year Ended June 30, 2016 (actual) (Column C.1) 
 
This column presents net revenues, consisting of total revenues less total administrative 
expenditures, capital outlay, and environmental cleanup, for year ended June 30, 2016. 
Revenues, administrative expenditures, and capital outlay for the year ended June 30, 2016 
were obtained from Column A in Schedule 1.  Environmental cleanup expenditures were 
obtained from project amounts accumulated in the project job ledger. Revenues, administrative 
expenditures, and capital outlay utilized in the calculation of net revenues are non-project and 
non-financing related.  Revenues consist of sales taxes, operating interest, and other agencies’ 
share of M2 costs.  Administrative expenditures include State Board of Equalization (SBOE) 
fees, professional services, administration costs, and other expenditures.  Non-project related 
professional services are distributed between administrative expenditures and financing 
expenditures and uses based on the job ledger code. 
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Notes to Measure M2 Status Report (Unaudited) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 

Period from Inception through June 30, 2016 (actual) (Column D.1) 
 
This column presents net revenues, consisting of total cumulative revenues less total 
cumulative administrative expenditures, capital outlay, and environmental cleanup, for the 
period from inception through June 30, 2016.  Revenues, administrative expenditures, and 
capital outlay for the period from inception through June 30, 2016 were obtained from Column B 
in Schedule 1. Environmental cleanup expenditures were obtained from project amounts 
accumulated in the project job ledger.  Total net revenues for the period from inception through 
June 30, 2016 are presented in Schedule 3 as “Net Revenues through June 30, 2016”  
(Column H).  Revenues, administrative expenditures, and capital outlay utilized in the 
calculation of net revenues are non-project and non-financing related.  Revenues consist of 
sales taxes, operating interest, other agencies’ share of M2 costs, and miscellaneous revenue.  
Administrative expenditures include SBOE fees, professional services, administration costs, and 
other expenditures.  Non-project related professional services are distributed between 
administrative expenditures and financing expenditures and uses based on the job ledger code.  
 
Period from July 1, 2016 through March 31, 2041 (forecast) (Column E.1) 
 
This column presents net revenues, consisting of total projected revenues less total projected 
administrative expenditures and environmental cleanup expenditures, for subsequent years 
from July 1, 2016 through March 31, 2041. Revenues and administrative expenditures for 
subsequent years from July 1, 2016 through March 31, 2041 were obtained from the Orange 
County Transportation Authority Forecast Model, which is updated quarterly.  Revenues and 
administrative expenditures utilized in the calculation of net revenues for subsequent years from 
July 1, 2016 through March 31, 2041 are non-project and non-financing related.  Revenues 
consist of projected sales taxes and operating interest. Administrative expenditures consist of 
projected SBOE fees, professional services, administration costs, and other expenditures.   
 
Total (Column F.1) 
 
This column presents total net revenues, calculated as the sum of columns D.1 and E.1.  Total 
net revenues are presented in Schedule 3 as “Total Net Revenues” (Column I). 

 
Calculation of Net Bond Revenues (Debt Service) 
 
Year Ended June 30, 2016 (actual) (Column C.2) 
 
This column presents net bond revenues (debt service), consisting of total bond revenues less 
total financing expenditures and uses, for year ended June 30, 2016. Bond revenues and 
financing expenditures and uses for the year ended June 30, 2016 were obtained from  
Column A in Schedule 1.  Bond revenues and financing expenditures and uses utilized in the 
calculation of net bond revenues (debt service) are non-project and non-operating related.  
Bond revenues consist of interest revenue from bond proceeds and debt service funds.  
Financing expenditures and uses consist of professional services and bond debt and other 
interest expense.  Non-project related professional services are distributed between 
administrative expenditures and financing expenditures and uses based on the job ledger code. 
 

- 10 -



ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 

Notes to Measure M2 Status Report (Unaudited) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 

Period from Inception through June 30, 2016 (actual) (Column D.2) 
 
This column presents net bond revenues (debt service), consisting of total cumulative bond 
revenues less total cumulative financing expenditures and uses, for the period from inception 
through June 30, 2016.  Bond revenues and financing expenditures and uses for the period 
from inception through June 30, 2016 were obtained from Column B in Schedule 1.  Bond 
revenues and financing expenditures and uses utilized in the calculation of net bond revenues 
(debt service) are non-project and non-operating related.  Bond revenues consist of proceeds 
from issuance of bonds and interest revenue from bond proceeds, debt service funds, and 
commercial paper.  Financing expenditures and uses consist of professional services and bond 
debt and other interest expense.  Non-project related professional services are distributed 
between administrative expenditures and financing expenditures and uses based on the job 
ledger code. 
 
Period from July 1, 2016 through March 31, 2041 (forecast) (Column E.2) 
 
This column presents bond revenues (debt service), consisting of total projected bond revenues 
less total projected financing expenditures and uses, for subsequent years from July 1, 2016 
through March 31, 2041.  Bond revenues and financing expenditures and uses for subsequent 
years from July 1, 2016 through March 31, 2041 were obtained from the Orange County 
Transportation Authority Forecast Model.  Bond revenues and financing expenditures and uses 
utilized in the calculation of net bond revenues (debt service) are non-project and non-operating 
related.  Bond revenues consist of proceeds from issuance of bonds and interest revenue from 
bond proceeds and debt service funds.  Financing expenditures and uses consist of bond debt 
principal and bond debt and other interest expense.   
 
Total (Column F.2) 
 
This column presents total net bond revenues (debt service), calculated as the sum of columns 
D.2 and E.2.   

 
Schedule 3—Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary 
 
This schedule presents a summary of actual and projected revenues and expenditures, by 
mode and project description, as specified in the Investment Plan.  Total M2 program amounts 
agree with amounts on Schedules 1 and 2.  Amounts by mode and project description are 
based on proportionate calculations or are obtained from other documents. 
 
Project Description (Column G) 
 
This column presents project descriptions by mode in accordance with the Investment Plan. 
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Notes to Measure M2 Status Report (Unaudited) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 

Net Revenues through June 30, 2016 (Column H) 
 
This column presents total M2 program net revenues for the period from inception through June 
30, 2016, which agrees with net revenues in Column D.1 in Schedule 2.  Such net revenues are 
allocated to each of the three modes based on the allocation percentages specified in M2.   
The net revenues for each mode are allocated to each project based on the proportionate share 
of each project’s estimated cost to the total estimated cost per mode as presented in the 
Investment Plan. 
 
Total Net Revenues (Column I) 
 
This column presents total actual and projected net revenues (total net revenues) during the life 
of M2, which agree with total net revenues in Column F.1 in Schedule 2.  Such total net 
revenues are allocated to each of the three modes based on the allocations specified in M2.  
The net revenues for each mode are allocated to each project based on the proportionate share 
of each project’s estimated cost to the total estimated cost per mode as presented in the 
Investment Plan. 
 
Expenditures through June 30, 2016 (Column J) 
 
This column presents total expenditures plus net (bond revenue)/debt service. Total 
expenditures, excluding oversight and annual audit expenditures, agree with the sum of project 
related expenditures, SBOE fees and transfers out from Column B in Schedule 1.  Oversight 
and annual audit expenditures agree with the administrative costs for salaries and benefits 
derived from the annual cost allocation plan.  Total net (bond revenue)/debt service 
expenditures through June 30, 2016 agrees with the interest revenue, professional services 
expenditures, bond debt and other interest expense from Column D.2 in Schedule 2. Project 
related expenditures are comprised of professional services, administration costs, other 
expenditures, payments to local agencies, capital outlay and transfers out. Such expenditures 
are distributed to the projects based on project amounts accumulated in the project job ledger.   
 
Reimbursements through June 30, 2016 (Column K) 
 
This column presents total reimbursements for the period from inception through June 30, 2016, 
which agrees with the sum of project related revenues from Column B in Schedule 1.  Project 
related revenues consist of other agencies’ share of Measure M2 costs, right-of-way leases, 
transfers in and miscellaneous revenue.  Such revenues are distributed to the related projects 
based on project amounts accumulated in the project job ledger.  Reimbursements for oversight 
and annual audits agree with the principal balance of the amount advanced from the Orange 
County Unified Transportation Trust (OCUTT) to cover administrative costs for salaries and 
benefits exceeding more than one percent of revenues. 
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Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 

Net M2 Cost (Column N) 
 
Net M2 cost is a calculation of Column J minus Column K.  For each mode, a percentage is 
calculated as the net project cost per mode divided by the total M2 Program net project cost. 
Such percentage can be compared to the required percentage included in M2 as an indication 
of the progress to date for each mode. 
 
Revenues through June 30, 2016 (Column H.1) 
 
The total environmental cleanup revenue for the period from inception through June 30, 2016, 
represents two percent (2%) of revenues (sales taxes and operating interest) in Column D.1 in 
Schedule 2. The total oversight and annual audits revenues for the period from inception 
through June 30, 2016, represent one percent (1%) of the revenues (sales taxes and operating 
interest) in Column D.1 in Schedule 2. The total collect sales taxes revenue for the period from 
inception through June 30, 2016, represents one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the sales tax 
revenues in Column D.1 in Schedule 2.   
 
Total Revenues (Column I.1) 
 
The total environmental cleanup actual and projected revenues during the life of M2 represent 
2% of revenues (sales taxes and operating interest) found in Column F.1 in Schedule 2.  
The total collect sales taxes actual and projected revenues during the 30-year life of M2 
represent 1.5% of sales tax revenues found in Column F.1 in Schedule 2.  The total oversight 
and annual audits actual and projected revenues during the 30-year life of M2 represent 1% of 
revenues (sales taxes and operating interest) found in Column F.1 in Schedule 2.  
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES PERFORMED 

WITH RESPECT TO THE TREASURY DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA) solely to assist you with respect to your evaluation of selected internal controls 
within the Treasury Department for the year ended June 30, 2016.  OCTA’s management is responsible for the 
internal controls within the Treasury Department.  This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in 
accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  The 
sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of OCTA.  Consequently, we make no representation 
regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below, either for the purpose for which this report has been 
requested, or for any other purpose. 
 
The procedures performed and the results of those procedures were as follows: 
 

1. Conduct inquiries of personnel involved in the Treasury Department operations, obtain the Debt and 
Investment Management Manual and observe the procedures performed to determine whether the 
procedures provide for: 
 

a. Transactions that are clearly documented and readily available for examination; 
b. Transactions that are promptly recorded and properly classified; 
c. Transactions that are authorized and executed only by persons acting within the scope of their 

authority; 
d. Segregation of key duties and responsibilities in authorizing, processing, recording and reviewing; 
e. Supervision to ensure that internal control objectives are achieved; 
f. Limiting access to resources and records to authorized individuals and ensuring accountability for 

custody of resources; and 
g. Periodic reconciliation of investments between the custodian statements and the general ledger. 

 
Result: We conducted inquiries of Finance and Administration Division personnel, reviewed the Debt and 
Investment Manual, and observed the procedures performed.  No exceptions were noted. 

 
2. Review the Investment Policy to determine that it is in compliance with California Government Code 

Section 53601. 
 
Result: No exceptions were noted. 
 



2 

3. Observe system related controls to determine they are in place to appropriately limit access to cash and 
investment information. 

 
Result: No exceptions were noted. 
 

4. Determine that the Investment Policy was provided to external investment managers on an annual basis.  
In addition, determine whether each investment manager certified receipt of the Investment Policy with a 
statement agreeing to abide by its terms. 
 
Result: No exceptions were noted. 

 
5. Sample three monthly OCTA Investment and Debt Programs Reports presented to the Finance and 

Administration Committee to determine they are provided in accordance with the Debt and Investment 
Management Manual (Section 2, Part C, Treasury/Public Finance Department, and Investment 
Reporting). 

 
Result: No exceptions were noted. 

 
6. Select a sample of four authorization letters to investment managers, brokers, banks and custodians to 

determine that they were jointly authorized in writing by the Treasurer and another individual authorized 
by the Debt and Investment Management Manual.  In addition, review the letters for existence of the 
following attributes: 
 

a. OCTA staff authorized to make investments; 
b. Custody instructions; and 
c. Instructions for money and security transfers. 

 
Result: No exceptions were noted. 

 
7. Select a sample of sixty investment purchases during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 to determine 

that: 
 

a. The investments were in compliance with the Investment Policy; 
b. The Treasury Department's policies and procedures with respect to investment purchases were 

followed; 
c. The investments were properly recorded; and 
d. Any investment earnings on matured investments were calculated and recorded correctly. 

 
Result: No exceptions were noted. 

 
8. Sample ten weekly holdings reports for each external investment manager during the fiscal year ended 

June 30, 2016 and determine that they were monitored by Treasury Department personnel and were in 
compliance with the Investment Policy.  Specifically: 

 
a. Obtain the holdings report for each external manager for each week selected; 
b. Verify that the Treasury Department's review was documented on the holdings report; 
c. Review the holdings report to determine whether the external investment manager complied with 

Investment Policy limits and diversification guidelines; and 
d. Determine that any instances of noncompliance are identified and corrected by the Treasury 

Department and that probationary and reporting procedures were followed. 
 

Result: No exceptions were noted for the ten weekly holdings reports tested for each external investment 
manager during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.   
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9. Select a sample of three monthly bank reconciliations during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 and 
perform the following: 

 
a. Trace general ledger balances and bank balances to supporting documentation; 
b. Determine whether the reconciliations were completed within thirty days of month end; 
c. Determine that any discrepancies were reported and resolved; 
d. Determine that reconciliations and resolution of discrepancies were reviewed and approved by an 

official who was not responsible for recording receipts and disbursements; and 
e. Determine that bank statements were mailed directly to the Accounting Department. 

 
Result: No exceptions were noted. 

 
10. Select a sample of three monthly investment account reconciliations and review the supporting 

documentation to determine that: 
 

a. Reconciliations were completed in a timely and thorough manner by someone who was not 
responsible for recording receipts and disbursements; 

b. Discrepancies were identified and resolved; 
c. Reconciliations and the resolution of discrepancies were reviewed by an official who was not 

responsible for recording investment transactions; and 
d. Investment statements were mailed directly to the Accounting Department. 

 
Result: No exceptions were noted. 

 
11. Review and inspect the Treasury Department's cash forecasting documentation to determine the 

Department performed or prepared the following: 
 

a. A day-to-day cash forecast for the current week; 
b. Reviewed forecasts with the Funds Management Team; 
c. Monitored actual cash flow activity versus forecast; 
d. Maintained regular communication with external investment managers regarding OCTA cash 

forecast and operational needs. 
 

Result: No exceptions were noted. 
 
12. Review and inspect the policies and procedures for reviewing corporate security ratings to determine that 

the procedures are adequate and provide timely identification and reporting of downgrades and credit 
watch placements. 

 
Result: We noted per inquiry with the Deputy Treasurer that corporate security ratings are reviewed on a 
weekly basis for downgrades and credit watch placements.  Furthermore, the results of the review are 
communicated to the Finance and Administration Committee on a monthly basis through the 
Treasury/Public Finance Department’s Report on OCTA Investment and Debt Programs.  No exceptions 
were noted.  
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13. Review minutes of both the Board of Directors and the Finance and Administration Committee, inquire 
with Treasury Department personnel, and review other supporting documentation to determine that the 
following required oversight activities took place: 
 

a. The Finance and Administration Committee reviewed investments on a monthly basis; 
b. The Board of Directors reviewed investments on a quarterly basis; 
c. The Board of Directors reviewed and approved the Investment Policy and amendments made during 

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016; 
d. The Internal Audit Department performs semi-annual reviews to determine if OCTA was in 

compliance with its debt, investment, and accounting policies and procedures and 
e. The funds management team met on a weekly basis. 

 
Result: We reviewed the Finance and Administration Committee meeting minutes, Board of Directors 
meeting minutes, semi-annual reviews performed by the Internal Audit Department, and informational 
packet for the funds management team meeting noting that the above noted oversight activities took place.   

 
14. Inquire whether there have been any changes in Treasury policies and procedures, organization or 

function, as a result of any prior year audit findings as a result of the Treasury Department Agreed Upon 
Procedures. 

 
Result: Based upon our inquiry no changes in Treasury policies and procedures, organization or function, 
were noted as a result of prior year findings as a result of the Treasury Department Agreed Upon 
Procedures.  It was noted that as a result of the Internal Audit Department’s semi-annual review over 
OCTA’s investment compliance, controls, and reporting for July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015, the 
Debt and Investment Management Manual was revised to incorporate Internal Audit's recommendation.  
The revised Debt and Investment Management Manual had an effective date of June 1, 2016.    

 
We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an 
opinion on OCTA’s Treasury Department or investments, related internal control, compliance with government 
code, or elements, accounts or items specified above.  Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to 
you.  This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of 
OCTA and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than those specified parties. 
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California 
October 31, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT  
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES RELATED TO  

THE ARTICLE XIII-B APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT CALCULATION 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
We have performed the procedures enumerated below to the Appropriations Limit calculation of the Orange 
County Transportation Authority (OCTA) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  These procedures, which were 
agreed to by OCTA, were performed solely to assist OCTA in meeting the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article 
XIII-B of the California Constitution.  OCTA’s management is responsible for the Appropriations Limit 
calculation.  This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  The sufficiency of the procedures is solely 
the responsibility of those parties specified in this report.  Consequently, we make no representation regarding the 
sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or 
for any other purpose. 
 
The procedures performed and our findings were as follows: 
 
1. We obtained the completed worksheets setting forth the calculations necessary to establish OCTA's 

appropriations limit and compared the 2015-16 limit and annual adjustment factors included in those 
worksheets to the limit and annual adjustment factors that were adopted by resolution of OCTA’s Board of 
Directors.  We also compared the population and inflation options included in the aforementioned worksheets 
to those that were selected by a recorded vote of OCTA’s Board of Directors. 

 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.   
 

2. We added last year's limit to the annual adjustment amount, and compared the resulting amount to the  
2015-16 appropriations limit. 

 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.  

 
3. We compared the current year information to the worksheets described in No. 1 above and to information 

provided by the California State Department of Finance. 
 

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 
 
4. We agreed the prior year appropriations limit to the prior year appropriations limit adopted by OCTA’s Board 

of Directors. 
 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.  
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We were not engaged to and did not perform an examination, the objective of which would be the expression of 
an opinion on the Appropriations Limit calculation.  Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to 
you.  No procedures have been performed with respect to the determination of the appropriation limit for the base 
year, as defined by Article XIII-B of the California Constitution. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of OCTA’s Board of Directors and management of 
OCTA and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. 
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California 
October 31, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT  
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES RELATED TO  

THE ARTICLE XIII-B APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT CALCULATION 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
We have performed the procedures enumerated below to the Appropriations Limit calculation of the Orange 
County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  These procedures, 
which were agreed to by OCLTA, were performed solely to assist OCLTA in meeting the requirements of  
Section 1.5 of Article XIII-B of the California Constitution.  OCLTA’s management is responsible for the 
Appropriations Limit calculation.  This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with 
attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  The sufficiency of the 
procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report.  Consequently, we make no 
representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this 
report has been requested or for any other purpose. 
 
The procedures performed and our findings were as follows: 
 
1. We obtained the completed worksheets setting forth the calculations necessary to establish OCLTA's 

appropriations limit and compared the 2015-16 limit and annual adjustment factors included in those 
worksheets to the limit and annual adjustment factors that were adopted by resolution of OCLTA’s Board of 
Directors.  We also compared the population and inflation options included in the aforementioned worksheets 
to those that were selected by a recorded vote of OCLTA’s Board of Directors. 

 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.   
 

2. We added last year's limit to the annual adjustment amount, and compared the resulting amount to the  
2015-16 appropriations limit. 

 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.   

 
3. We compared the current year information to the worksheets described in No. 1 above and to information 

provided by the California State Department of Finance. 
 

Finding:  No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 
 
4. We agreed the prior year appropriations limit to the prior year appropriations limit adopted by OCLTA’s 

Board of Directors. 
 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 
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We were not engaged to and did not perform an examination, the objective of which would be the expression of 
an opinion on the Appropriations Limit calculation.  Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to 
you.  No procedures have been performed with respect to the determination of the appropriation limit for the base 
year, as defined by Article XIII-B of the California Constitution. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of OCLTA’s Board of Directors and management of 
OCLTA and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. 
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California 
October 31, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON 
APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

 
 
 
Board of Directors  
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
 
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has established the following standards with regard to the data reported 
to it in the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form FFA-10 (FFA-10) for the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) annual National Transit Database (NTD) report:   
  

1. A system is in place and maintained for recording data in accordance with NTD definitions.  The 
correct data are being measured and no systematic errors exist.  
 

2. A system is in place to record data on a continuing basis and the data gathering is an ongoing effort.    
 

3. Source documents are available to support the reported data and are maintained for FTA review and 
audit for a minimum of three years following FTA's receipt of the NTD report.  The data are fully 
documented and securely stored.  
 

4. A system of internal controls is in place to ensure the data collection process is accurate and that the 
recording system and reported comments are not altered. Documents are reviewed and signed by a 
supervisor, as required.   
 

5. The data collection methods are those suggested by FTA or meet FTA requirements.  
 

6. The deadhead miles, computed as the difference between the reported total actual vehicle miles data 
and the reported total actual vehicle revenue miles data, appear to be accurate.  
 

7. Data are consistent with prior reporting periods and other facts known about OCTA's operations.  
 

We have applied the procedures described in Attachment 1 of this report, which were agreed to by OCTA and the 
FTA and specified in the declarations section of the 2016 Policy Manual, solely to assist you in evaluating 
whether OCTA complied with the standards described above and that the information included in the NTD report 
FFA-l0 form for the year ended June 30, 2016, is presented in conformity with the requirements of the Uniform 
System of Accounts and Records and Reporting System; Final Rule, as specified in 49 CFR part 630, Federal 
Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2016 Policy Manual. OCTA's management is responsible for 
OCTA's compliance with those standards and the accuracy of the FFA-10 form.  
 
This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the 
responsibility of those parties specified in this report.  Consequently, we make no representation regarding the 
sufficiency of the procedures described in Attachment 1 either for the purpose for which this report has been 
requested or for any other purpose.  
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The procedures and findings described in Attachment 1 of this report, which are referenced in order to correspond 
to the 2016 Policy Manual procedures, were applied separately to each of the information systems used to 
develop the reported vehicle revenue miles (VRM), passenger miles (PM), fixed guideway directional route miles 
(FG DRM), High Intensity Bus Lanes directional route miles (HIB DRM), and operating expenses of OCTA for 
the year ended June 30, 2016, and for each of the following modes: (1) Motor Bus - directly operated (MBDO), 
(2) Commuter Bus – directly operated (CBDO), (3) Motor Bus - purchased transportation (MBPT), (4) Commuter 
Bus – purchased transportation (CBPT), (5) Demand Response - purchased transportation (DRPT), (6) Demand 
Response – Taxi – purchased transportation (DTPT) and (7) Vanpool Service - purchased transportation (VPPT).  
 
We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an 
opinion on compliance with the procedures noted in Exhibit 65 of the NTD 2016 Policy Manual or on the FFA-
10.  Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  Had we performed additional procedures, other matters 
might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.  
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of OCTA management, OCTA Board of Directors and 
the FTA and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.  
 
 
 
Laguna Hills, California 
October 31, 2016 
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Excerpt from the FTA 2016 Policy Manual Exhibit 65 - Federal Funding Allocation Data Review Suggested 
Procedures:  
 
FTA has specified and agreed to a set of procedures for the independent auditor to perform to satisfy the 
requirements of the Federal Funding Allocation data review. Several of the procedures below require the auditor to 
select a random sample of documents or data. The procedures do not specify the selected number (i.e., the 
percentage of the total documents/data). The auditor should use professional judgment to determine the percentage 
that will enable the auditor to make the required assurances. 
 
The source documents and other records (such as data summaries) may be in the form of digital data files. The 
auditor should ensure that these files are securely stored and that a contingency plan is in place to ensure that the 
transit agency retains source documents for a minimum of three years. 

 
a. The procedures to be applied to each applicable mode and type of service (TOS) (directly-operated 

(DO) and purchased transportation (PT)) are: Obtain and read a copy of written system procedures for 
reporting and maintaining data in accordance with NTD requirements and definitions set forth in 49 
CFR Part 630, Federal Register, dated January 15, 1993, and as presented in the 2016 Policy Manual. If 
there are no procedures available, discuss the procedures with the personnel assigned responsibility for 
supervising the NTD data preparation and maintenance. 

 
Results - We obtained and read a copy of OCTA’s Passenger Counting and Reporting (PCR) 
procedures.  Based on our inquiry, we noted that OCTA maintains procedures that satisfy the NTD 
requirements and definitions set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as 
presented in the 2016 Policy Manual. 
  

b. Discuss the procedures (written or informal) with the personnel assigned responsibility for supervising 
the preparation and maintenance of NTD data to determine: 
 

 The extent to which the transit agency followed the procedures on a continuous basis, and 
 Whether these transit personnel believe such procedures result in accumulation and reporting of 

data consistent with NTD definitions and requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal 
Register, dated January 15, 1993, and as presented in the 2016 Policy Manual. 

 
Results - We inquired regarding OCTA’s procedures for the MBDO, MBPT, VPPT, DRPT, DTPT, 
CBDO and CBPT services noting that the asserted procedures were consistently applied.  In addition, 
based on our inquiry with the Business Unit Analyst – Transit Division and the Section Manager – 
Vanpool Program, management asserted that the procedures resulted in the accumulation and 
reporting of data consistent with the NTD definitions and requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, 
Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2016 Policy Manual.   
 

c. Ask these same personnel about the retention policy that the transit agency follows as to source 
documents supporting NTD data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form. 

 
Results - We inquired with the Business Unit Analyst – Transit Division and the Section Manager – 
Vanpool Program, regarding OCTA’s retention policy for source documents supporting NTD data 
reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form.  Per inquiry, the current practice is to 
retain electronic data for seven years. 
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d. Based on a description of the transit agency’s procedures from items (A) and (B) above, identify all the 
source documents that the transit agency must retain for a minimum of three years. For each type of 
source document, select three months out of the year and determine whether the document exists for 
each of these periods. 

 
Results - We inspected the following source documents for each type of service, selected three months 
out of the year and determined that the documents existed for each of these periods: 
 

Type of Service Source Document Months Tested 
MBDO  MBDO Statistics Reports 

(queried from Data Warehouse) 
 Random Sampling Database 
 Trip Sheets 
 NTD Data Worksheets 
 HASTUS Summaries by Route 

 August 2015, December 
2015 and March 2016. 

 Three years of data were 
noted to be archived on 
OCTA’s network. 

CBDO  CBDO Statistics Reports 
(queried from Data Warehouse) 

 Random Sampling Database 
 Trip Sheets 
 NTD Data Worksheets 
 HASTUS Summaries by Route 

 August 2015, December 
2015 and March 2016. 

 Three years of data were 
noted to be archived on 
OCTA’s network. 

MBPT  MBPT Statistics Reports 
(queried from Data Warehouse) 

 Random Sampling Database 
 Trip Sheets 
 NTD Data Worksheets 
 HASTUS Summaries by Route 

 August 2015, December 
2015 and March 2016. 

 Three years of data were 
noted to be archived on 
OCTA’s network. 

CBPT  CBPT Statistics Reports 
(queried from Data Warehouse) 

 Random Sampling Database 
 Trip Sheets 
 NTD Data Worksheets 
 HASTUS Summaries by Route 

 August 2015, December 
2015 and March 2016. 

 Three years of data were 
noted to be archived on 
OCTA’s network. 

DRPT  Contractor Provided NTD 
Program Data reports 

 Driver Manifests 
 Passenger and Mileage 

Summaries from Trapeze 
database 

 August 2015, December 
2015 and March 2016. 

 Three years of data were 
noted to be archived on 
OCTA’s network. 

DTPT  Contractor Provided NTD 
Program Data reports 

 Passenger and Mileage 
Summaries from Trapeze 
database 

 August 2015, December 
2015 and March 2016. 

 Three years of data were 
noted to be archived on 
OCTA’s network. 

VPPT  Detail and Summary Reports 
from Data Warehouse 

 Rider Log-in Website 

 August 2015, December 
2015 and March 2016. 

 Three years of data were 
noted to be archived on 
OCTA’s network. 
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e. Discuss the system of internal controls. Inquire whether separate individuals (independent of the 
individuals preparing source documents and posting data summaries) review the source documents 
and data summaries for completeness, accuracy, and reasonableness and how often these individuals 
perform such reviews. 

 
Results - We inquired regarding the system of internal controls noting that each respective mode/type of 
service is being reviewed by personnel independent of the preparation process. The review is performed 
monthly for all modes with a second review performed quarterly for the MBDO, MBPT, CBDO, CBPT, 
DRPT and DTPT modes and monthly for the VPPT mode. 
 

f. Select a random sample of the source documents and determine whether supervisors’ signatures are 
present as required by the system of internal controls. If supervisors’ signatures are not required, 
inquire how personnel document supervisors’ reviews. 
 
Results - We selected a random sample of 40 Random Check Trip Sheets for the MBDO and MBPT 
services, 10 Random Check Trip Sheets for the CBDO and CBPT services, and 40 random sample 
Drivers Manifests for the DRPT service and noted supervisory signatures documenting reviews of the 
data presented without exception. For DTPT and VPPT, we noted supervisory signatures on the source 
documents which were in electronic format without exception.   

 
g. Obtain the worksheets used to prepare the final data that the transit agency transcribes onto the Federal 

Funding Allocation Statistics form. Compare the periodic data included on the worksheets to the periodic 
summaries prepared by the transit agency. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summaries. 
 
Results - We obtained the worksheets utilized by OCTA to transcribe statistics to the Federal Funding 
Allocation Statistics form and compared the data to summaries without exception.  We tested the 
arithmetical accuracy of the summaries without exception.   
 

h. Discuss the procedure for accumulating and recording passenger miles traveled (PMT) data in accordance 
with NTD requirements with transit agency staff. Inquire whether the procedure is one of the methods 
specifically approved in the 2016 Policy Manual. 
 
Results – Sampling was conducted for the MBDO, MBPT, CBDO and CBPT modes.  We reviewed the 
sampling methodologies and noted that the sampling methodology used met the requirements of the 2016 
Policy Manual. 
 
The remaining 3 modes of services do not involve sampling. These modes use a 100% count of actual PM 
and compilations of actual Revenue Miles which is in accordance with the 2016 Policy Manual. 

 
i. Discuss with transit agency staff (the auditor may wish to list the titles of the persons interviewed) the 

transit agency’s eligibility to conduct statistical sampling for PMT data every third year. Determine 
whether the transit agency meets NTD criteria that allow transit agencies to conduct statistical samples 
for accumulating PMT data every third year rather than annually. Specifically:  
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 According to the 2010 Census, the public transit agency serves an UZA with a population 

less than 500,000. 
 The public transit agency directly operates fewer than 100 revenue vehicles in all modes in 

annual maximum revenue service (VOMS) (in any size UZA). 
 Service purchased from a seller is included in the transit agency’s NTD report. 
 For transit agencies that meet one of the above criteria, review the NTD documentation for 

the most recent mandatory sampling year (2014) and determine that statistical sampling was 
conducted and meets the 95 percent confidence and ±10 percent precision requirements. 

 Determine how the transit agency estimated annual PMT for the current report year. 
 

Results – OCTA did not meet the criteria above.  Therefore the procedure identified above is not 
applicable. 

 
j. Obtain a description of the sampling procedure for estimation of PMT data used by the transit agency. 

Obtain a copy of the transit agency’s working papers or methodology used to select the actual sample 
of runs for recording PMT data. If the transit agency used average trip length, determine that the 
universe of runs was the sampling frame. Determine that the methodology used to select specific runs 
from the universe resulted in a random selection of runs. If the transit agency missed a selected 
sample run, determine that a replacement sample run was random. Determine that the transit agency 
followed the stated sampling procedure. 

 
Results – For the MBDO, MBPT, CBDO and CBPT modes we obtained a copy of OCTA’s methodology 
used in the statistical sampling to estimate Average Passenger Miles (PM) and determined that the 
methodology used by OCTA resulted in a random selection of runs and that the stated sampling 
procedure was followed in accordance with the National Transit Database Sampling Manual.   
 

k. Select a random sample of the source documents for accumulating PMT data and determine that 
the data are complete (all required data are recorded) and that the computations are accurate. Select 
a random sample of the accumulation periods and re-compute the accumulations for each of the 
selected periods. List the accumulation periods that were tested. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the 
summary. 

 
Results - For MBDO we randomly selected 40 surveyed routes from August 2015, December 2015 and 
March 2016.  We verified the mathematical accuracy of the survey count sheets and that the data was 
properly input to the accumulation worksheet designed to perform the Average PM calculation.  No 
exceptions were noted. 
 
For MBPT we randomly selected 40 surveyed routes from August 2015, December 2015 and March 
2016.  We verified the mathematical accuracy of the survey count sheets and that the data was properly 
input to the accumulation worksheet designed to perform the Average PM calculation.  No exceptions 
were noted. 
 
For CBDO we randomly selected 10 surveyed routes from August 2015, December 2015 and March 
2016.  We verified the mathematical accuracy of the survey count sheets and that the data was properly 
input to the accumulation worksheet designed to perform the Average PM calculation.  No exceptions 
were noted. 
 
For CBPT we randomly selected 10 surveyed routes from August 2015, December 2015 and March 
2016.  We verified the mathematical accuracy of the survey count sheets and that the data was properly 
input to the accumulation worksheet designed to perform the Average PM calculation.  No exceptions 
were noted. 
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For DRPT and DTPT modes, we tested contractors providing more than 90% of the services. For these 
contractors we selected 40 routes performed during August 2015, December 2015 and March 2016 and 
compared the PM reported against the signed driver manifests without exception. 
 
For VPPT, we compared ridership being entered on the Vanpool internet database for August 2015, 
December 2015 and March 2016 against amounts uploaded to the Data Warehouse without exception.  
We also tested the revenue miles reported for 40 Vanpool trips and verified the accuracy of calculations 
used to determine PM without exception. 
 

l. Discuss the procedures for systematic exclusion of charter, school bus, and other ineligible vehicle 
miles from the calculation of actual vehicle revenue miles with transit agency staff and determine that 
they follow the stated procedures. Select a random sample of the source documents used to record 
charter and school bus mileage and test the arithmetical accuracy of the computations. 

 
Results - The procedure identified above is not applicable.  Per inquiry with OCTA’s management, 
OCTA did not provide charter or school bus services. 

 
m. For actual vehicle revenue mile (VRM) data, document the collection and recording methodology 

and determine that deadhead miles are systematically excluded from the computation. This is 
accomplished as follows: 

 
 If actual VRMs are calculated from schedules, document the procedures used to subtract missed 

trips. Select a random sample of the days that service is operated, and re-compute the daily total of 
missed trips and missed VRMs. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summary.  

 
Results – For the MBDO, CBDO, MBPT and CBPT modes, OCTA calculated missed hours of 
service rather than missed trips.  This resulted in a Total Actual Revenue Vehicle Hours (RVH) by 
mode as a percentage of Monthly Total Scheduled VRM calculation, which is computed by dividing 
the number of service hours actually operated by the number of service hours scheduled. This 
percentage is applied to scheduled VRMs to determine the number of VRMs actually operated and 
the number of missed VRMs.  We selected a sample of four routes, recalculated the VRMs and 
compared them to amounts used in the total VRM without exception.  We recalculated the 
percentage of actual revenue hours over the scheduled revenue hours used to determine the missed 
VRM, without exception.   
 

 If actual VRMs are calculated from hubodometers, document the procedures used to calculate and 
subtract deadhead mileage. Select a random sample of the hubodometer readings and determine 
that the stated procedures for hubodometer deadhead mileage adjustments are applied as 
prescribed. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summary of intermediate accumulations. 

 
Results - This procedure is not applicable.   

 
 If actual VRMs are calculated from vehicle logs, select random samples of the vehicle logs and 

determine that the deadhead mileage has been correctly computed in accordance with FTA 
definitions. 

 
Results - For the DRPT mode, Revenue Miles are calculated based on the odometer readings from 
the first pickup to the last drop off.  Deadhead miles are excluded from the Revenue Miles 
calculations.  We randomly selected 30 trips to test and noted without exception that the deadhead 
miles are not included in the Revenue Miles calculations. 
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For the DTPT mode, the Revenue Miles are calculated by the contractors based on pick up and 
drop off data entered into the scheduling software.  The Revenue Miles data is uploaded to the 
OCTA database and compared to the scheduling data for quality assurance.  There are no 
deadhead miles since these are non-dedicated taxi trips and accordingly Revenue Miles for each 
trip are recorded. 
 
For the VPPT mode deadhead miles are automatically excluded because only commute miles are 
entered into the calculation of Revenue Miles and the results are reviewed by the Section Manager 
– Vanpool Program. 

 
 n.  For rail modes, review the recording and accumulation sheets for actual VRMs and determine that 

locomotive miles are not included in the computation. 
 

Results - The procedure identified above is not applicable as OCTA does not provide rail service.   
 

o. If fixed guideway or High Intensity Busway directional route miles (FG or HIB DRM) are reported, 
interview the person responsible for maintaining and reporting NTD data whether the operations 
meet FTA definition of fixed guideway (FG) or High Intensity Busway (HIB) in that the service is: 

 Rail, trolleybus (TB), ferryboat (FB), or aerial tramway (TR); or 

 Bus (MB, CB, or RB) service operating over exclusive or controlled access rights-of- way (ROW); and 

i. Access is restricted; 

ii. Legitimate need for restricted access is demonstrated by peak period level of service or 
worse on a parallel adjacent highway; 

iii. Restricted access is enforced for freeways; priority lanes used by other high occupancy 
vehicles (HOV) (i.e., vanpools (VP), carpools) must demonstrate safe operation; and 

iv. High Occupancy/Toll (HO/T) lanes meet FHWA requirements for traffic flow and use 
of toll revenues. The transit agency has provided the NTD a copy of the State’s 
certification to the U.S. Secretary of Transportation stating that it has established a 
program for monitoring, assessing, and reporting on the operation of the HOV facility 
with HO/T lanes. 

 
Results – We interviewed the Business Unit Analyst – Transit Division and determined that OCTA’s 
Motor Bus services operate over HIB lanes that appear consistent with the FTA’s definition of High 
Intensity Bus lanes. 

 
p. Discuss the measurement of FG and HIB DRM with the person reporting NTD data and determine that 

the he or she computed mileage in accordance with FTA definitions of FG/HIB and DRM. Inquire of 
any service changes during the year that resulted in an increase or decrease in DRMs. If a service 
change resulted in a change in overall DRMs, re-compute the average monthly DRMs, and reconcile 
the total to the FG/HIB DRM reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form. 
 
Results – We determined that the mileage was computed in accordance with the FTA definitions of 
FG/HIB DRM. Per inquiry we determined that there was an increase in DRMs for the CBPT mode. We 
recomputed the average monthly DRM for all reported segments and reconciled the total to the HIB 
DRM without exception. 

 
q.  Inquire if any temporary interruptions in transit service occurred during the report year. If these 

interruptions were due to maintenance or rehabilitation improvements to a FG segment(s), the 
following apply: 
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 Report DRMs for the segment(s) for the entire report year if the interruption is less than 12 
months in duration. Report the months of operation on the FG/HIB segments form as 12. The 
transit agency should document the interruption. 

 If the improvements cause a service interruption on the FG/HIB DRMs lasting more than 12 
months, the transit agency should contact its NTD validation analyst to discuss. FTA will 
make a determination on how to report the DRMs. 

  
 
Results – Per inquiry with the Business Unit Analyst – Transit Division there were no temporary 
interruptions in transit service during the report year. 

 
r. Measure FG/HIB DRM from maps or by retracing route. 

 
Results - We recalculated the length of all High Intensity Bus directional routes for both MBDO, 
MBPT, CBDO and CBPT modes of service using publicly available maps without exception. 

 
s. Discuss whether other public transit agencies operate service over the same FG/HIB as the transit 

agency. If yes, determine that the transit agency coordinated with the other transit agency (or agencies) 
such that the DRMs for the segment of FG/HIB are reported only once to the NTD on the Federal 
Funding Allocation form. Each transit agency should report the actual VRM, PMT, and OE for the 
service operated over the same FG/HIB. 

 
Results - We interviewed the Business Unit Analyst – Transit Division and noted that OCTA does share 
some High Intensity Lanes.  However, the shared High Intensity Lanes were noted as claimed by the 
proper agency per the NTD annual reporting manual, and not by OCTA. 

  
t. Review the FG/HIB segments form. Discuss the Agency Revenue Service Start Date for any segments 

added in the 2016 report year with the persons reporting NTD data. This is the commencement date of 
revenue service for each FG/HIB segment. Determine that the date reported is the date that the agency 
began revenue service. This may be later than the Original Date of Revenue Service if the transit 
agency is not the original operator. If a segment was added for the 2016 report year, the Agency Revenue 
Service Date must occur within the transit agency’s 2016 fiscal year. Segments are grouped by like 
characteristics. Note that for apportionment purposes, under the State of Good Repair (§5337) and 
Bus and Bus Facilities (§5339) programs, the 7-year age requirement for fixed guideway/High 
Intensity Busway segments is based on the report year when the segment is first reported by any NTD 
transit agency. This pertains to segments reported for the first time in the current report year. Even if 
a transit agency can document an Agency Revenue Service Start Date prior to the current NTD report 
year, FTA will only consider segments continuously reported to the NTD. 

 
Results - We obtained the HIB segments form noting the High Intensity segments and dates. It was 
noted that OCTA added new segments to the CBPT mode during the year. Per inquiry with the Business 
Unit Analyst – Transit Division, the segments added to the form during the year were based on the 
inception of revenue service.  No exceptions noted.   
 

u. Compare operating expenses with audited financial data after reconciling items are removed. 
 

Results - Operating expenses were compared to the trial balances subject to audit without exception.   
 

v. If the transit agency purchases transportation services, interview the personnel reporting the NTD data 
on the amount of PT-generated fare revenues. The PT fare revenues should equal the amount reported 
on the Contractual Relationship form. 
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Results - We identified the PT fare revenues reported on the Contractual Relationship form and 
reconciled the amounts to the general ledger without exception. 
 

w. If the transit agency’s report contains data for PT services and assurances of the data for those services 
are not included, obtain a copy of the IAS-FFA regarding data for the PT service. Attach a copy of the 
statement to the report. Note as an exception if the transit agency does not have an Independent 
Auditor Statement for the PT data. 

 
Results – The data for purchased transportation and all assurances of the data for those services are 
included in the reporting by OCTA and therefore no IAS for the purchased transportation services is 
required.   
 

x. If the transit agency purchases transportation services, obtain a copy of the PT contract and determine 
that the contract specifies the public transportation services to be provided; the monetary 
consideration obligated by the transit agency or governmental unit contracting for the service; the 
period covered by the contract (and that this period overlaps the entire, or a portion of, the period 
covered by the transit agency’s NTD report); and is signed by representatives of both parties to the 
contract. Interview the person responsible for retention of the executed contract, and determine that 
copies of the contracts are retained for three years. 

 
Results - We inspected the MBPT, CBPT, DRPT, DTPT and VPPT service contracts and determined 
that they contained the items noted above without exception.  We inquired with the Business Unit 
Analyst – Transit Division and the Section Manager – Vanpool Program, regarding OCTA’s retention 
policy for executed contracts for purchased transportation programs.  Per inquiry, the current practice 
is to retain contracts for seven years. 
 

y. If the transit agency provides service in more than one UZA, or between an UZA and a non-UZA, 
inquire of the procedures for allocation of statistics between UZAs and non- UZAs. Obtain and review 
the FG segment worksheets, route maps, and urbanized area boundaries used for allocating the statistics, 
and determine that the stated procedure is followed and that the computations are correct. 

 
Results - OCTA provides services in more than one UZA but does not provide services to non urbanized 
areas.  Allocations to urbanized areas are based on trip pattern analysis.  The number of yearly trips 
per pattern is multiplied by the number of miles determined for each UZA. Eight allocations were tested 
for the MBDO, MBPT, CBDO and CBPT services without exception. 

 
z. Compare the data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form to data from the prior 

report year and calculate the percentage change from the prior year to the current year. For actual VRM, 
PMT or OE data that have increased or decreased by more than 10 percent, or FG DRM data that 
have increased or decreased. Interview transit agency management regarding the specifics of 
operations that led to the increases or decreases in the data relative to the prior reporting period. 

 
Results – The following fluctuations were noted on the FFA-10 Form: 
 

 A 16.7% decrease in Passenger Miles for MBDO 
 A 19.0% increase in Revenue Miles for MBPT 
 A 16.0% increase in Passenger Miles for MBPT 
 A 24.4% increase in Operating Expenses for MBPT 
 A 26.4% decrease in Operating Expenses for CBDO 
 A 20.0% decrease in Operating Expenses for CBPT 
 A 10.0% increase in Operating Expenses for DRPT 
 A 13.1% increase in Revenue Miles for DTPT 
 A 12.8% increase in Passenger Miles for DTPT 
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 A 27.2% increase in Operating Expenses for DTPT 
 A 12.5% increase in Operating Expenses for VPPT 

 
A 16.7% decrease in the Passenger Miles for MBDO was noted. Per inquiry with the Section Manager 
– Transit Program Controls, this is the result of the governing board’s decision to transition bus 
services to a contractor.  
 
A 19.0% increase in Revenue Miles, a 16.0% increase in Passenger Miles and a 24.4% increase in 
Operating Expenses for MBPT were noted. These are also the result of the governing board’s decision 
to move bus services from being directly operated by OCTA to a contractor.  
 
A 26.4% decrease in Operating Expenses for CBDO was noted. Per inquiry with the Section Manager – 
Transit Program Controls, this is the result of the governing board’s decision to transition commuter 
bus services to a contractor. 
 
A 20.0% decrease in Operating Expenses for CBPT was noted. Per inquiry with the Section Manager – 
Transit Program Controls, this is the result from both a change in service provider reducing variable 
costs and the exclusion of OCTA’s subsidy for the operation of the Riverside Transit Agency from the 
CBPT operating expenses. 
 
A 10.0% increase in Operating Expenses for DRPT was noted. Per inquiry with the Section Manager – 
Transit Program Controls, this is the result of a change in the cost allocation method and an increase 
in liability insurance costs.  
 
A 13.1% increase in Revenue Miles, a 12.8% increase in Passenger Miles and a 27.2% increase in 
Operating Expenses for DTPT were noted. Per inquiry with the Section Manager – Transit Program 
Controls, this is the result of an increase in ridership due to the popularity of the service. 
 
A 12.5% increase in Operating Expenses for VPPT was noted. Per inquiry with the Section Manager – 
Vanpool Program, this is the result of an increase in participation in the Vanpool program. 

 
aa. The auditor should document the specific procedures followed, documents reviewed, and tests 

performed in the work papers. The work papers should be available for FTA review for a minimum of 
three years following the NTD report year. The auditor may perform additional procedures, which 
are agreed to by the auditor and the transit agency, if desired. The auditor should clearly identify 
the additional procedures performed in a separate attachment to the statement as procedures that were 
agreed to by the transit agency and the auditor but not by FTA. 

 
Results – We have documented the procedures followed based on the FTA 2016 Policy Manual Exhibit 
65 - Federal Funding Allocation Data Review - Suggested Procedures, and noted the documents 
reviewed and tests performed in our workpapers. Additional procedures were not performed.  
 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 Janet Sutter, Executive Director 
 Internal Audit Department 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015-16 Management Letter 
 
 
Overview 
 
In connection with the annual audit of the Orange County Transportation 
Authority’s financial statements, schedules, and agreements for 
fiscal year 2015-16, Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, LLP, has issued a 
management letter with four recommendations for improvement to internal 
controls.   
 
Recommendations 
 
A. Receive and file the Orange County Transportation Authority 

Management Letter June 30, 2016. 
 
B. Direct staff to implement auditor recommendations related to the 

information technology environment.  
 
Background 
 
Pursuant to Section 28770 of the Public Utilities Code, the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA) prepares an annual set of financial 
statements presenting OCTA’s results of operations and financial position at 
fiscal year-end. OCTA is required to obtain an independent auditor’s opinion on 
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), as well as various fund 
financial statements, schedules, and agreements. The audit was performed by 
Vavrinek, Trine, Day and Company, LLP (VTD), an independent accounting 
firm. In connection with the audit, VTD has issued a management letter, as 
required by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), 
Statement on Auditing Standards Number 115. 
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Discussion 
 
VTD has completed annual audits of OCTA’s CAFR and various fund financial 
statements, schedules, and agreements and has issued an independent 
auditor’s opinion thereon for the fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 2016. In 
connection with the audit, VTD has issued a management letter identifying four 
control deficiencies as defined by the AICPA, Statement on Auditing Standards 
Number 115.  
 
The auditors recommended that management establish a more sustainable 
patch management framework for the Information Technology environment. 
Specifically, a formal implementation plan, including an assessment of required 
resources and a timeline was recommended. Management agreed and 
indicated that staff is in discussions with Microsoft to possibly engage their 
services to streamline the software update management cycle and create a 
documented process to keep systems up to date with security patches. 
Additionally, management has increased resources to its cyber security team 
by adding a full-time position. 
 
With regard to third party external penetration tests and internal vulnerability 
reports, the auditors recommended more frequent and extensive testing and 
timely corrective action. Also, the auditors recommended social engineering 
tests to strengthen the current employee education program. Management 
responded that the recommendations will be evaluated and procedures 
updated as appropriate. 
 
While OCTA maintains documentation of business resumption and disaster 
recovery procedures, the auditors noted that “disaster recovery laptops” have 
not been established. The auditors recommended management consider 
establishing designated laptops as disaster recovery machines to aid in 
business resumption. In response, management expressed concern with using 
laptops for this purpose because of the potential that the machines could be 
stored away and not function properly when needed. Management indicated 
that processes would be put in place to set up and regularly test equipment for 
disaster recovery after an evaluation and identification of the best media to be 
used for this purpose. 
 
Finally, the auditors recommended that management provide an email 
encryption portal or path for stakeholders and external partners to send emails 
to OCTA. Management indicated that this recommendation would be reviewed 
with relevant consultants for further guidance. 
 
The management letter for FY 2015-16 is included herewith as Attachment A. 
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Summary 
 
In connection with the annual audit of OCTA’s financial statements for 
FY 2015-16, VTD has issued a management letter, which identified four 
recommendations for improvement to internal controls. Management has 
responded that these items will be addressed.  
 
Attachment 
 
A. Orange County Transportation Authority Management Letter for the 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

Janet Sutter 
Executive Director, Internal Audit 
714-560-5591 
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Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Certified Public Accountants

VALUE  THE  D IFFERENCE

Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California  

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered OCTA’s internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of OCTA’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of OCTA’s internal control.  

We have previously reported on OCTA’s internal control in our report dated October 31, 2016, in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards.  This letter does not affect our report dated October 31, 2016, on the 
financial statements of OCTA.   

During our audit we noted certain matters involving internal control or operations that are presented for your 
consideration.  These observations and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with the appropriate 
members of management, are intended to improve internal control or result in other operating efficiencies and are 
summarized on the accompanying pages. 

CURRENT YEAR MANAGEMENT LETTER OBSERVATIONS 

1. SERVER AND DESKTOP PATCHES TO PREVENT THE EXPLOITATION OF INFORMATION
SYSTEMS (IS) VULNERABILITIES

OBSERVATION:

OCTA is in the process of applying patches to its IS environment but needs to establish a more sustainable
patch management framework.

RECOMMENDATION:

Generally, patch management is a critical risk area of the IS environment.  Per inquiry, management has
considered different approaches but this is an area that continues to require attention.  A formal
implementation plan, assessment of required resources and timeline should be established so that patches are
prioritized and brought current.  In addition, OCTA should consider expanding its utilization of tools it has
available to sort and prioritize patches that require remediation in a timely manner.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE: 

Information Systems agrees to continually improve the processes and procedures for patch management. 
After the recent cyber incident, staff has substantially increased the frequency of patching our systems.  The 
goal is to have all of our Microsoft Windows based servers and desktops patched monthly. 

In addition to conversations with Microsoft to possibly engage their Software Update Management service, 
staff has permanently increased resources to its cyber security team by adding an additional full time position 
to it.  The purpose of these engagements will be to streamline our software update management cycle and 
create a documented, disciplined process that will help us keep our systems up to date, especially with the 
latest security patches.  If Microsoft is not engaged, staff will seek other vendors to perform this service.  The 
added staff resource will implement and maintain the processes and procedures recommended by the engaged 
vendor to keep software patches up to date. 

2. EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL TESTING FREQUENCY AND REPORTING:

OBSERVATION:

Based on our inspection of third party external penetration testing and internal vulnerability reports, it was
noted that only a sample of external and internal assets were tested.  Further, these third party assessments
were performed on an annual basis.

RECOMMENDATION:

Given the size and complexity of OCTA’s IS environment, OCTA should evaluate more frequent external
penetration and internal vulnerability assessments.  With respect to internal vulnerability assessments, OCTA
performs monthly scans from Qualys but the scans should be configured to generate more frequent internal
vulnerability reports.  Qualys maintains the capability of providing assessments daily.  Vulnerabilities and
risks should be prioritized with timely corrective action and leveraged for third party exams.

Annual vendor testing should consider including all assets on the external facing and internal facing networks.
The purpose of this third party testing is to validate OCTA’s procedures, security posture and reduce the risk
with IS assets.  Further, following a breach or incident, a more aggressive testing schedule should be
performed.

In addition, while OCTA has rolled out an employee education program on IS risks, OCTA should consider
performing social engineering testing as an additional tool for strengthening OCTA’s IS security.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE

Information Systems agrees with the recommendation and will evaluate the request to increase the frequency
of both the external penetration testing and the internal vulnerability assessments in order to improve our
overall security posture.  We will also consider adding social engineering techniques into the external
penetration testing.

Information Systems will work with Dell SecureWorks, our Managed Security provider to optimize usage of
the Qualys network security and vulnerability management toolset.  We will also engage with Dell Secure
Works to determine the changes in scope for our penetration testing to include all assets both on our external
facing and internal facing networks.
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Information Systems is already in the process of procuring consulting services for an Industrial Control 
System (ICS) Cyber Assessment.  By doing so we will be able to better gauge the risk associated with our 
ICS components and put in the proper monitoring procedures to better protect those assets. 
 
In response to more aggressive testing after the security incident, Information Systems did engage with 
Microsoft’s advanced security team to determine the impact of the event.  IS decided not to perform 
additional penetration testing due to the incident but will review and update our procedures if we deem that 
the additional testing will add value. 
 
 

3. BUSINESS RESUMPTION AND DISASTER RECOVERY STRATEGY: 
 
OBSERVATION: 
 
It was noted that OCTA maintains documentation for business resumption and disaster recovery procedures.  
However, we noted that OCTA has not established “disaster recovery laptops”.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
As OCTA evaluates its continuity of operations and disaster recovery plans, we recommend that OCTA 
consider establishing disaster recovery (DR) laptops or designating current laptop computers as DR personal 
computers (PC) to aid in business resumption.  The DR laptops, tablets or DR virtual PCs should have all 
required scripts, usernames, passwords, software dependencies, vendor contacts, recovery and backup paths, 
master images, group policy objects, active directory configuration settings, connectivity paths and any other 
supporting information that may be required to restore the IS environment.  The data on these laptops should 
utilize password vaults, software and script libraries, and be encrypted.  Documentation of each designated 
PC, tablet or laptop should be recorded within the current recovery procedures so that if a disaster is declared, 
the disaster recovery team is aware of the assets.  These assets should also be incorporated in the annual DR 
testing plan.   
 
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE: 
 
Information Systems agrees that having key information listed above readily available during the event of a 
disaster would be beneficial to the success of the recovery.  Our concern with using laptops is that they may 
get stored away and not function properly when needed.  Information Systems will go forward with the 
recommendation but evaluate what would be the best media available to store the information.  No matter the 
media determined to be used, processes will need to be put in place to regularly test the equipment to ensure 
that it is fully functional during the event of a disaster. 
 
 

4. ENCRYPTED EMAIL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
OBSERVATION: 
 
OCTA has asserted that outbound email is encrypted.  However, OCTA does not provide an email encryption 
portal or path for stakeholders.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
OCTA should consider providing stakeholders and external contacts an encrypted path for sending emails to 
OCTA.    
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE 

Information Systems will engage with both Microsoft (our primary email provider) and Gartner (our IS 
Advisory Service) in guiding us how to properly meet the recommendation of allowing our external partners a 
way to securely send email to OCTA.  Microsoft has stated that the majority of third party email service 
providers encrypt their messages in transit via Transport Layer Security (TLS).  Staff will confirm this as part 
of our research. 

********* 

Our audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements, and 
therefore may not bring to light all weaknesses in policies or procedures that may exist.  We aim, however, to use 
our knowledge of the Orange County Transportation Authority gained during our work to make observations and 
suggestions that we hope will be useful to you. 

We would be pleased to discuss these observations and recommendations with you at any time.  This report is 
intended solely for the information and use of OCTA, management, and others within OCTA and is not intended 
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Laguna Hills, California 
October 31, 2016 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 Janet Sutter, Executive Director  
 Internal Audit Department 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015-16 Auditor’s Communication to Those Charged 

with Governance 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority is required to obtain an 
independent auditor’s opinion on its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, 
various fund financial statements, schedules, and agreements. Vavrinek, Trine, 
Day & Company, LLP, an independent accounting firm, conducted the annual 
audit of the Orange County Transportation Authority’s financial statements, 
schedules, and agreements for fiscal year 2015-16, and has issued reports 
thereon. Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, LLP, as required by United States 
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Office of Management and Budget 
Circular A-133, has herewith issued its Auditor’s Communication to Those 
Charged with Governance. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
Pursuant to United States Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Vavrinek, Trine, Day & 
Company, LLP (VTD) is required to communicate significant matters related to 
its audits of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), fund financial 
statements, schedules, and agreements of the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) that are relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with 
overseeing the financial reporting process. 
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Discussion 
 
VTD completed its annual audit of OCTA’s CAFR, fund financial statements, 
schedules, and agreements and has issued independent auditor opinions for 
the fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 2016. As part of its responsibilities, VTD 
has also issued documented communication to those charged with 
governance. The purpose of this communication is to outline the scope and 
responsibilities of the auditor in relation to the audit, significant findings 
resulting from the audit, and any difficulties or disagreements with 
management encountered during the audit.  
 
VTD has indicated they encountered no significant difficulties or disagreements 
when dealing with management during the course of the audit. VTD’s 
communication to those charged with governance for FY 2015-16 is included 
herewith as Attachment A. 
 
Summary 
 
In connection with its annual audit of OCTA’s CAFR, fund financial statements, 
schedules, and agreements for FY 2015-16, VTD has issued a letter which 
provides required communication as to the scope, responsibilities, and 
observations of the auditor arising during the audit. 
 
Attachment 
 
A. Letter to the Board of Directors, Orange County Transportation Authority, 

from Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, LLP, signed October 31, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Approved by: 

 
 
 

Janet Sutter Janet Sutter 
Executive Director, Internal Audit 
714-560-5591 

Executive Director, Internal Audit 
714-560-5591 
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Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) for 
the year ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our reports thereon dated as indicated below: 

Report Audit Report Date 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) October 31, 2016 
91 Express Lanes Fund October 31, 2016 
Local Transportation Fund (LTF) October 31, 2016 
State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) October 31, 2016 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA) October 31, 2016 

We are currently performing the compliance audit of OCTA's federal award programs (the Single Audit) and plan 
to issue our reports thereon prior to December 31, 2016. 

Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally 
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information in our 
letter to you dated August 31, 2016.  Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by OCTA are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  As described in Note 18 to 
the financial statements, OCTA adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72, 
Fair Value Measurement and Application and GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues - an amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73, effective July 1, 2015.  We noted no transactions entered into by OCTA 
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have 
been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  The 
most sensitive estimates affecting OCTA's financial statements were: 

Management’s estimates used in: establishing allowances and recognizing toll road violations, 
risk management claims, fair value of investments, depreciation expense and the value of capital 
assets, amortization of intangible assets, other postemployment benefit liabilities and the net 
pension liability and related deferred inflows/outflows of resources and pension expense.  We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that 
they were reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users.  The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was: 

The disclosure of OCTA's defined benefit pension plans, net pension liabilities and related 
deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources in Note 11 to the financial 
statements.  The valuation of the net pension liability and related deferred outflows (inflows) of 
resources are sensitive to the underlying actuarial assumptions used including, but not limited to, 
the investment rate of return and discount rate, and the proportionate share of the Plan's collective 
net pension liability.  As disclosed in Note 11, a 1% increase or decrease in the discount rate has a 
significant effect on OCTA's net pension liabilities.  

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letters, dated as follows: 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) October 31, 2016 
91 Express Lanes Fund October 31, 2016 
Local Transportation Fund (LTF) October 31, 2016 
State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) October 31, 2016 
Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA) October 31, 2016 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to OCTA’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may 
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as OCTA’s auditors.  However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention. 
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Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison 
information, supplemental pension plan trend data and other post employment benefit schedules, which are 
required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements.  Our procedures 
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We did not audit the RSI and do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the combining and individual fund statements and schedules, which accompany the 
financial statements but are not RSI.  With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries 
of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method 
of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation 
to our audit of the financial statements.  We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the 
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

We were not engaged to report on the introductory section and statistical section, which accompany the financial 
statements but are not RSI.  Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
it.  

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements 

OCTA plans to include the audited financial statements in the annual report for the 91 Express Lanes Fund.  Our 
responsibility for other information in such documents does not extend beyond the financial information 
identified in our report.  We do not have any obligation to perform any procedures to corroborate other 
information contained in these documents.  Our procedures are limited to reading the information and comparing 
such information to the audited financial statements. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of OCTA and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Laguna Hills, California 
October 31, 2016 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 Janet Sutter, Executive Director 
 Internal Audit Department 
 
Subject: Laguna Beach Municipal Transit Lines, Annual Transportation 

Development Act Program Audit for Fiscal Year 2015-16 
 
 
Overview 
 
Pursuant to Part 21, Section 6667 of the California Code of Regulations, an 
audit of Transportation Development Act Article 4 Funds disbursed to the City 
of Laguna Beach has been conducted for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, 
by Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, LLP.  
 
Recommendation  
 
Receive and file the Laguna Beach Municipal Transit Lines, Transportation 
Development Act Program audit for fiscal year 2015-16, as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
The Transportation Development Act (TDA) provides, as a source of funding 
for public transportation, the Local Transportation Fund (LTF).  LTF revenues 
are derived from a quarter-cent of retail sales taxes. The quarter-cent is 
returned by the State Board of Equalization to each county according to the 
amount of tax collected in that county. 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) is responsible for 
administering the TDA’s various components under the LTF, which include 
Article 4 Funds for Transit Operating and Capital Programs.  
 
Discussion 
 
The California Code of Regulations, Part 21, Section 6664 requires 
cities  (claimants) that expend TDA funds to obtain an independent fiscal and 
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compliance audit and submit the results of that audit to the State Controller’s 
Office within 180 days of fiscal year end. On behalf of its claimants, OCTA 
contracts with Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, LLP (VTD) to perform these 
audits and ensures submission of the audits as required. 
 
For the fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 2016, VTD completed an audit of TDA 
Article 4 Funds disbursed to the City of Laguna Beach (City).  
 
The audit found that the City used LTF funds allocated and dispersed to them 
in accordance with applicable TDA rules and regulations, and OCTA policies 
and procedures. 
 
Summary 
 
The required audit of TDA Article 4 funds expended under the Transit 
Operating and Capital Program has been conducted for the FY ended 
June 30, 2016, by VTD.  
 
Attachment 
 
A. Laguna Beach Municipal Transit Lines Transportation Development Act 

Funds Financial Statements and Supplemental Data Year Ended 
June 30, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

Approved by: 
 
 
 

 
Janet Sutter 

Janet Sutter 

Executive Director, Internal Audit 
714-560-5591 

Executive Director, Internal Audit 
714-560-5591 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 4 
Funds of the Operating and Capital Program (Funds) of the Laguna Beach Municipal Transit Lines (LBMTL), an 
enterprise fund of the City of Laguna Beach, California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the LBMTL, an enterprise fund of the City, as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in its financial 
position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the LBMTL of the City and do not purport to, and do 
not, present fairly the financial position of the City as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in its financial position 
and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.   

As described in Note 2, the LBMTL of the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, and GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues – An 
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73, effective July 1, 2015.  Our opinion is not modified 
with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of the 
LBMTL’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and schedule of contributions for the retirement plan 
(required supplementary information), on pages 20 and 21 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the LBMTL’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of allocations received and 
expended, by project year, (supplementary information) is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not 
a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements 
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis for the LBMTL that accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion 
on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
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Prior-Year Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the 2015 financial statements of the LBMTL, and enterprise fund of the City, and we 
expressed an unmodified opinion on the financial statements in our report dated December 18, 2015.  The 
financial statements include summarized prior-year comparative information.  Such information does not include 
all of the information required to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with 
LBMTL’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015, from which such summarized information was 
derived.   

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 19, 2016, on 
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting for the LBMTL and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting for the LBMTL and 
compliance. 

Laguna Hills, California 
December 19, 2016 
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2016 2015
ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and investments 580,304$       646,602$       
Receivables:

Accrued revenues 1,874  4,617   
Intergovernmental 970,016   1,340,816  

Prepaid expenses 24,623  55,600    

Total Current Assets 1,576,817   2,047,635  

Capital Assets, Net (Note 3) 3,626,526   3,933,380  

Total Assets 5,203,343   5,981,015  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amount related to pensions 75,558  58,880    

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 115,536   733,904  
Compensated absences 1,581  3,305   

Total Current Liabilities 117,117   737,209  

Non-current Liabilities:
Compensated absences 6,328  13,220    
Net pension liability 385,609   358,477  

Total Non-current Liabilities 391,937   371,697  

Total Liabilities 509,054   1,108,906  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amount related to pensions 34,634  85,663    

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets 3,626,526   3,933,380  
Unrestricted 1,108,687   911,946  

Total Net Position 4,735,213$    4,845,326$    

Article 4



LAGUNA BEACH MUNICIPAL TRANSIT LINES 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT  
  ARTICLE 4 FUNDS 
  OPERATING AND CAPITAL PROGRAM 
 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
(with Comparative Totals for June 30, 2015) 
 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
 

5 

2016 2015
Operating Revenues:

Passenger revenues 313,458$      319,135$       

Operating Expenses:
Transit administration 305,936        324,759         
Transit maintenance 395,025        434,835         
Transit operations 1,968,862     1,404,718      
Depreciation 306,854        269,860         

Total Operating Expenses 2,976,677     2,434,172      

Operating income (loss) (2,663,219)    (2,115,037)     

Non-Operating Revenues:
TDA allocation 1,115,108     1,067,376      
Other 97                 4,650             
Investment income 1,034            134                
Intergovernmental revenues (Note 4) 781,683        983,024         

Total Non-Operating Revenues 1,897,922     2,055,184      

Income (loss) before transfers (765,297)       (59,853)          

Transfers from the City of Laguna Beach (Note 5) 655,184        1,116,734      

Change in Net Position (110,113)       1,056,881      

Net position at beginning of year 4,845,326     3,788,445      

Net position at end of year 4,735,213$   4,845,326$    

Article 4
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2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers 316,298$       324,512$       
Cash payment to suppliers for goods and services (1,570,885)  (143,720)      
Cash payment to employees for services (1,735,520)  (1,415,174)   

Net cash used for operating activities (2,990,107)  (1,234,382)   

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating grant proceeds received 1,152,483   297,827  
Cash received from operating grants (TDA Allocation) 1,115,108   1,039,511  
Cash received from the City of Laguna Beach 655,184    1,093,000  

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 2,922,775   2,430,338  

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 4,110 
Purchase of capital assets - (604,163) 

Net cash used for capital and related 
financing activities - (600,053) 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 1,034   134  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (66,298)  596,037  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 646,602    50,565  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 580,304$       646,602$       

Article 4
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2016 2015
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
  used for operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (2,663,219)$     (2,115,037)$   
Adjustments to reconcile operating
 income (loss) to net cash provided by
 (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation 306,854   269,860   
Pension expense 34,171   26,963   
Other income 97  540  
Decrease in receivables 2,743   4,837   
(Increase) in prepaids 30,977   (6,000)  
Payments related to deferred outflows for contributions subsequent to 
   measurement date (74,746)  (58,880)  
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (618,368)  638,741   
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (8,616)  4,594   

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (2,990,107)$     (1,234,382)$   

Article 4



LAGUNA BEACH MUNICIPAL TRANSIT LINES 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT  
  ARTICLE 4 FUNDS 
  OPERATING AND CAPITAL PROGRAM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

8 

NOTE 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION 

The financial statements are intended to reflect the financial position and results of operations for the Laguna 
Beach Municipal Transit Lines’ (LBMTL’s) Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 4 Funds of the 
Operating and Capital Program (Funds) only. 

Pursuant to Section 99260 of the California Public Utilities Code, Article 4 monies may be used for the support of 
public transportation systems, aid to public transportation research and demonstration projects, and contributions 
for the construction of grade separation projects. 

The City of Laguna Beach, California (City), acting on behalf of LBMTL, submits a claim to the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA) for disbursement of Article 4 funds.  The City may submit the claim either 
prior or subsequent to incurring allowable expenses.  After review and approval of the claim, OCTA issues the 
allocation disbursement instructions to the County of Orange Auditor-Controller.  Following instructions from 
OCTA, funds are disbursed from the County of Orange, Local Transportation Fund to the City. 

NOTE 2 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups.  A fund is defined as an 
independent fiscal and accounting entity wherein operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that record assets, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, related liabilities, obligations, 
and net position segregated for the purpose of carrying out specific activities or attaining certain objectives in 
accordance with special regulations, restrictions or limitations.  The City accounts for the activity of LBMTL in 
its Municipal Transit Fund, which is an Enterprise Fund. 

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed primarily through user charges, or where the 
governing body has decided that determination of net income is appropriate.  Fund operating revenues are those 
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund, passenger fares.  All other revenues are non-
operating.   

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Enterprise funds of the City are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized 
when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 

Cash and Investments 

Cash and investments are pooled to facilitate cash management and maximize investment opportunities and 
yields.  Investment income resulting from this pooling is allocated to the respective funds including the LBMTL 
based upon the average cash balance.  The investment policies and the risks related to Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures, applicable to the LBMTL, 
are those of the City and are disclosed in the City’s basic financial statements.  The City’s basic financial 
statements can be obtained at City Hall.  For the purpose of the cash flow statement, amounts maintained in the 
City Pool are considered cash and cash equivalents. 
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NOTE 2 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED) 

The LBMTL’s cash and investments are reported at fair value.  The fair value measurements are based on the fair 
value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation 
inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
The LBMTL’s deposits and withdrawals in the City Investment Pool are made on the basis of $1 and not fair 
value.  Accordingly, the LBMTL’s investment in the City Investment Pool is an uncategorized input not defined 
as a Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3 input. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded at cost where historical records are available and at estimated historical cost where no 
historical records exist.  Contributed capital assets are valued at their acquisition value at the date of the 
contribution.  Generally, capital asset purchases in excess of $1,000 are capitalized if they have an expected useful 
life of three years or more.  

Capital assets used in operations are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. 
Depreciation is charged as an expense against operations and accumulated depreciation is reported in the 
respective statement of net position.  The range of lives used for depreciation purposes for each fixed asset class is 
as follows: 

Useful Life
Capital Asset Class (in Years)

Buildings and improvements 30
Office equipment and machinery 5
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 8
Equipment, machinery and tools 3 to 8
Automotive equipment 2 to 20

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

LBMTL reported deferred outflows and inflows or resources related to pensions.  A deferred outflow of resources 
is a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.  A deferred 
inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position by the government that is applicable to a future 
period.  Pension related deferred outflows of resources include contributions made subsequent to the measurement 
date, which will be reflected as reduction of net pension liability in a future period.  Pension related deferred 
inflows of resources include the net differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments, and 
will be recognized as part of pension expense in future reporting periods.  Refer to Note 6 for items identified as 
deferred inflows and outflows as of June 30, 2016. 
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NOTE 2 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED) 

Pensions 

LBMTL participates in the City’s miscellaneous agent multiple-employer pension plan.  All amounts and 
disclosures are presented on a cost-sharing perspective where the LBMTL is a participant in the City’s plan.  For 
purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the LBMTL’s California Public Employees 
Retirement System (CalPERS) plan and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

Compensated Absences 

Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave amounts are currently funded and recorded as expenditures in the 
fund.  These amounts are recorded as employee benefit charges and are accrued when incurred. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
State requires management to make estimates and assumptions that could affect certain reported amounts in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Also, the 
preparation of the financial statements inherently requires rounding of amounts and estimates.  Management 
believes that any differences due to rounding are not material. 

Prior Year Data 

Selected information from the prior fiscal year has been included in the accompanying financial statements in 
order to provide an understanding of changes in the LBMTL’s financial position and operations.  This information 
has been included for comparison purposes only and does not represent a complete presentation in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles.  Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with 
the LBMTL’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015, from which this selected financial data was 
derived.  The presentation of certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year 
presentation. 

New Accounting Pronouncements - Effective in Current Fiscal Year 

GASB Statement No. 72 – In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and 
Application.  The primary objective of this statement is to define fair value and describe how fair value should be 
measured, define what assets and liabilities should be measured at fair value, and determine what information 
about fair value should be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.  This pronouncement was 
implemented effective July 1, 2015. 

GASB Statement No. 76 – In June 2015, GASB released Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments.  The objective of this statement is to reduce the 
GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP from the four categories under GASB Statement 
No. 55.  This pronouncement was implemented effective July 1, 2015.  
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NOTE 2 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED) 

New Accounting Pronouncements - Effective in Current Fiscal Years (Continued) 

GASB Statement No. 82 – In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues – An Amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73.  The objective of the Statement is to address certain issues that have 
been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related 
Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB 
Statements 67 and 68.  Specifically, the Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-
related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of 
deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the 
classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements.  The 
Statement is effective for the reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016, or the 2016-2017 fiscal year.  This 
pronouncement was implemented effective July 1, 2015. 

New Accounting Pronouncements - Effective in Future Fiscal Years 

GASB Statement No. 73 - In June, 2015, GASB released Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions and Related Assets that are not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68.  The objective of this statement establishes requirements for those 
pensions and pension plans that are not administered through a trust meeting specified criteria.  For the provisions 
effective June 30, 2016, there was no material impact to the LBMTL.  The requirements of the Statement that 
address accounting and financial reporting by employers and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for 
pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 68 are effective for financial statements for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2016, or the 2016-17 fiscal year.  The LBMTL has not yet determined the effect on the 
financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 74 - In June, 2015, GASB released Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans.  The objective of the Statement is to address the 
financial reports of defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet specified criteria. 
The Statement requires more extensive note disclosures and RSI related to the measurement of the OPEB 
liabilities for which assets have been accumulated.  The Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 
2016, or the 2016-17 fiscal year.  The LBMTL has not yet determined the effect on the financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 75 - In June, 2015, GASB released Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.  The objective of the Statement is to replace the requirements 
of GASB Statement No. 45.  In addition, the Statement requires governments to report a liability on the face of 
the financial statements for the OPEB provided and requires governments to present more extensive note 
disclosures and required supplementary information about their OPEB liabilities.  The Statement is effective for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017, or the 2017-18 fiscal year.  The LBMTL has not yet determined the 
effect on the financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 77 – In August 2015, GASB released Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures.  The 
Statement requires state and local governments to disclose information about tax abatement agreements.  The 
Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, or the 2016-17 fiscal year.  The 
LBMTL has not yet determined the effect on the financial statements. 
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NOTE 2 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED) 

New Accounting Pronouncements - Effective in Future Fiscal Years (Continued) 

GASB Statement No. 78 – In December 2015, GASB released Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through 
Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans.  The Statement amends the scope and applicability of 
GASB Statement No. 68 to exclude certain types of cost-sharing multiple employer plans.  The Statement is 
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015, or the 2016-2017 fiscal year.  The LBMTL has not yet 
determined the effect on the financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 79 - In the December 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment 
Pools and Pool Participants.  The Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain external 
investment pools and pool participants.  The Statement establishes criteria for an external investment pool to 
qualify for making the election to measure all of its investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes.  
The Statement establishes additional note disclosure requirements for qualifying external investment pools that 
measure all of their investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes and for governments that 
participate in those pools.  Both the qualifying external investment pools and their participants are required to 
disclose information about any limitations or restrictions on participant withdrawals.  The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2015, except for the provisions in 
paragraphs 18, 19, 23–26, and 40, which are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. 
For the provisions effective June 30, 2016, there was no material impact to the LBMTL.  For the provisions 
effective subsequent to fiscal year 2015-16, the LBMTL has not yet determined the effect on the financial 
statements. 

GASB Statement No. 80 - In January 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain 
Component Units – An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14.  The objective of the Statement is to improve 
financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements for certain component units. 
This Statement amends the blending requirements established in paragraph 53 of Statement No. 14, The Financial 
Reporting Entity, as amended.  The additional criterion requires blending of a component unit incorporated as a 
not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government is the sole corporate member.  The Statement is 
effective for the reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016, or the 2016-2017 fiscal year.  The LBMTL has 
not yet determined the effect on the financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 81 - In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split–Interest 
Agreements.  The objective of the Statement is to improve financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest 
agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a 
beneficiary of the agreement.  The Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an 
irrevocable split-interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the inception 
of the agreement.  Furthermore, the Statement requires that a government recognize assets representing its 
beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the 
government controls the present service capacity of the beneficial interests.  The Statement requires that a 
government recognize revenue when the resources become applicable to the reporting period.  The Statement is 
effective for the reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, or the 2017-2018 fiscal year.  The LBMTL 
has not yet determined the effect on the financial statements. 
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NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows: 
 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 196,106$       -$                 -$                 196,106$        

Total capital assets not being
 depreciated 196,106         -                   -                   196,106          

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 1,948,393      -                   1,948,393       
Office equipment and machinery 59,145           -                   -                   59,145            
Furniture and fixtures 1,500             -                   -                   1,500              
Equipment, machinery and tools 27,963           -                   -                   27,963            
Automotive equipment 5,169,805      -                   -                   5,169,805       

Total capital assets being
 depreciated 7,206,806      -                   -                   7,206,806       

Accumulated depreciation (3,469,532)     (306,854)      -                   (3,776,386)      

Total capital assets being
 Depreciated, net 3,737,274      (306,854)      -                   3,430,420       

Capital assets, net 3,933,380$    (306,854)$    -$                 3,626,526$     

 
 
NOTE 4 – INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 
 
Intergovernmental revenues represent grants earned during fiscal year 2015-16 from other governments as 
follows: 
 

Year Ended
June 30,

2016

OCTA Operating Assistance 190,027$       
State Transit Funding 72,414           
Project V Grant 519,242         

Total 781,683$       
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NOTE 5 – TRANSFERS FROM THE CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH 

Transfers from the City represent the amount of operating funds transferred to the Municipal Transit Fund as 
follows: 

Year Ended
June 30,

2016

Transfers from the City of Laguna Beach Parking Fund 634,600$       
Transfers from the City of Laguna Beach General Fund 20,584           

Total 655,184$       

LBMTL is eligible to receive TDA Article 4 funding up to 50 percent of its operating expenses.  The City 
transfers from its Parking Fund and General Fund the additional funds necessary to cover operational 
expenditures above the 50 percent TDA limit.   

NOTE 6 – PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City’s Miscellaneous 
Pension Plan, an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its 
participating member employers.  The employees of the LBMTL are participants in the Miscellaneous Plan of the 
City.  Accordingly, all amounts and disclosures are presented on a cost-sharing perspective where the LBMTL is 
a participant in the City’s plan.  Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and City 
resolution.  CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans 
regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS 
website. 

Benefits Provided 

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits 
to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years of credited 
service, equal to one year of full time employment.  Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire 
at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years 
of service.  The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the 
Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by 
the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 
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NOTE 6 – PENSION PLAN, (CONTINUED) 

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows: 

Prior to On or after
Hire Date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Formula 2.5% @55 2.0% @62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 55 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 2.5% 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 8% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 18.632% 6.25%

Miscellaneous

Contributions 

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement law requires that the employer contribution 
rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 
following notice of a change in rate.  Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an actuarial 
basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the 
costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued 
liability.  The LBMTL is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the 
contribution rates of employees.  The expense associated with contributions for the LBMTL employees is charged 
to payroll at the required employer and employer rates previously noted. 

Contributions recognized by the pension plan, and contributed by the LBMTL, from the employer for the year 
ended June 30, 2016 were $74,746. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

As of June 30, 2016, the net pension liability reported by the LBMTL for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability of the Plan, as allocated by the City, was $385,609. 

The LBMTL’s net pension liability was measured as the proportionate share of the City’s net pension liability for 
the Miscellaneous Plan.  The net pension liability of the Plan was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total 
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of June 30, 2014 rolled forward to June 30, 2015 using standard update procedures.  The LBMTL’s proportion of 
the net pension liability was based on contributions paid by the LBMTL in relation to the total City’s contribution 
paid for the Miscellaneous Plan, as determined by the City.  The LBMTL’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2014 and 2015 were as follows: 

Miscellaneous
Proportion - June 30, 2014 1.70288%
Proportion - June 30, 2015 1.72075%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.01787%
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NOTE 6 – PENSION PLAN, (CONTINUED) 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the LBMTL recognized pension expense of $34,171.  At June 30, 2016, the 
LBTML reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources
LBMTL's contributions subsequent to the 
  measurement date 74,746$                      -$           
Changes of assumptions - 21,443 
Difference between expected and actual experience 812 -   
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
  on pension plan investments - 13,191 

Total 75,558$                      34,634$                     

The amount of $74,746 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. 
Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense 
as follows:  

Year ended
June 30,

2017 (20,445)$       
2018 (19,359) 
2019 (9,586) 
2020 15,568

(33,822)$       
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NOTE 6 – PENSION PLAN, (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation for the City’s Miscellaneous Plan was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Measurement Date June 30, 2015

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3%
Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.5% (1)
Mortality (2)

(1) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses; including inflation.
(2) Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation 
were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011.  The mortality 
table includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.  Further details of the 
Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website. 

Changes of Assumptions 

GASB 68, paragraph 68, states that the long-term expected rate of return should be determined net of pension 
plan investment expense but without reduction for pension plan administrative expense.  The discount rate of 7.50 
percent used for the June 30, 2014 measurement date was net of administrative expenses.  The discount rate of 
7.65 percent used for the June 30, 2015 measurement date is without reduction of pension plan administrative 
expense. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent for the Plan.  To determine whether 
the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the plan, CalPERS stress tested 
plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount 
rate.  Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets.  Therefore, the current 7.65 percent discount 
rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation was not necessary.  The long term expected 
discount rate of 7.65 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF).  The 
stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.  
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NOTE 6 – PENSION PLAN, (CONTINUED) 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method 
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term 
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows.  Using historical returns of all the 
funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-
term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach.  Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and 
long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund.  The expected rate of return was set by 
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows 
as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns.  The expected rate of return was then set 
equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one 
percent. 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.  The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.  These 
rates of return are net of administrative expenses and are summarized in the following table: 
 

Long-term Expected Long-term Expected
New Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 (a) Years 11+(b)
Global Equity 51% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2% -0.55% -1.05%

Total 100%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

 
Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the LBMTL’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using 
the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the LBMTL’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the 
current rate: 
 

1% Decrease
(6.65%)

Current Discount Rate 
(7.65%)

1% Increase 
(8.65%)

LBMTL's proportionate share of the net 
   pension liability 599,349$                    385,609$                   207,751$                   
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NOTE 6 – PENSION PLAN, (CONTINUED) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the City’s CAFR, as well as 
the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.  



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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2016 2015
Proportion of the net pension liability 1.72075% 1.70288%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 385,609$           358,477$           

Covered payroll 194,570$           193,261$           

Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as a percentage of 
covered payroll 198.19% 185.49%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 76.91% 77.60%

Measurement Date June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years are shown.

** The LBMTL adopted GASB Statement No. 82. As a result, amounts have been restated to show covered 
     payroll based on pensionable earnings.

Changes in Assumptions: The discount rate was revised from 7.5% to 7.65% during the measurement period 
ending June 30, 2015.
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2016 2015

Actuarially determined contributions, allocated to the LBMTL 50,655$             58,880$             

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution (74,746)              (58,880)              

Contribution deficiency (excess) (24,091)$            -$                       

Covered payroll** 210,476$           194,570$           

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 35.51% 30.26%

*    Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years are shown.

** The LBMTL adopted GASB Statement No. 82. As a result, amounts have been restated to show covered 
     payroll based on pensionable earnings.



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



LAGUNA BEACH MUNICIPAL TRANSIT LINES 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT  
  ARTICLE 4 FUNDS 
  OPERATING AND CAPITAL PROGRAM 

SCHEDULE OF ALLOCATIONS RECEIVED AND EXPENDED, BY PROJECT YEAR 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

22 

Unspent Unspent
Project Year Allocation Allocations Allocations Project

Project Description Type Allocated Amount at 06/30/2015 Receipts Expenditures at 06/30/2016 Status

Transit Program Local 2015-16 1,115,108$ -$     1,115,108$ 1,115,108$ -$  Closed

Totals 1,115,108$ -$     1,115,108$ 1,115,108$ -$  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Orange, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Transportation Development Act (TDA) 
Article 4 Funds of the Operating and Capital Program (Funds) of the Laguna Beach Municipal Transit Lines 
(LBMTL), an enterprise fund of the City of Laguna Beach, California (City), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 19, 2016.  Our report included an emphasis of matter stating that the financial statements of the 
LBMTL do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City as of June 30, 2016.  Our 
report also included an emphasis of matter regarding the LBMTL’s adoption of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, and GASB Statement No. 
82, Pension Issues – An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73, effective July 1, 2015.   
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) of the LBTML to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements of the LBMTL are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, including Section 6667 of Part 21 of the California Code of Regulations and the 
allocation instructions of the Orange County Transportation Authority, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards, including the requirements of Section 6667 of part 21 of the 
California Code of Regulations and the allocation instructions of the Orange County Transportation Authority. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Laguna Hills, California 
December 19, 2016 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 Janet Sutter, Executive Director 
 Internal Audit Department 
 
Subject: Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard Compliance, 

Internal Audit Report No. 17-502 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Internal Audit Department has completed an audit of Payment Card 
Industry Data Security Standard compliance.  Based on the audit, the Orange 
County Transportation Authority is not fully compliant with standards and 
reporting requirements of the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard 
or related payment card issuer standards. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Direct staff to implement two recommendations provided in Payment Card 
Industry Data Security Standard Compliance, Internal Audit Report No. 17-502. 
 
Background 
 
The Payment Card Industry (PCI) Data Security Standard (DSS) was created 
to help organizations that accept and process credit card payments to prevent 
fraud by specifying the framework for a secure payment environment. Any 
organization that collects, processes, stores, or transmits credit card 
information is required to be in compliance with the PCI DSS. In addition to the 
PCI DSS, American Express maintains an individual Data Security Operating 
Policy (DSOP), detailing requirements for merchants processing transactions 
at specified volume levels. 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) accepts credit cards for 
payment of bus passes and identification cards through the OCTA store, the 
OCTA website, and by phone, and for driver and vehicle permit fees to the 
Orange County Taxi Administration Program. Cofiroute USA (Cofiroute), 
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OCTA’s third party vendor responsible for operation of the 91 Express Lanes, 
accepts credit cards for payment of toll and transponder fees. Based on the 
total volume of transactions processed, OCTA is classified as a Level 2 
merchant. This classification requires OCTA to conduct an annual 
self-assessment questionnaire (SAQ) and attestation of compliance (AOC), as 
well as quarterly network vulnerability scans. For any areas of non-compliance, 
OCTA must prepare and implement a remediation plan. The American Express 
DSOP requires OCTA to submit the SAQ and AOC, as well as quarterly 
network scans and any related remediation plans. 
 
Discussion 
 
As identified in a prior audit, OCTA has not fully complied with PCI DSS and 
American Express DSOP requirements for timely completion of the annual 
SAQ and implementation of remediation plans. Cofiroute staff also completes a 
SAQ for the purpose of providing input to OCTA; however, OCTA staff does 
not obtain, evaluate, and/or periodically validate the information compiled by 
Cofiroute. Internal Audit recommended management evaluate the necessary 
resources and controls to ensure full compliance with PCI DSS and develop a 
proposal to achieve compliance and/or provide a reasonable approach moving 
forward. Management agreed and outlined actions for undertaking an 
assessment and evaluation of steps necessary to become fully compliant. 
 
In addition, OCTA does not complete and submit quarterly scans as required 
by PCI DSS and the American Express DSOP. Non-certified PCI DSS scans 
are generally performed on a monthly basis; however, remediation efforts to 
address identified weaknesses are not documented and implemented, as 
required. In addition, OCTA does not obtain, evaluate, or periodically validate 
Cofiroute’s activities related to network scans, and results of the scans 
performed by Cofiroute are not included in submissions to American Express. 
Internal Audit recommended management implement procedures to ensure 
that quarterly network scans are performed and remediation efforts are 
identified and addressed accordingly. Management agreed to perform quarterly 
scans and implement remediation actions based on risk and cost. 
 
Summary 
 
The Internal Audit Department has completed an audit of PCI DSS compliance.                      
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Attachment 
 
A. Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard Compliance, Internal 

Audit Report No. 17-502 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

Gerry Dunning Janet Sutter 
Senior Internal Auditor, Internal Audit 
714-560-5875 

Executive Director, Internal Audit 
714-560-5591 

 



















 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2016-17 First Quarter Grant Reimbursement Status 

Report 
 
Overview  
 
The Quarterly Grant Reimbursement Status Report summarizes grant activities for 
information purposes for the Orange County Transportation Authority Board of 
Directors.  This report focuses on activity for the period of July through  
September 2016.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Discussion 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) has secured grant funding 
from federal, state, and local grant agencies to deliver programs, projects, and 
services to improve mobility in Orange County.  The use of these funds is consistent 
with OCTA’s Board of Directors (Board) approved capital programming policies. The 
Quarterly Grant Reimbursement Status Report summarizes awarded/executed, 
current, and closed grant agreements. 
 
Awarded/Executed Grant Agreements: 
 
During the first quarter, OCTA was awarded and executed 11 new formula and 
discretionary grants which are summarized below. 
 
Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2015 Federal Transit Administration (FTA)  
Section 5307 Formula Grant Program:  
 

 OCTA executed a grant agreement with FTA to secure the OCTA’s FTA 
Section 5307 formula fund allocations for FFY 2015.  The grant agreement 
secures $55.4 million in federal capital and operating assistance to support 
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preventative maintenance, capital cost of contracting, paratransit operating 
assistance, bus stop signage, and Positive Train Control.  

 
FFY 2016 FTA Section 5307 Formula Grant Program:  
 

 OCTA executed a grant agreement with FTA to secure the OCTA’s FTA 
Section 5307 formula fund allocations for FFY 2016.  The grant agreement 
secures $56.3 million in federal capital and operating assistance to support 
preventative maintenance, capital cost of contracting, and paratransit 
operating assistance.  

 
FFY 2015 and 2016 FTA Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility for Seniors and 
Disabled: 
 

 OCTA executed an FTA grant agreement to secure $4 million in FTA  
Section 5310 funds allocated to OCTA for FFY 2015 and 2016.  The funds will 
be used to support the capital costs of contracting for ACCESS services. 

 
FFY 2015 and 2016 FTA Section 5337 State of Good Repair:  
 

 OCTA executed an FTA grant agreement to secure $5.3 million in FTA Section 
5337 funds allocated to OCTA for FFY 2015 and 2016.  The funds will be used 
to cover preventative maintenance expenses.   

 
FFY 2015 and 2016 FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities Grant Program: 
 

 OCTA executed a grant agreement with FTA to secure  
$10.6 million in FTA Section 5339 funds.  The funds will be used to support 
midlife overhauls and engine replacements for approximately 147 40-foot 
compressed natural gas (CNG) fixed-route buses serving in the OCTA fleet.  
The buses will be repowered with new CNG engines that are nine times 
cleaner than the engines they replace and will extend the useful life of OCTA 
buses, while increasing their mileage between potential breakdowns. 

 
 

FY 2016 Major Event Transportation Grant: Mobile Source Air Pollution Reduction 
Review Committee (MSRC): 

 

 OCTA secured $0.7 million in grant funds awarded by the MSRC to support 
the operating costs of the Orange County Fair Express for the 2016 season. 
The express service will again serve one of the most popular fairs in the nation, 
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attracting well over 1.3 million visitors, and made available for boarding at nine 
transit facilities throughout Orange County.  
 

 OCTA executed a grant agreement with the MSRC to secure $0.1 million 
awarded to support the direct operating cost of piloting the Angels Express 
Bus Service, Route 656, for the 2016 baseball season. The proposed special 
bus service supplemented the Angels Express rail service, and offered a 
convenient and attractive alternative to automobile travel to and from Angel 
home games for communities that do not have access to rail.  

 
FY 2015 Transportation Control Measure Partnership Program: MSRC 

 OCTA executed a grant agreement with the MSRC to secure $1.6 million to 
purchase 463 of the 610 mobile ticketing readers for installation on OCTA  
fixed-route bus fleet.  As directed by the OCTA Board on September 26, 2016, 
the grant agreement will be amended so the MSRC funds can also support 
other elements of the project, including the installation of the routers and 
software development. The amendment will provide staff with the flexibility 
needed to accommodate cap-and-trade funds recently awarded to the mobile 
ticketing project by the California State Transportation Agency through the 
2016 Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program. 

 
Current Grant Agreements: 
 
OCTA’s FTA formula grant agreements total 20, and FTA discretionary grant 
agreements total four.  The total FTA formula and discretionary grant agreements 
amount to $470.4 million.  The total amount reimbursed through the first quarter 
under these grant agreements is $291.6 million, leaving a balance of  
$178.8 million (Attachment A). 
  
The balance ($170.7 million) of the 20 FTA formula grant agreements will primarily 
fund fixed-route bus procurements, engine repowers, rideshare and vanpool 
programs, design and engineering for the Laguna Niguel/San Juan Capistrano 
passing siding project, preliminary engineering for the OC Streetcar Project, and 
rail rehabilitation projects. 
 
The balance ($8.1 million) of the four FTA discretionary grant agreements will 
primarily fund a new control point at 4th Street on the OCTA-owned railroad  
right-of-way (ROW), as well as slope stabilization improvements on the railroad 
ROW from the City of Laguna Niguel to the City of Lake Forest.  The balance will 
also fund security camera surveillance systems for commuter rail stations located 
in the cities of Anaheim, Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo, Orange, and Placentia. 
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OCTA also has a combined 42 other formula grant agreements (Attachment B) 
and ten other discretionary grant agreements (Attachment C).   
 
The 42 other formula grant agreements total $424.1 million.  The total amount 
reimbursed through the first quarter under these other grant agreements is  
$259.3 million, leaving a balance of $164.8 million. 
 
The ten other discretionary grant agreements total $10 million.  A total of  
$0.5 million of these discretionary grant agreements has been reimbursed, leaving 
a balance of $9.5 million. These other discretionary grant agreements have a 
defined grant expiration date.  Project expenses must be fully paid and 
reimbursed prior to the grant agreement expiration date.  Staff anticipates each of 
the remaining balances to be fully reimbursed prior to the grant agreement 
expiration date.  
 
Combined, the formula and discretionary grants total $904.5 million.  The total 
amount reimbursed across all these grant agreements equals $551.4 million, 
leaving a remaining balance of $353.1 million.   
 
Closed Grant Agreements: 
 
There were two grant agreements totaling $45.4 million that were closed out in 
the first quarter of fiscal year 2016-17. The remaining balance of $1.8 million on 
FTA Grant CA-95-X262 has been de-obligated per FTA instruction and will be  
re-programmed in the FFY 2017 FTA grant for the Orange Parking Structure 
project. These grant agreements are summarized in Attachment D. 
 
Summary 
 
This report provides an update of the grant agreement funded activities for the 
first quarter of FY 2016-17, July through September 2016. Staff recommends this 
report be received and filed as an information item. 
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Attachments 
 
A. First Quarter Grant Reimbursement Status Report, July through   

September 2016, Federal Transit Administration Formula and 
Discretionary Grant Agreements 

B. First Quarter Grant Reimbursement Status Report, July through   
September 2016, Other Formula Grant Agreements 

C. First Quarter Grant Reimbursement Status Report, July through   
September 2016, Other Discretionary Grant Agreements 

D. First Quarter Grant Reimbursement Status Report, July through   
September 2016, Closed Grant Agreements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

 Approved by: 

 
Rene I. Vega  Andrew Oftelie 
Section Manager, Grants and Revenue 
Financial Planning & Analysis 
714-560-5702 

 Executive Director,  
Finance and Administration 
714-560-5649 
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ATTACHMENT D



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Orange County Treasurer's Management Report - October 2016 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority invests a portion of its liquid 
portfolio in the Orange County Investment Pool.  Each month the Orange County 
Treasurer publishes a comprehensive report detailing the composition of the 
pool and the prevailing economic and market conditions.  The attached 
Treasurer’s Management Report for the Orange County Investment Pool is for 
the month ending October 31, 2016.  The report has been reviewed and is 
consistent with the investment practices of the Orange County Treasurer. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Discussion 
 
As of October 31, 2016, the book value of the Orange County Investment  
Pool (OCIP) Money Market Fund was $1,262,265,272 with a monthly gross yield 
of 0.37 percent and a month-end average days to maturity of 49 days.  The OCIP 
Extended Fund book value was $5,491,175,887 with a monthly yield of  
0.95 percent and a month-end average days to maturity of 504 days.  The 
Orange County Transportation Authority’s month-end balance in the OCIP was 
$22,668; the combined pool had a monthly yield of 0.80 percent and month-end 
average days to maturity of 365 days. 
 
There were no changes to the Treasurer’s Approved Issuer List.  Both the Money 
Market Fund and the Extended Fund were in compliance at month-end.  Pages 
27 through 86 containing investment inventory are not included in the 
attachment.  Copies of OCIP’s investment inventory reports are available upon 
request.   
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Summary 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority is submitting a copy of the Orange 
County Treasurer’s Management Report to the Finance and Administration 
Committee.  The report is for the month ending October 31, 2016. 
 
Attachment 
 
A. Treasurer’s Monthly Investment Report – October 31, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

 Approved by: 

 
Rodney Johnson  Andrew Oftelie 
Deputy Treasurer 
Treasury/Toll Roads 
(714) 560-5675 

 Executive Director,  
Finance and Administration 
(714) 560-5649 

 













































































 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt 

Programs Report - October 2016 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority has a comprehensive investment 
and debt program to fund its immediate and long-term cash flow demands.  Each 
month, the Treasurer submits a report detailing investment allocation, 
performance, compliance, outstanding debt balances, and credit ratings for the 
Orange County Transportation Authority’s Debt Program.  This report is for the 
month ending October 31, 2016.  The report has been reviewed and is consistent 
with the investment practices contained in the investment policy.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Discussion 
 
As of October 31, 2016, the Orange County Transportation Authority’s (OCTA) 
outstanding investments totaled $1.4 billion.  The portfolio is divided into two 
managed portfolios:  the liquid portfolio for immediate cash needs and the  
short-term portfolio for future budgeted expenditures.  In addition to these 
portfolios, OCTA has funds invested in debt service reserve funds for the  
91 Express Lanes Program.  The weighted average yield for the OCTA portfolio 
is 0.97 percent. 
 
OCTA’s debt portfolio had an outstanding principal balance of  
$435 million as of October 31, 2016.  Approximately 75 percent of the 
outstanding balance is comprised of Measure M2 debt and 25 percent is 
associated with the 91 Express Lanes Program. 
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Summary 
 
The Treasurer is submitting a copy of the Orange County Transportation 
Authority Investment and Debt Programs report to the Finance and 
Administration Committee.  The report is for the month ending October 31, 2016. 
 
Attachment 
 
A. Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt Programs 

– For the Period Ending October 31, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

 
Rodney Johnson Andrew Oftelie 
Deputy Treasurer 
Treasury/Toll Roads 
(714) 560-5675 

Executive Director,  
Finance and Administration  
(714) 560-5649 

 











































 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017     
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Local Agency Investment Fund - October 2016 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority invests a portion of its liquid 
portfolio in the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund.  Each month, 
the State Treasurer’s office publishes a report detailing the composition of the 
pool.  The attached summary statements from the report are for the month 
ending October 31, 2016.  The report has been reviewed and is consistent with 
the investment practices of the State Treasurer’s Office. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Discussion 
 
As of October 31, 2016, the fair value including accrued interest of the Pooled 
Money Investment Account (PMIA) was $70,467,377,193 with a month-average 
yield of 0.65 percent and a month-end weighted average maturity of 163 days.  
The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is a component of the State of 
California PMIA. The month-end balance of LAIF was $20,928,325,161.  The 
Orange County Transportation Authority’s month-end balance in LAIF was 
$10,216,772. 
 
Summary 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority is submitting a copy of the Local 
Agency Investment Fund statements and summary reports to the Finance and 
Administration Committee. The statements are for the month ending  
October 31, 2016. 
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Attachment 
 
A. Local Agency Investment Fund – As of October 31, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

 Approved by: 

 
Rodney Johnson  Andrew Oftelie 
Deputy Treasurer 
Treasury/Toll Roads 
(714) 560-5675 

 Executive Director,  
Finance and Administration 
(714) 560-5649 

 









 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017     
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Local Agency Investment Fund - November 2016 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority invests a portion of its liquid 
portfolio in the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund.  Each month, 
the State Treasurer’s office publishes a report detailing the composition of the 
pool.  The attached summary statements from the report are for the month 
ending November 30, 2016.  The report has been reviewed and is consistent 
with the investment practices of the State Treasurer’s Office. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Discussion 
 
As of November 30, 2016, the fair value including accrued interest of the  
Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA) was $70,431,997,188 with a  
month-average yield of 0.68 percent and a month-end weighted average 
maturity of 167 days.  The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is a component 
of the State of California PMIA. The month-end balance of LAIF was 
$20,709,944,257.  The Orange County Transportation Authority’s month-end 
balance in LAIF was $10,216,772. 
 
Summary 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority is submitting a copy of the Local 
Agency Investment Fund statements and summary reports to the Finance and 
Administration Committee. The statements are for the month ending  
November 30, 2016. 
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Attachment 
 
A. Local Agency Investment Fund – As of November 30, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

 Approved by: 

 
Rodney Johnson  Andrew Oftelie 
Deputy Treasurer 
Treasury/Toll Roads 
(714) 560-5675 

 Executive Director,  
Finance and Administration 
(714) 560-5649 

 









 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Orange County Treasurer's Management Report - November 2016 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority invests a portion of its liquid 
portfolio in the Orange County Investment Pool.  Each month the Orange County 
Treasurer publishes a comprehensive report detailing the composition of the 
pool and the prevailing economic and market conditions.  The attached 
Treasurer’s Management Report for the Orange County Investment Pool is for 
the month ending November 30, 2016.  The report has been reviewed and is 
consistent with the investment practices of the Orange County Treasurer. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Discussion 
 
As of November 30, 2016, the book value of the Orange County Investment  
Pool (OCIP) Money Market Fund was $1,263,793,941 with a monthly gross yield 
of 0.32 percent and a month-end average days to maturity of 44 days.  The OCIP 
Extended Fund book value was $5,548,786,953 with a monthly yield of 
0.97 percent and a month-end average days to maturity of 515 days.  The 
Orange County Transportation Authority’s month-end balance in the OCIP was 
$3,069,364; the combined pool had a monthly yield of 0.77 percent and  
month-end average days to maturity of 373 days. 
 
There were two changes to the Treasurer’s Approved Issuer List.  The Orange 
County Pension Obligation Bonds, 2017 A and the Local Agency Investment 
Fund were added to the approved issuer list.  Both the Money Market Fund and 
the Extended Fund were in compliance at month-end.  Pages 27 through 90 
containing investment inventory are not included in the attachment.  Copies of 
OCIP’s investment inventory reports are available upon request.   
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Summary 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority is submitting a copy of the Orange 
County Treasurer’s Management Report to the Finance and Administration 
Committee.  The report is for the month ending November 30, 2016. 
 
Attachment 
 
A. Treasurer’s Monthly Investment Report – November 30, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

 Approved by: 

 
Rodney Johnson  Andrew Oftelie 
Deputy Treasurer 
Treasury/Toll Roads 
(714) 560-5675 

 Executive Director,  
Finance and Administration 
(714) 560-5649 

 

























































 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt 

Programs Report - November 2016 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority has a comprehensive investment 
and debt program to fund its immediate and long-term cash flow demands.  Each 
month, the Treasurer submits a report detailing investment allocation, 
performance, compliance, outstanding debt balances, and credit ratings for the 
Orange County Transportation Authority’s debt program.  This report is for the 
month ending November 30, 2016.  The report has been reviewed and is 
consistent with the investment practices contained in the Investment Policy.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Discussion 
 
As of November 30, 2016, the Orange County Transportation Authority’s (OCTA) 
outstanding investments totaled $1.45 billion.  The portfolio is divided into two 
managed portfolios:  the liquid portfolio for immediate cash needs and the  
short-term portfolio for future budgeted expenditures.  In addition to these 
portfolios, OCTA has funds invested in debt service reserve funds for the  
91 Express Lanes Program.  The weighted average yield for the OCTA portfolio 
is 1.14 percent. 
 
OCTA’s debt portfolio had an outstanding principal balance of  
$435 million as of November 30, 2016.  Approximately 75 percent of the 
outstanding balance is comprised of M2 debt and 25 percent is associated with 
the 91 Express Lanes Program. 
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Summary 
 
The Treasurer is submitting a copy of the Orange County Transportation 
Authority Investment and Debt Programs report to the Finance and 
Administration Committee.  The report is for the month ending  
November 30, 2016. 
 
Attachment 
 
A. Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt Programs 

– For the Period Ending November 30, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

 
Rodney Johnson 
Treasury/Toll Roads 

Andrew Oftelie 
Executive Director,  

Deputy Treasurer 
(714) 560-5675 

Finance and Administration  
(714) 560-5649 



 

 

 











































 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2016-17 First Quarter Budget Status Report 
 
 
Overview  
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority’s staff has implemented the  
fiscal year 2016-17 budget.  This report summarizes the material variances 
between the budget and actual revenues and expenses through the first 
quarter of fiscal year 2016-17.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
  
Background 
 
The Board of Directors (Board) approved the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) Fiscal Year (FY) 2016-17 Budget on June 13, 2016. The 
approved budget itemized the anticipated revenues and expenses necessary 
to deliver OCTA’s transportation programs and projects.  The OCTA budget is 
a compilation of individual budgets for each of OCTA’s funds, including the 
General Fund; five enterprise funds; five special revenue funds; two capital 
project funds; one debt service fund; four trust funds; and two internal service 
funds. 
 
The balanced budget as originally approved by the Board in June was  
$1.16 billion.  Sources of funds were comprised of $972.2 million in current 
year revenues and $189.3 million in use of prior year designations. Uses of 
funds were comprised of $1.09 billion of current year expenditures and  
$68.8 million of designations. 
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Discussion 
 
Staff monitors and analyzes revenues and expenditures versus the working 
budget. The Quarterly Budget Status Report (Attachment A) provides a 
summary level overview of amendments, staffing levels, and provides 
explanations for any material budget-to-actual variances within each pertinent 
OCTA program or fund. The OCTA programs and funds included are the 
Measure M2 (M2) Program, Transit Program, 91 Express Lanes Program, 
Commuter and Urban Rail Endowment Fund, and General Fund. 
 
Attachment A is comprised of two sections. The first section covers total OCTA 
information, amendments, staffing, revenues, operating, and capital 
expenditures. The second section focuses on variance explanations by 
program or fund.  
 
In the first quarter, actual M2 sales tax revenues underran the budget by  
$2.5 million and Transit Program sales tax revenue underran by $0.7 million.  
Sales tax revenue advances for the M2 and Transit programs grew by  
2.21 percent and 2.18 percent year-over-year through the first quarter. The 
growth rates for the first quarter are below the budgeted growth rates of  
4.4 percent for M2 and 2.8 percent for Transit.  
 
Fare revenue for Transit Operations underran by approximately $0.8 million, 
primarily due to a year-over-year decrease in fixed-route boardings of  
9 percent. Underruns in operating revenue for the Transit Program are offset 
by underruns of $2.1 million in operating expenditures. These underruns are 
discussed further in Attachment A. 
 
The majority of variance explanations were due to timing issues for both 
revenues and expenses.  In areas where expenditures underran the budget, 
the primary cause was timing issues related to capital projects. Often these 
same projects have external funding that cannot be sought for reimbursement 
until expenditures are incurred, thus creating underruns in revenues as well.   
 
Summary 
 
In the first quarter, actual M2 sales tax revenues underran the budget by  
$2.5 million and Transit Program sales tax revenue underran by $0.7 million.  
Sales tax revenue advances for the M2 and Transit programs grew by  
2.21 percent and 2.18 percent year-over-year through the first quarter. The 
growth rates for the first quarter are below the budgeted growth rates of  
4.4 percent for M2 and 2.8 percent for Transit. Fare revenue underran by 
approximately $0.8 million, primarily due to a year-over-year decrease in  
fixed-route boardings of 9 percent. Underruns in operating revenue for the 
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Transit Program are offset by underruns of $2.1 million in operating 
expenditures. 
 
Attachment 
 
A. Quarterly Budget Status Report First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2016-17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

 
Scott Arbuckle Andrew Oftelie 
Section Manager, 
Financial Planning and Analysis 
(714) 560-5350 

Executive Director, 
Finance and Administration  
(714) 560-5649 
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OVERVIEW 
The Board of Directors (Board) approved the  

Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA)  

Fiscal Year (FY) 2016-17 budget on June 13, 2016. The 

approved budget itemized the anticipated revenues and 

expenses necessary to deliver OCTA’s transportation 

programs and meet service commitments.  

In the first quarter, actual Measure M2 (M2) sales tax 

revenues underran the budget by $2.5 million and Transit 

Program sales tax revenue underran by $0.7 million.  Sales tax 

revenue for the M2 and Transit programs grew by 2.21 

percent and 2.18 percent year-over-year through the first 

quarter. The growth rates for the first quarter are below the 

budgeted growth rates of 4.4 percent for M2 and 2.8 percent 

for Transit. Fare revenue for Transit Operations underran by 

approximately $0.8 million, primarily due to a year-over-year 

decrease in fixed-route boardings of 9 percent. Underruns in 

operating revenue for the Transit Program are offset by 

underruns of $2.1 million in operating expenditures. 

The majority of variance explanations are due to timing issues 

for both revenues and expenses. In areas where expenditures 

underrun the budget, the primary cause is timing issues 

related to capital projects. Often these same projects have 

external funding that cannot be sought for reimbursement 

until expenditures are incurred, creating underruns in 

revenues as well.   

This report summarizes the material variances between the 

budget plan and actual revenues and expenses for the  

FY. 

AMENDMENTS 
Through the first quarter, no budget amendments were 

required. 

STAFFING 
A staffing plan of 1,386.5 full-time equivalent positions was 

approved for FY 2016-17. At the end of the first quarter  

1,323 of these positions were filled. 

Staffing Description Budget Filled Vacant % Vacancy

Coach Operators 680.0        660.0        20.0         2.9%

Maintenance 171.0        163.0        8.0           4.7%

TCU 37.0           35.0          2.0           5.4%
Union Subtotal 888.0        858.0        30.0         3.4%

Transit Operations Support 176.5        163.5        13.0         7.4%

Other Administrative 322.0        301.5        20.5         6.4%
Administrative Subtotal 498.5        465.0        33.5         6.7%

Total OCTA 1,386.5     1,323.0    63.5        4.6%  

TOTAL SALARIES AND BENEFITS 
At the end of the first quarter, actual salaries and benefits of 

$37.8 million were $1.5 million under the budget of  

$39.3 million.  This variance is due to a $0.8 million underrun 

in General Fund salaries and benefits and a $0.7 million 

underrun in Transit Program salaries and benefits. In both 

cases, the underruns are primarily driven by vacant 

administrative positions. 

                  Quarterly Budget Status Report 

      First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2016-17  

ATTACHMENT A 
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Total Salaries and Benefits Expenses

Budget Actual $ Variance % Variance

Transit 26,602$      25,928$     675$         2.5%

General Fund 12,706$      11,916$     790$         6.2%

Total 39,308$      37,844$     1,465$      3.7%

 

PROGRAM AND FUND VARIANCES 
Year-to-date material variances are listed by program or fund 

group in thousands. 

 Budget  Actual  $ Variance  % Variance 

Revenues 1,318$            1,824$            506$                 38.4%

Expenses 16,991$          15,370$          1,621$             9.5%

General Fund

 

Revenues: General Fund revenues overran the budget by $0.5 

million. This overrun is primarily due to State Transportation 

Improvement Program (STIP) revenues. STIP funds received 

through the first quarter of FY 2016-17 are from prior year 

allocations related to the reimbursement of planning 

activities and for completion of the Pacific Coast Highway 

(PCH) Corridor Study.  

Expenses: General Fund expenses underran the budget by 

$1.6 million. This variance is primarily attributed the 

underrun of $0.8 million in salaries and benefits. The 

remaining underruns are largely associated with general and 

administrative costs. These costs account for approximately 

$0.6 million of the underrun. General and administrative 

costs consist of time and expense based line items generally 

associated with recurring operational costs such as 

administrative salaries and benefits, office supplies, software, 

hardware, training, consulting services, etc. The majority of 

time and expense based services are utilized on an as-needed 

basis.  

 

 Budget  Actual  $ Variance  % Variance 

Revenues 82,525$          81,047$          (1,479)$            -1.8%

Expenses 63,717$          38,389$          25,329$           39.8%

Measure M2 Program 

 

Revenues: Within the M2 Program, revenues are 

underrunning by $1.5 million. This is primarily due to an 

underrun in sales tax revenues of $2.5 million. Through the 

first quarter, LTA sales tax revenue advances grew by 1.14 

percent year-over-year. Although sales tax growth for the 

first quarter is below the budgeted growth rate of 4.40 

percent, the amount of sales tax receipts for the first quarter 

will not be finalized until mid-December when OCTA receives 

the “true-up” payment.  The underrun in sales tax revenues is 

partially offset by an overrun in revenue for the Regional 

Capacity Program of $1 million. This is due to prior year 

revenue reimbursements received in the current FY. 

Expenses: M2 expenses are underrunning by $25.3 million. 

The variance can be attributed to the Regional Capacity 

Program ($8.2 million), I-405 Freeway improvements ($5.3 

million), OC Bridges ($4.7 million), and Regional Traffic Signal 

Synchronization ($3.3 million). 

Approximately $8.2 million of the variance is associated with 

the Regional Capacity Program. The billing cycles and the 

magnitude of expenses are dependent upon the cities 

progress/completion of their individual projects, making 

billing cycles difficult to forecast. This program will continue 

to be monitored throughout the fiscal year. 

The primary drivers behind the $5.3 million variance relating 

to the I-405 Improvement Project are project development 

and Right-of-Way (ROW) acquisition. The variance ($4.3 

million) associated with project development is primarily due 

to invoices running one to two months in arrears. The 

variance within ROW acquisition ($0.6 million) is due to the 

long lead time required to extend offers to land owners, and 

the difficulty of predicting the acceptance rate among 

property owners. 

The $4.7 million underrun pertaining to OC Bridges can 

primarily be attributed to the Raymond Grade Separation 

project. Invoices related to this project are currently running 

two to three months in arrears. The remaining portion of the 

underrun is related to ROW land acquisition. Negotiations 

with property owners are still underway. Staff will continue 

to monitor these projects through completion.  
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The Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization program underran 

by $3.3 million through the first quarter. This is due to the 

collaboration process with consultants, local agencies, and 

Caltrans. A large collaborative effort is required due to the 

massive scope of the projects, as such, the projects are taking 

longer than originally anticipated. Progress will accelerate as 

the projects advance in development. 

 

 Budget  Actual  $ Variance  % Variance 

Revenues 61,948$          66,184$          4,236$             6.8%

Expenses 54,776$          52,677$          2,099$             3.8%

Transit Program

 

Revenues: Transit revenues have overrun by $4.2 million. The 

variance is primarily related to the receipt of federal grant 

funds for the purchase of buses from the prior year. ($11.1 

million). However, this overrun was partially offset by an 

underrun in other federal revenues ($5.3 million), fare 

revenues ($0.8 million), and sales tax revenues ($0.7 million). 

An overrun of $11.1 million within revenue was related to bus 

procurement. Federal funds received in the first quarter were 

a partial reimbursement from a prior year bus procurement. 

Additional funds are likely to be received as the fiscal year 

continues. 

Other federal reimbursement revenues had underruns of 

$5.3 million for the quarter. The underrun is primarily due to 

timing of the receipt of revenue associated with preventative 

maintenance. OCTA incurs preventative maintenance costs 

throughout the year, but will not seek reimbursement for the 

funds until the expenses have been paid. The timing of 

payment and reimbursement generally falls into subsequent 

quarters due to this process. 

Fare revenues underran by $0.8 million. This is primarily due 

to lower than anticipated utilization of fixed-route bus 

services. Year-over-year fixed-route boardings have 

decreased by 9 percent. Staff will continue to monitor this 

variance and provide regular updates. 

TDA sales tax revenues are currently $0.7 million under 

budget. Through the first quarter, TDA sales tax revenue 

advances grew by 2.18 percent year-over-year. Sales tax 

growth for the first quarter is below the budgeted growth 

rate of 2.80 percent.  

Expenses: The $2.1 million underrun in Transit expenditures 

is primarily attributed to fuels ($0.7 million), salaries and 

benefits ($0.7 million), and equipment maintenance ($0.5 

million). 

The underruns in fuel and equipment maintenance can be 

attributed to the timing of invoicing from the vendors. 

Several accounts within these categories are billing two to 

three months in arrears. These underruns should diminish as 

the fiscal year continues. 

Labor costs underran by approximately $0.7 million primarily 

due to vacant positions. The current administrative vacancy 

rate is 7.4 percent and the union vacancy rate is 3.4 percent. 

 

 Budget  Actual  $ Variance  % Variance 

Revenues 10,540$          13,130$          2,590$             24.6%

Expenses 13,591$          7,191$            6,400$             47.1%

91 Express Lanes Program

 
Revenues: The 91 Express Lanes revenues are overrunning by 

$2.6 million.  This is primarily related to more actual trips 

than originally anticipated during the first quarter.  The 

number of trips anticipated in the first quarter were tied to 

the timing of the paving rehabilitation project and included 

the planned number of weekend closures of the express 

lanes.  However due to scheduling requirements and 

unforeseen weather conditions, the project spanned into the 
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second quarter as did weekend closures.  This shift in the 

timing of the project contributed $1.4 million of toll revenues 

to the overrun.  The remaining $1.1 million of the overrun is 

related to more than anticipated non-toll revenues.  These 

revenues are due to a higher number of toll violations been 

processed in the first quarter and a larger number of account 

minimum fees been collected than originally anticipated. 

Expenses: The 91 Express Lanes expenses are underrunning 

by $6.4 million primarily due to the pavement rehabilitation 

project. This project began later than expected due to 

scheduling requirements and weather conditions. The paving 

project should be completed in the second quarter.  

 

 Budget  Actual  $ Variance  % Variance 

Revenues 769$               2,396$            1,628$             211.8%

Expenses 17,258$          16,817$          442$                 2.6%

Commuter and Urban Rail Endowment Fund (CURE)

 

Revenues: CURE revenues overran by $1.6 million. The 

overrun is primarily due to revenues associated with the 

Positive Train Control project, which are reimbursed by the 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) once invoices that are 

submitted by the Southern California Regional Rail Authority 

(SCRRA) are recognized to have been paid by OCTA. This 

project is funded by over 50 different funding sources 

system-wide. SCRRA notified OCTA that they will be drawing 

down funding from the various sources based upon the 

expiration date of the respective agencies funding source. 

Due to this drawdown method, SCRRA provided OCTA with 

the invoices related to the project towards the end of the 

project’s completion. Revenue received is related to expenses 

incurred during the previous fiscal year. 

Expenses: CURE expenses are underrunning by  

$0.4 million. The underrun is primarily due to many small 

underruns including: On-call Planning, Engineering and 

Modeling services, a project to upgrade lighting at the San 

Clemente Station, and construction management services for 

the Laguna Niguel-San Juan Capistrano Passing Siding project. 

Many of the projects are currently underway and will 

continue to be closely monitored by staff. 



Bristol Street Widening Project Audit Update 
January 11, 2017 – Finance and Administration Committee 

 
Status Update on Outstanding Recommendations 

Internal Audit Report No. 15-515 
“Review of Oversight Controls, Contract Compliance, and Billings Related to the 

Bristol Street Widening Project” 
 
 

1 
 

Recommendation 1: 
 

 Management should obtain a credit of $261,764 to the gas tax agreement.  
 Management should ensure labor billing rates are corrected.  
 Management should implement controls to ensure reasonable and accurate labor 

charges. 
 
Current Status: 
 

 A credit of $261,764 from the City of Santa Ana (City) was requested. The credit 
is shown in the Revised Second Quarter Financial Report.  

 The terms for an amendment to the gas tax agreement have been agreed to by 
City staff.  The amendment requires the City to certify with signature that actual 
expenses and labor billing rates charged are true and correct, with an effective 
date retroactive to the date of the audit findings. The amendment is in final review 
by Contracts Administration and Materials Management (CAMM). 

 Beginning in March 2016, the City’s quarterly financial reports were revised to 
reflect labor billing rates based on a ten percent indirect rate.   

 The City added 155 labor hours in the Revised First Quarter Financial Report that 
were not identified in the original report.  These additional hours are pending the 
Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) Internal Audit’s validation to 
employee timesheets. 

 OCTA has agreed to allow the City to use an indirect rate established through an 
approved cost allocation plan.  The City intends to submit a cost allocation plan to 
California Department of Transportation for approval.  

 
Recommendation 3: 
 

 Management should amend the gas tax agreement to strengthen the requirement 
regarding excess right-of-way property, including the addition of a requirement to 
sell or credit the value of excess property to the gas tax agreement.  

 Management should either request the City credit the gas tax agreement for 
$443,078 or implement controls to ensure that proceeds from the sale of excess 
property are applied to eligible project costs. 

 
Current Status: 
 

 Terms for an amended gas tax agreement have been agreed to by City staff and   
include tracking and accounting of excess property remnants in the quarterly 
reconciliation report. The amendment is in final review by CAMM.  

 The City has credited $443,078 to the gas tax agreement in the Revised Second 
Quarter Financial Report.  
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Recommendation 4: 
 

 Management should request the City strengthen controls over timekeeping and 
periodically review supporting documentation to ensure accuracy of labor charges 
to the project.  

 Management should consider disallowing subconsultant markups through an 
update of contract language in cooperative agreements. 

 
Current Status: 
 

 Terms for an amended gas tax agreement have been agreed to by City staff and 
require certification by City staff that time and charges are correct, and that 
subconsultant markups are disallowed, retroactive to the date of the audit findings. 
The amendment is in final review by CAMM. 

 
Recommendation 5: 
 

 Management should design and implement a cost review process that includes 
review of a sample of City costs charged to the gas tax agreement to ensure that 
such costs are project-related, supported, and reasonable.  

 Management should instruct the City to correct its quarterly reconciliation report 
and implement procedure to reconcile City reports with OCTA records. 

 
Current Status: 
 

 Supporting cost documentation from the City will be reviewed quarterly once the 
amendment to the gas tax agreement is executed. 

 The City has made all but one correction to its quarterly reconciliation reports to 
reconcile with OCTA records.  

Recommendation 6: 

 
 Management should amend the gas tax agreement to update the payment 

schedule and implement controls to enforce the payment provisions. 
 
Current Status: 
 

 Terms for an amended gas tax agreement have been agreed to by City staff.  
The amendment effective date will be retroactive to the date of the audit findings. 
The amendment is in final review by CAMM. 
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